

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY MARCH 20, 2019                                                                                           EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting March 20, 2019 - Page 1 of 6 


 Item Purpose / Support 


 Agenda  


   


1. Convene Closed Session 5:30 p.m. 


1.1. Roll Call  


1.2. Public Comments prior to Closed Session Members of the public may comment on items that ARE 
listed on the Closed Session Agenda 


   


2. Closed Session Items  


2.1. Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, 
Retirements, Resignations & Appointments 


Information for possible action 


2.2. Conference with Labor Negotiators (Govt. Code 
Section 54957.6) 


Provide an update and receive direction from the Trustees 
regarding negotiations with the GSCFT for 2018-19. 


2.3. Public Employee 
Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint (Govt. 
Code Section 54957) 


Information for possible action 


2.4. Conference With Legal Counsel Anticipated 
Litigation (Govt. Code Section 54956.9): Specify 
facts that lead to exposure to litigation 


Number of Cases: 1 


Case: California Voting Rights Act – Trustee Area Elections 


2.5. Public Employee Performance Evaluation (Govt. 
Code Section 54957) 


Title: Superintendent 


   


3. Convene Open Session 6:30 p.m. 


3.1. Welcome and Pledge of Allegiance  


3.2 Agenda changes, additions or deletions  


   


4. Public Comments 
For presentations of matters not on the Agenda. 
3 minutes for individuals; 15 minutes per subject. 


Note to Members of the Public:  Thank you for taking 
the time to attend this meeting.  Santa Cruz City School 
Board Members appreciate your presence and your 
comments regarding items not on the agenda are 
valued.  Per Santa Cruz City Schools Board Bylaw 
protocols, Trustees will not comment on Public 
Comments during this time. 


   


5. Superintendent's/Students’ Reports  


1/303







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY MARCH 20, 2019                                                                                           EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting March 20, 2019 - Page 2 of 6 


 Item Purpose / Support 


5.1. Superintendent's Report  


5.2. Students’ Reports  


   


6. Board Members' Reports  


6.1. Board Members' Reports  


6.2. Board President's Report  


   


7. Approval of Minutes  


7.1. Minutes March 6, 2019  


   


8. General Public Business  


   


8.1. Consent Agenda Non-Contract Items: These 
matters may be passed by one roll call 
motion.  


 


8.1.1. Personnel Actions - Certificated  


8.1.2. Personnel Actions - Classified  


8.1.3. Purchase Orders, Bids & Quotes  


8.1.4. Warrant Register  


8.1.5. Budget Transfers  


8.1.6. Physical Education Waiver  


   


8.2. Consent Agenda: General Contracts & 
Agreements 


 


8.2.1. Educational Services/Alternative Family 
Education: Overnight Field Trip – Oregon 
Shakespeare Festival 


 


8.2.2. Educational Services/Harbor High School: 
Overnight Field Trip – World Strides Heritage 
Festival 


 


8.2.3. Business Services: Revised Facility Fee 
Schedule 


 


2/303







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY MARCH 20, 2019                                                                                           EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting March 20, 2019 - Page 3 of 6 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.2.4. Business Services: Consultant Services 
Agreement – J. Parra 


 


8.2.5. Business Services: Pacific Collegiate School 
Memorandum of Understanding 


 


8.2.6. Business Services: Consultant Services 
Agreement – Jerene Lacey 


 


   


8.3 Consent Agenda: Bond Projects Contracts, 
Agreements, Proposals, Bids & Change 
Orders 


 


8.3.1. AV NOW: Proposal: Connect Sound System at 
Harbor High School Athletic Field 


 


8.3.2. Belli Architecture: Amendment Agreement: 
Harbor High School Modernization Phase 2 


 


8.3.3. Butano Geotechnical Engineering: Change 
Order #1: Additional Geotech Exploration at 
Harbor High School Swimming Pool 


 


8.3.4. CRW Industries, Inc.: Change Order #1: 
Waterproofing at Branciforte Small Schools 
Modernization Ph1 


 


8.3.5 CRW Industries, Inc.: Change Order #4: Hand 
Dryer Electrical Patchback at Branciforte Small 
Schools Playground Relocation 


 


8.3.6. Enviroplex: Change Order #1: Additions at 
Natural Bridges Gym Modernization Ph2 w/ 
Restroom 


 


8.3.7. M3 Environmental: Proposal: Hazardous 
Material Testing at Soquel High School 
Modernization 


 


8.3.8. Paine Construction: Proposal: Interior Painting at 
Mission Hill Middle School Locker Room 


 


8.3.9. PARC Specialty Contractors: Proposal and 
Contract: Ceiling Removal at Soquel High School 
Modernization 


 


8.3.10. Sierra School Equipment Company: Proposal: 
Combination Locks at Mission Hill Middle School 
Student Lockers 


 


8.3.11. Swinerton: Change Order #1: 4" Water Pipe and 
Drinking Fountain at Soquel High School Site 
Infrastructure & Snack Shack 


 


3/303







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY MARCH 20, 2019                                                                                           EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting March 20, 2019 - Page 4 of 6 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.3.12. 
Western Design: Proposal: Replacing Carpet in 
Library at Harbor High School Multi Project 
Overhead 


 


 
 


 


8.4. Report of Closed Session Actions  


8.4.1. Report of Actions Taken in Closed Session  


   


8.5. Items to Be Transacted and/or Discussed  


8.5.1. Governance  


8.5.1.1. New Business: Proposed Map Drafts 
 


8.5.1.2. PUBLIC HEARING: Proposed Map Drafts 
 


8.5.1.3. PUBLIC HEARING: State Board of Education 
Waiver 


 


8.5.1.4. New Business: Resolution 24-18-19 Apply for 
State Board of Education Waiver 


 


  
 


8.5.2. Educational Services  


8.5.2.1. Staff Report: Local Control Accountability Plan: 
Multi-Tiered Systems of Support - Academic  


 


8.5.2.2. Staff Report: Local Control Accountability Plan: 
Multi-Tiered Systems of Support - School 
Climate & Culture 


 


8.5.2.3. New Business: Local Control Accountability Plan: 
Budget Recommendations 


 


   


8.5.3. Business Services  


   


8.5.4. Human Resources  


8.5.4.1. 
New Business: Resolution 26-18-19 Classified 
Employees Layoffs 


 


   


8.5.5. Governance/Superintendent  


4/303







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY MARCH 20, 2019                                                                                           EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting March 20, 2019 - Page 5 of 6 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.5.5.1. New Business: Resolution 25-18-19: Support for 
State English Learner Roadmap 


 


8.5.5.2. Discussion: Possible Items for Future Meeting 
Agendas 


 


 
 


 


9. Adjournment  


 10. Return to Closed Session (if necessary)  


11. Closed Session Action Report (if necessary) 
 


12. Adjournment 
 


  
 


 


The board book for this meeting, including this agenda and back-up materials, may be viewed or downloaded online: 
http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/board-of-education/agendas-&-minutes.html or may be viewed at the District 
Office, Superintendent’s Office, 133 Mission St. Ste. 100, Santa Cruz, CA 95006.    
 
Public Participation: 
All persons are encouraged to attend and, when appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cruz City Schools 
Board of Education. If you wish to speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the beginning of the meeting as 
any item, upon motion, may be moved to the beginning of the agenda.  Consideration of all matters is conducted in open 
session except those relating to litigation, personnel and employee negotiations, which, by law, may be considered in 
closed session. 
 
Translation Requests: 
Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis.  Please make advance arrangements with Sarah Miller by 
telephone at (831) 429-3410 extension 220. 
 
Las Solicitudes de Traducción: 
Traducciones del inglés al español y del español al inglés están disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva.  Por favor 
haga arreglos por anticipado con Sarah Miller por teléfono al numero (831) 429-3410 x220. 


 
Board Meeting Schedule Information 


1. The Regular Meeting on March 20, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


2. The Regular Meeting on April 17, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


3. The Governance Session on April 24, 2019, 6:00p.m., will be held in the Harbor High School Library,  
300 La Fonda Ave., Santa Cruz, CA. 


4. The Regular Meeting on May 15, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


5/303







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY MARCH 20, 2019                                                                                           EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting March 20, 2019 - Page 6 of 6 


5. The Regular Meeting on May 29, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


6. The Regular Meeting on June 12, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


7. The Regular Meeting on June 19, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


6/303







 


 


    
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING  


OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


March 6, 2019 
 
 
Convene Closed Session 
Superintendent Munro called this Closed Session Meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. in the Board Room of the 
Santa Cruz County Office of Education, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Public Comments for Closed Session Agenda Items   
None 
 
Convene Open Session 
Board President Tracy-Proulx called this Regular Meeting Open Session to order at 6:37 p.m. in the County 
Office of Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Attendance at Meeting 
Sheila Coonerty Jeremy Shonick Deanne Perez-Granados 
Patty Threet  Deb Tracy-Proulx Claudia Vestal   Cynthia Ranii 
 
Absent: Student Board Representative Christin Perez, Costanoa HS  
Absent: Student Representative Josh Selvartnam, Soquel High School  
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent 
Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 
Members of the Audience 
 
Welcome and Format 
Board President Tracy-Proulx welcomed those in attendance and explained the format used for this Regular 
Meeting of the Board of Education. 
 
Agenda Changes 


1. Item 7.1 Minutes February 6, 2019: Sentence strikeout regarding incorrect population information 
by presenter and demographer Doug Johnson. 


2. Item 8.1.1. Personnel Classified Release of temporary employees updated list 
3. Item 8.2.6. Educational Services/Soquel High School Overnight Field Trip: Change to the number of 


students attending (100 to 68) and change to the number of chaperones attending (10 to 9).  
4. Item 8.5.3.1. Resolution 18-18-19 Non Re-election of Certain Probationary Certificated Employees: 


Removed from agenda and Board book. 
5. 8.5.3. Human Resources: All item numbers under Human Resources were updated after removal of 


first item 8.5.3.1.  
6. Item 8.5.3.1. Resolution 23-18-19 Reduction of K12 Particular Kinds of Service: Page number 3, 


Exhibit A was revised. 


7/303







 


 


7. Item 8.5.4.2. Resolution 24-18-19 Consideration and Potential Adoption for Establishing Criteria for 
Developing Trustee Area Boundaries: Removed from agenda and Board book. 


 
 


PUBLIC COMMENTS 
   
None 


SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
Superintendent’s Report 
Superintendent Munro reported that she attended the Bite of Reality Assembly at Santa Cruz High School, 
where students participated in a simulation where they had to plan a monthly budget around a job with a 
salary, a family, and bills. Superintendent Munro also attended the Cabrillo Advancement Program celebration 
dinner to where students earn scholarships and are provided support to prepare for college. The 
Superintendent joined DELAC and PAC for an Emotional Health Night with workshops for family support. Over 
the weekend, she visited Lakeview Middle School for the Queer, Trans, & Allied Student Summit. 
Superintendent Munro was part of a planning meeting for the Youth Mental Health and Wellness Convening, 
scheduled for May 6, 2019. The Superintendent met with Gail Pellerin, County Registrar of Voters, to discuss 
the transition to Trustee Area Elections. Superintendent Munro and Assistant Superintendent Coito hosted a 
Parent Leader Dinner at Harbor High School to a great group of parents who provided input on LCAP. Finally, 
the Superintendent and Principal Greenlee hosted a Community Meeting at DeLaveaga to discuss safety issues 
on campus. Teachers participated to express their concerns, while the public gave input to address the issues. 
 


STUDENT BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORTS 
 
Student Board Member Report 
None 
 


BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORTS 
Board Members’ Reports 
Board Member Vestal reported that she visited a class of first and second graders at Monarch Elementary 
School, where the teacher wrote a grant to Schools Plus for alternative seating for the class.  
 
Board Member Coonerty reported that she attended an LGBTQ Task Force meeting and was very impressed to 
see that people are actively working to make changes in the community. She also reported that she is planning 
to attend an LGBTQ US History training.  
 
Board President’s Report 
Board President Tracy-Proulx attended the Santa Cruz County School Boards Association Meeting and 
presented on our district's process to move forward with trustee area elections. As a committee member, she 
also attended the first CSBA Legislative Committee meeting of the year in Sacramento. Board President Tracy-
Proulx is very excited that Harbor High School will be hosting its graduation ceremony on their new athletic 
field this year. 
 


 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 


MSP (Vestal/Perez) 7-0, the Board of Education approved the Minutes of February 6, 2019 as submitted. 
 


8/303







 


 


GENERAL PUBLIC BUSINESS 
 


8.1.  Consent Agenda  
8.1.1. Personnel Actions - Certificated, 8.1.2. Personnel Actions - Classified, 8.1.3. Purchase Orders, Bids & 
Quotes, 8.1.4. Warrant Register, 8.1.5. Disposition of Surplus Property, 8.1.6. Board Meeting Schedule 2019-
20, 8.2.1. Human Resources/District Office: New Classified Job Description: Office Assistant, 8.2.2. Human 
Resources/Special Education: Certificated Job Description: Compliance Coach, 8.2.3. Human Resources: New 
Certificated Job Description: International Baccalaureate Coordinator, 8.2.4. Educational Services/Costanoa 
High School: Overnight Field Trip, 8.2.5. Educational Services/Soquel High School: Consultant Services 
Agreement – National Coalition Building Institute Equity Workshop, 8.2.6. Educational Services/Soquel High 
School: Overnight Field Trip, 8.2.7. Educational Services/Curriculum: Consultant Services Agreement – 
American Council on the Teaching of Foreign Language, 8.2.8. Educational Services: 5-Year Tech Plan, 8.2.9. 
Business Services: Consultant Services Agreement – Sherrie Lust, 8.2.10. Business Services/Soquel High School: 
Mobile Home Security Agreement, 8.2.11. Business Services: School Services of California Proposal for Budget 
Review, 8.3.1. CRW Industries, Inc.: Change Order #1: Natural Bridges Modernization & Repairs - Lighting 
Retrofit, 8.3.2. Montano Plumbing: Proposal and Contract: Mission Hill Utility Infrastructure, 8.3.3. Swinerton: 
Lease-Lease Back Agreement Amendment: Soquel High School Modernization Phase 1, 8.3.4. XL Construction: 
Proposal and Contract: Harbor High School Weight Room Abatement 
 
After questions and comments from Trustees, Dr. Ranii motioned to pass the items for approval. Dr. Coonerty 
seconded the motion. The motion was approved by the following roll call vote: 


 
Roll Call Vote:   Vestal – Yes Shonick – Yes  Perez-Granados – Yes  Threet – Yes 
    Ranii – Yes  Coonerty – Yes Tracy-Proulx – Yes  


 
 
Closed Session Items 
8.4.1.  Report of Closed Session Actions 


1.  The Board of Education conferred with Legal Counsel regarding anticipated litigation: 
Number of Cases: 1: Case: California Voting Rights Act-Trustee Area Elections. 


2. The Board of Education will reconvene closed session after open session regarding 
Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, Retirements, Resignations and 
Appointments and Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint. 


 
 


ITEMS of BUSINESS to be TRANSACTED and/or DISCUSSED 
 


8.5.1.1.  Local Control Accountability Plan Foster Youth Update 
 Director of Student Services Greg O’Meara and Director of Student Support Services at the COE 


Dr. Michael Paynter presented an LCAP Foster Youth Update. The COE has implemented the 
FosterEd Program as part of the Foster Youth Services Coordinating Program, whose mission is 
to increase the educational outcomes of foster youth. Each foster youth is supported by an 
education team, Education Champion, and education plan. This program has assisted school 
teams in setting goals with students and participation of foster parents. Students have shown 
an increase in attendance and have a high rate of completing their educational goals. Trustees 
would like District-specific data provided in the future.  


9/303







 


 


There were no comments from the public. The item was informational in nature and did not 
require any action form the Board.  
 


8.5.2.1. Second Interim Report 
Mr. Gaffney reported that the 2018-19 Second Interim Financial Report is the final major review 
of the 2018-2019 fiscal year. This report presents a comparison between the original budget, 
the Board approved operating budget, revenue projections, expenditure projections, and 
projections of other sources of funding. Projected ending fund balances are presented for all 
funds. A Multi-Year projection is provided. The Second Interim Financial Report includes 
financial activity through January 31, 2019. Modifications of projected revenues and 
expenditures, since the First Interim Report, have been incorporated into the District’s Working 
Budget. These adjustments are based upon available revenue projections provided by Federal, 
State, and Local Governments. Salary and Benefit expenditures are projected using the Position 
Control Module provided by the Santa Cruz Office of Education. All other expenditure 
projections are a function of actual trends and encumbered expenditures. A positive 
certification is assigned as the District projections indicate that it will meet its financial 
obligations for the current and two subsequent fiscal years. Board Members asked questions, 
made comments and had discussion. 
   
Public Comment: The GSCFT President expressed concern about the total variance in benefits 
since the First Interim. She asked to review a report to verify employees plan choices.  
 


8.5.2.2. Bond Budget Update 
Mr. Mark Bartos of Bartos Architecture provided an update on the bond program budgets and 
expenditures by site.  Information included funds available to site, allocation based on latest 
cost estimates and prioritized projects by site teams, expenditures to date for a given project 
from November 2016 through January 2019, and percent expended by site per total site 
resource.  Board members asked questions and provided feedback and comments.  This item 
was informational in nature and no actions were taken by the Board of Education regarding this 
matter.   
 


8.5.2.5. XL Construction Corporation Amendment 1 to the Lease-Lease Back Agreement, Site Lease 
Agreement, Sublease and General Conditions for the Soquel and Harbor High School Pool 
Projects 
Director of Facility Services Trevor Miller presented Amendment 1 to the Lease-Lease Back 
Agreement for Soquel and Harbor High School pool projects. The original lease-lease back 
agreement was divided into two increments. Construction increment #1 for the Soquel High 
School Pool was approved by the board on May 9, 2018. Construction increment #2 for Harbor 
High School includes removal of the existing pool, its equipment building, infrastructure and the 
installation of a new 33 meter pool, weight room and basketball courts. Mr. Miller 
recommended approval of the XL Construction Corporation amendment 1 to the lease-lease 
back agreement, site lease agreement, sublease and general conditions for the Soquel and 
Harbor High School swimming pool projects.  
 
Public Comment: The first speaker indicated to the audience to point out that the students in 
representation were not only pool users, but music and band students as well. 


10/303







 


 


The second speaker said that his middle school-aged daughter is a swimmer, and plans to 
attend Harbor if there is a pool. He also shared that our middle schoolers have shown pride in 
their new facilities and that it is very important to them. Finally, the speaker shared that a lot of 
eighth grade students at Shoreline Middle School do not know how to swim and pool access in 
high school will benefit them. 
 
MSP (Perez-Granados/Coonerty) 7-0, the Board of Education approved the XL Construction 
Corporation amendment 1 to the lease-lease back agreement, site lease agreement, sublease 
and general conditions for the Soquel and Harbor High School swimming pool projects. 


 
 
8.5.2.3. PUBLIC HEARING regarding AB1200 Public Disclosure of Costs for Tentative Agreement with 


GSCFT for 2018-19 
Open: Board President Tracy-Proulx opened this Public Hearing at 8:25 p.m. 


 Public Comment: The GSCFT President publically thanked the two Hard-of-Hearing teachers 
and expressed appreciation for the recognition provided to them through this agreement.  


  Closed: Board President Vestal closed this Public Hearing at 8:26 p.m. 
 
8.5.2.4. AB1200 Public Disclosure of Costs for Tentative Agreement with GSCFT for 2018-19 


Following the Public Hearing, Mr. Gaffney recommended approval of the AB 1200 for the   
2018-19 Tentative Agreement.  There were no comments from the public.  
 
MSP (Coonerty/Vestal) 7-0, the Board of Education approved the AB 1200 for the SCCS/GSCFT 
Tentative Agreement 2018-19. 


 
8.5.2.6. Lease Purchase with Creative Bus Sales and Bus West 
 Assistant Superintendent Gaffney brought forth a lease purchase with Creative Bus Sales and 


Bus West for six busses, and the addition of one large electric bus at no cost.  
Mr. Gaffney recommended approval of the Lease Purchase with Creative Bus Sales and Bus 
West. 


  
 MSP(Coonerty/Perez-Granados) 7-0, the Board of Education approved the Lease Purchase with 


Creative Bus Sales and Bus West. 
 
8.5.3.1. Resolution 23-18-19 for Reduction of K12 Particular Kinds of Service 


Ms. Parks brought forth a Resolution for the Reduction of K12 Particular Kinds of Service as a 
preliminary layoff marker. Trustees asked questions and made comments. Ms. Parks 
recommended approval of the Resolution 23-18-19 for Reduction of K12 Particular Kinds of 
Service.  
 
Public Comment:  GSCFT President expressed concerns about the layoff trends over time. She 
stated that she has been working with Ms. Parks and Ms. Dominguez, and they have 
determined that some of these can still be mitigated, but because of the March 15th deadline 
set by the state, these decisions must be pushed forward now. She feels satisfied that the 
District is doing everything that can to limit the reductions. 
 


11/303







 


 


MSP (Coonerty/Perez-Granados) 7-0, the Board of Education approved the Resolution 23-18-19 
for Reduction of K12 Particular Kinds of Service. 
 
 


 
8.5.3.2. SCCCE Sunshine Articles for SCCS 2018-19 


Ms. Parks recommended approval of the Greater Santa Cruz Federation of Teachers’, K-12 Unit, 
2018-19 contract proposals to Santa Cruz City Schools for Sunshining.   
 
MSP (Perez-Granados/Ranii) 7-0, the Board of Education approved the GSCFT Sunshine Articles 
for SCCS for 2018-19. 


 
8.5.3.3. SCCS Sunshine Articles for SCCCE 2018-19 


Ms. Parks recommended approval of the Santa Cruz Council of Classified Employees, 2018-19 
contract proposals to Santa Cruz City Schools for Sunshining.   
 
MSP (Ranii/Perez-Granados) 7-0, the Board of Education approved the SCCCE Sunshine Articles 
for SCCS for 2018-19. 


 
8.5.4.1. PUBLIC HEARING for State Board of Education Waiver 


Open: Board President Tracy-Proulx opened this Public Hearing at 8:24 p.m. 
Superintendent Munro spoke on behalf of the hearing for the State Board of Education waiver. 
She stated that an election is required as part of the process of shifting to Trustee Area 
Elections, and this waiver would serve to eliminate the general election requirement. 
Superintendent Munro met with three different committees (The District Advisory Committee, 
DELAC, District Parent Leaders) who were in favor of the waiver. She also spoke to both Union 
presidents, and they provided support for moving forward with the waiver. People are in 
support of the District working to save the resources the election would cost for students, and 
trust that the public processes, public hearings, and community meetings will be adequate in 
getting input from our community.  
Public Comment: None 
Close: Board President Tracy-Proulx closed this Public Hearing at 8:43 p.m. 


 
8.5.4.2. Discussion: Possible Items for Future Meeting Agendas 


Trustees agreed to consider the following items for future discussion: Determine current and 
past practices for process of District when overstaffing occurs. 


  
9.  Adjournment of Meeting 


Board President Tracy-Proulx adjourned the Open Session Meeting at 8:44 p.m. 
 


10.  Return to Closed Session 
Board President Tracy-Proulx called the reconvening of the Closed Session Meeting to order at 
8:44 p.m. in the Board Room of the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, 400 Encinal Street, 
Santa Cruz, CA. 


 
11.   Closed Session Action Report 


Report of Closed Session Actions 


12/303







 


 


1. The Board of Education took action on Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, 
Retirements, Resignations and Appointments. 


2. Ms. Parks shared with the Trustees regarding Public Employee 
Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint 


 
12.   Adjournment 


As there was no further business for the Trustees, Board President Tracy-Proulx adjourned this 
Regular Meeting at 9:06 p.m. 


 
Board Meeting Schedule Information 


1. The Regular Meeting on March 6, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


2. The Regular Meeting on March 20, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


3. The Regular Meeting on April 17, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


4. The Governance Session on April 24, 2019, 6:00p.m., will be held in the Harbor High School Library,  
300 La Fonda Ave., Santa Cruz, CA. 


5. The Regular Meeting on May 15, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


6. The Regular Meeting on June 12, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


7. The Regular Meeting on June 19, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


 
 


* For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting 
recording: 


 
 http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html  
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent     Deborah Tracy-Proulx, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools     Board of Education 


13/303







AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.1 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


  


  
AGENDA ITEM:                    Certificated Personnel Actions 


  


DATE:                                   March 20, 2019 


  


FROM:                                  Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 


  


THROUGH:                          Kris Munro, Superintendent 


  


RECOMMENDATION: 


Approve the certificated personnel actions as submitted. 


  


BACKGROUND: 


The attached certificated personnel actions are submitted in accordance with District policy, 


California Education Code and the negotiated contract. 


  


This work is done in support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 


  


Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 


career opportunities. 


Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 


development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 


groups within the SCCS student community. 


Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 


effective teaching. 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


14/303







AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.1 


2018-2019 EXTRA WORK ASSIGNMENTS: 


 


Certificated: 


 


Andrew Castro, Flag Football Enrichment, Branciforte Middle, 2/20/19 - 5/8/19, not to exceed 88 hours. 


 


Dusten Dennis, Yearbook Enrichment, Branciforte Middle, 2/20/19 - 5/8/19, not to exceed 50 hours. 


 


Angela Dobkin, Elementary Enrichment Program Coordinator, 1/16/19 - 6/7/19, not to exceed 60 hours. 


 


Fabrice Hubert, ELPAC Testing, Bayview Elementary, 2/1/19 - 6/9/19, not to exceed 50 hours. 


 


Kaley Roth, Elementary Enrichment Program Coordinator, 1/16/19 - 6/7/19, not to exceed 60 hours. 


 


Jaime Young, Elementary Enrichment Program Coordinator, 1/16/19 - 6/7/19, not to exceed 60 hours. 


 


15/303







 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2  


 


  SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT           


 


 


AGENDA ITEM:         Classified Personnel Actions 


  


MEETING DATE:    March 20, 2019 


 


FROM:                    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 


  


THROUGH:             Kris Munro, Superintendent   


 


RECOMMENDATION: 


Approve the classified personnel actions as submitted. 


           


BACKGROUND: 


The attached lists of classified personnel actions are submitted in accordance with the District, 


SCCCE Agreement and the Merit Rules. 


  


This work is done in support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 


  


Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 


career opportunities.  


Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 


development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 


groups within the SCCS student community. 


Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 


effective teaching. 


  


 


 


  


  


 


  


  


 


16/303







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2  


CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE ACTIONS 


  


 


Reviewed by Classified Personnel Director: Keneé Houser 3/11/2019 


 


 •Employment Actions Concerning Regular Assignments• 


Probationary (New Hires or Temporary Employees Made Regular): 


Torres, Anthony, Education Technology Specialist - IT, 40hrs/12mos, effective 3/4/19 


Re-Hired:  


None 


Promotion: 


Nijor, Amrik, Attendance Technician - MH, promotion to School Administrative Ass’t IV - MHMS, 


40hrs/12mos, effective 3/4/19 


Reclassification: 


None 


Demotion:  


None 


Increase/Reduction in FTE - Months/Hours of Service: 


None 


Additional FTE/Position:  


None 


39-Mo Reinstatement: 


None 


39-Mo Reinstatement w/Increase in FTE:  


None 


63-Mo Reinstatement: 


None 


Transfer:  


Merkel, Andrea,  from Paraeducator/SPED - SQ, 25hrs/9mos to Paraeducator/SPED - SC, 


25hrs/9mos, effective 2/21/19   


Transfer W/Increase FTE: 


None 


 


17/303







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2  


Provisional Assignments (not to exceed 90 working days):  


None 


Leave of Absence:  


None 


Separation from Service: 


None 


Retirement: 


None 


•Limited Term Project (not to exceed 126 days)/Substitutes: • 


New Temporary Employees/EWA: 


Serna, Ilda, Childcare - Various Sites, Effective 2/25/19  (re-hire) 


Existing Temporary Employees/EWA: 


Hubert, Fabrice, Spring ELPAC Testing - CP, not to exceed 50hrs, 2/1/19 to 6/9/19 


Manzo, Dorthy, Paraeducator - HH, not to exceed 300hrs, 2/21/19 to 6/30/19 


Mendeza Chavez, Omar, Paraeducator - HH, not to exceed 200hrs, 2/21/19 to 6/30/19 


Perez, Ricardo, Head Custodian - MO, not to exceed 120hrs, 2/9/19 to 6/30/19 


Taylor, Kiefer, Accompanist - BM, not to exceed 30hrs, 12/1/18 to 6/30/19 


Taylor, Kiefer, Accompanist - SC, not to exceed 8hrs, 12/12/18 to 5/31/19 


Taylor, Kiefer, Accompanist - SQ, not to exceed 30hrs, 12/1/18 to 6/30/19 


Woods, Dexter, Substitute Custodian - MO - Various Sites, not to exceed 240hrs, 2/13/19 to 


2/20/19 


Existing Regular Employees/EWA: 


Jackson, Dwayne, School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 10hrs, 2/18/19 


Kimpton, Reyena, Paraeducator, Academic Intervention - BS, not to exceed 42hrs, 3/1/19 to 


6/6/19 


Marquez, Belinda, Paraeducator - After School Program - BV, not to exceed 63hrs, 1/28/19 to 


6/30/19 


North, Kristine, Paraeducator - SPED - SE, not to exceed 77hrs, 2/20/19 to 06/30/19 


Rodriguez, Leslie, Textbook/Media Assistant - SC, not to exceed 7hrs, 1/17/19 


Saarni, Richard, School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 20hrs, 2/18/19 to 6/30/19 


Sihler, Kris, Trainer/Lead Driver - TR, not to exceed 30hrs, 2/15/19 to 6/30/19 


Ungor, John, School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 20hrs, 2/18/19 to 6/30/19 


Vargas, Alexis, Paraeducator - GA, not to exceed 56hrs, 2/7/19 to 5/31/19  


18/303







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2  


Limited Term Retiree (not to exceed 960 hours per Government Code 21153): 


None 


Out of Class: 


None 


•Employment Actions Concerning Exempt Assignments from the Classified Service• 


Stipend: 


None  


•Eligibility Lists Established• 


School Administrative Assistant IV  


Office Assistant - District Office  


 


 


 


 


 


 


19/303







 


AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.3 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


 


AGENDA ITEM:  Purchase Orders, Quotes and Bids  
 
MEETING DATE:  March 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:     Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the purchase orders, quotes and bids as submitted. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
A detailed report is attached, listing purchase orders, quotes and bids that require Board 
approval prior to release to vendors.  The following definitions are provided to clarify the 
differences between purchase orders, quotes and bids: 
 


Purchase Orders: For purchases routine in nature and over $2,500 but under the amount 
required for a quote. 


 
Quotes:  When purchases will be $6,500 to $15,000 for contracted work or 


$12,000 to $92,600 for materials/supplies, several vendors are 
contacted for written quotations.  This process, though not as rigorous 
as a bid, insures that the District has involved more than one vendor 
and will secure a competitive price. 


 
Bids:  A formal process including advertising to notify prospective bidders, 


distribution of written specification regarding the work or materials, 
and compliance with legal guidelines for bidding, must be followed for 
contracted work projected to cost $15,000 and over, or for materials 
and supplies in the sum of $92,600 or over.  Bids are solicited from a 
wide pool of prospective vendors, thus assuring that when the award is 
made to the lowest responsible bidder, the District receives the best 
price available. 


 
 


This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 


20/303







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


March 20, 2019 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 
 


      


  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  


     


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


19-03141 Natural Bridges $6,000.00 Alioto Construction 
Inspection 


DSA Inspection – Restroom 
Building.  Bond, Measure B. 


19-03140 High Schools, 
Middle Schools 


$10,700.00 American Eagle Bleacher Service.  Restricted – 
Facility Use Fees. 


19-00640 B40 Middle $29,400.00 Andy’s Roofing Change Order 4 – Gym Gutters.  
Bond, Measure A. 


19-03204 Harbor High $7,065.36 B & H Photo Camera Equipment.  Perkins. 


19-00170 High Schools $16,000.00 Cintas Change Order to cover Custodial 
Supplies.  Unrestricted. 


19-00172 Various $5,000.00 Community Tree Service Change Order for Tree and Brush 
Removal.  Ongoing and Major 
Maint. 


19-00205 Various $5,000.00 Geo. H. Wilson Change Order for Services as 
needed.  Ongoing & Major 
Maint. 


19-03138 B40 Middle $6,110.00 M3 Environmental Hazmat Inspection – Music/MPR. 
Bond, Measure A. 


19-03133 B40SS $648,000.00 Monterey Peninsula Site Work for new Modular 
Classroom.  Bond, Measure B. 


19-03160 Santa Cruz High $11,200.00 Moore Twining Geotechnical Engineering – 
Building C & D.  Bond, Measure 
A. 


19-03125 B40 Middle $3,500.00 Palace Change Order for Instructional 
Supplies.  Title I. 


19-00058 Food Services $4,400.00 Roger’s Refrigeration Change Order – Refrigerator 
Repairs.  Cafeteria Fund. 


19-03145 Soquel High $3,096.22 Sandman Products Sand Pro Downdraft Sanding 
Station.  Perkins. 


19-03197 Harbor High $6,634.09 Santa Cruz County Soccer Confirming for Payment – 
Referees.  Measure O. 


19-03247 Santa Cruz High $7,556.15 Santa Cruz County Soccer Prepay – Boys and Girls 
Referees.  Measure O. 


19-03139 Bay View $785,000.00 Schreder & Brandt New Modular and Site Work.  
Bond, Measure B. 


21/303







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


March 20, 2019 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 
 


      


  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  


     


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


19-03134 Various $3,394.55 Secureall Corp. Magicard Printer & Proxy Cards.  
Bond, Measure A,B. 


 


22/303







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.4 
 


 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Warrant Register 
 
MEETING DATE:  March 20, 2019  
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the warrants on the Board Payment Report.  The report covers vendor warrants 
issued from 2/22/19 – 3/7/19. Hard copies of the report are available for public review at the 
Board Meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
  
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


23/303







24/303







25/303







26/303







27/303







28/303







29/303







30/303







31/303







32/303







33/303







34/303







35/303







  


                        


                      


                                                                                                                          AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.5  
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Approval of Budget Transfers  
 
MEETING DATE:   March 20, 2019 
  
FROM:               Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent of Business 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve 2018-2019 budget transfers dated from 2/1/19 through 2/28/19, BE#197736 – 
203357.  The report follows.  Hard copy of the report is available for public review at the Board 
Meeting. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Ed Code 42600 requires that the Board approve budget transfers that are made between major 
expense object codes, or from reserves. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
  


36/303







37/303







38/303







39/303







40/303







41/303







42/303







43/303







44/303







45/303







46/303







47/303







48/303







49/303







50/303







51/303







52/303







53/303







54/303







55/303







56/303







57/303







58/303







59/303







60/303







61/303







62/303







63/303







64/303







65/303







66/303







67/303







68/303







69/303







70/303







71/303







72/303







73/303







74/303







75/303







76/303







77/303







78/303







79/303







80/303







81/303







82/303







83/303







                        


                                       AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.6. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Physical Education Waiver -- Soquel High School 
      
MEETING DATE:  March 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve a Physical Education Requirement Waiver for a student at Soquel High School who 
cannot participate in Physical Education.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
A Soquel High School senior with a diagnosis of Scoliosis experiences a severe loss of range of 
motion in her neck, torso, and elbow joints, as well as significantly reduced lung capacity. The 
student has been receiving ongoing treatment from OrthoNorCal for the past eight years. She 
has undergone five spinal surgeries, including spinal fusion in 2012. These surgeries have left 
her with titanium rods and hooks in her spine. Her treating orthopedist is requesting that the 
student be excused from all Physical Education requirements due to her restricted movement 
and lung capacity. 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
  


84/303







85/303







86/303







        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Overnight Field Trip—Alternative Family Education  
      
MEETING DATE:  March 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the overnight field trip request for Alternative Family Education students to travel to 
Ashland, Oregon from May 28, 2019 to May 31, 2019.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Alternative Family Education requests approval to travel to Ashland, Oregon to attend the 
Oregon Shakespeare Festival from Monday May 28, through Friday May 31. This year, twenty-
seven students and twelve chaperones are looking forward to viewing performances of William 
Shakespeare’s As You Like It and Macbeth, the world premiere of Between Two Knees, and the 
musical Hairspray. The students will travel to the festival via charter bus from Villa Express 
Charter and will stay at the Bard’s Inn in Ashland, Oregon. They will miss school all day, Monday 
through Friday, the week of May 28. 
 
The Oregon Shakespeare Festival is a major theatre arts organization that offers a diversity of 
plays and performances. In addition to witnessing world class performances, students will also 
have the opportunity to attend workshops at Southern Oregon University and have a discussion 
with an actor from the company. Alternative Family Education staff strongly support this trip. 
Previous trips to the Oregon Shakespeare Festival have been successful and have led to 
increased interest and appreciation for all aspects of literature and theatre. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
No district funds are being used for this trip. All transportation, food, etc. costs will be covered 
through fundraising and donations.   
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:   
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 


87/303







2019 Shakespeare Ashland Trip Itinerary 
  AFE’s 20th Anniversary Trip!  


Monday May 27th (Memorial Day Monday)- Thursday Night May 30th/Friday May 31st  
  
Tentative Trip Overview  
Mon May 27th –   8:30 am departure 


Brunch at Granzella's in Williams  
Evening Meeting at the Bard’s Inn  


 
Tues. May 28th – 9:30 am  Workshop with OSF Acting/Education staff 


2:00 pm Stage Combat Workshop at Southern Oregon University 
3:00 pm Actors Lab at Southern Oregon University 
7:00 pm Prologue 
8:00 pm Macbeth -Shakespearean Tragedy in the Elizabethan Allen Theater  


             directed by José Luis Valenzuela  
 


Wed. May 29th  – 10 am Ye Old Project Runway at Southern Oregon University 
12:30 am Prologue 
1:30  pm Between Two Knees –World Premiere by 1491 directed by  


    California Shakespeare Theater Artistic Director Eric Ting 
7:00 Prologue 
8:00 As You Like It- Shakespeare Comedy directed by Rosa Joshi  


 
Thurs. May 30th  – Pack up 


  10:30 Discussion with an actor 
 1:30 Hairspray- Director Christopher Liam Moore based on John Waters’ film  


  Departure around 4:30 pm after the show. Arrival in Santa Cruz around 1am Friday. 
 
      Trip includes: 


Tickets  
Workshops at OSF & SOU and Prologues* 
Bus transportation *  
3 nights stay in the Bard’s Inn  
* shared costs to be divided among participants 


      Estimated total is between $405-$450 plus meals. 
      (Adults pay $100 extra for their rooms)  


 
Timeline of Due Dates 


Thurs. Feb 14th Mandatory Lunch Meeting for all participants and their parents 
      Down payment of $300 is due 


Thurs. March 21st - April 11th Remainder Payment is due -Final amount will be announced on March 15th  
 
        Thank you to Lori Kintz for volunteering again to keep track of our finances! 


88/303







 
 


 


AFE Oregon Shakespeare Festival Trip 
Behavior Agreement Contract  


 
  


1. I will cooperate fully, and conduct myself in a safe and respectful manner with the AFE community on the bus and in 
    Ashland following directions from teachers, prefects, teaching assistants, chaperones, hotel staff, and Oregon 
    Shakespeare Festival (OSF) staff at all times. 
  
2.  I will let my prefect and/or adult chaperone know where I am at all times.  
  
3. Buddy System- I will be with at least one other person from our group (preferably with two or more) when I step off the 
     bus or walk around Ashland. I will be inclusive and do my best to make sure no one is left out.  
  
4.  Except when we are out an OSF evening performance I must be at the hotel from 10 pm to 7 am  and in my hotel room 
      by 11pm or earlier if told so. 
  
5.  I will respect that we are staying at a hotel that is open to the public and that the people coming there would like to 
     have a pleasant experience. I will be aware of the hotel rules, follow them, and be financially responsible if there are 
     any damages to the room. 
  
6.  I will respect my roommates’, prefect’s, chaperones’ and other hotel guests’ rights to a full night’s sleep.  
     Quiet time in the rooms and hotel hallways is from 10:00 pm to 7:00 am. 
 
7.  I will respect the fact that one’s right to watch TV or be on the computer is subservient to anyone else’s right to sleep. 
     The hotel room is first and foremost a place to rest. 
  
8.  I will not be physically intimate with others and refrain from public display of affection (friendly hugs are acceptable).  
     Couples may not be in rooms alone with each other. 
  
9.  I understand and accept that as a member of the AFE community in Ashland, I have the responsibility to others in 
       the community to behave in such a way that we continue to be welcome at the Oregon Shakespeare Festival,  
       Southern Oregon University and the Bard’s Inn.  
  
10.  I will follow theater etiquette and OSF guidelines and respect the fact that we will be attending plays with people 
       who have paid high prices for their seats and have every right to be able to concentrate on the plays. 
  
11.   I will not drink, smoke, use unapproved prescription or nonprescription drugs on this trip, nor engage in activities 
        that are not appropriate on a school trip. 
  
12.   I realize and accept that this is an educational field trip and all school rules will be in effect throughout this trip. 
 
      I understand that if any of the agreements are broken that my parents will be notified  
      and asked to make arrangements for me to return home. 
  
 


Student Name (please print)  _________________________________ 
  


Student Signature ____________________________________ Date ________________ 
  


Parent Signature  ____________________________________ Date ________________ 


89/303







        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Overnight Field Trip—Harbor High School Band 
      
MEETING DATE:  March 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Cotio, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the overnight field trip request for Harbor High School Band students to travel to 
Southern California from April 25, 2019 to April 28, 2019.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Harbor High School band requests approval to travel to Los Angeles, California and 
surrounding areas for the Worldstrides Heritage Music Festival, Hollywood from April 25-28, 
2019. Students will miss part of school on Thursday, April 25 and all day Friday, April 26. Fifty-
six students will attend, accompanied by eleven chaperones and one staff member. Students 
will travel by charter bus from LuxBus, and will stay at the Warner Center Marriott in Woodland 
Hills, California. 
 
The Harbor High School band is a fast growing program that has tripled in size in the last three 
years.  Likewise, the musical prowess of the group has continued to grow.  This new found 
success is due to many reasons, with one being the ability to travel to and participate in music 
festivals. Traveling to various music festivals gives performing arts students the opportunity to 
see and hear creative, intellectual, and expressive music performances, which expands and 
enriches their learning outside of the conventional classroom. Along with providing an 
exceptional educational experience, this trip also provides a tremendous opportunity to 
develop an ensemble and camaraderie, which will enhance performance experiences, self-
confidence, and promote a stronger sense of self.  Last year’s trip to Los Angeles inspired the 
students to reach new levels and grow in ways they had not done before. The Worldstrides 
Heritage Festival is unparalleled in terms of the number and quality of instrumental and choral 
performing groups from throughout the country.  It is truly an outstanding educational 
experience and Harbor High would appreciate the opportunity to continue to expose their 
students to this.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$24,000. Costs will be covered through fundraising and donations. 
 
 
 
 


90/303







        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.2. 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
 
 


91/303







Date Depart from Depart 


time 


Destination Arrival 


time 


Destination 


address 


Phone number Travel 


time 


Comments 


4/25/19 Harbor High School 1:30pm Warner Center 


Marriott Woodland 


Hills 


9:30pm 21850 W. Oxnard 


Street, Woodland Hills, 


CA 91367 


 8 hours  


4/26/19 Warner Center 


Marriott Woodland 


Hills  


9:00am Plaza del Sol 
Performance Hall 
 


9:15am Cal State Northridge 


18111 Nordhoff Street 


Northridge, CA 91330 


 15min  


4/26/19 Plaza del Sol 
Performance Hall 


 Lunch Stop      


4/26/19 Lunch Stop  Griffith Park  4730 Crystal Springs 


Dr, Los Angeles, CA 


90027 


   


4/26/19 Griffith Park  Grammy Museum  800 W Olympic Blvd, 


Los Angeles, CA 


90015 


   


4/26/19 Grammy Museum 8:00pm Medieval Times 


 


6:00pm 7662 Beach Blvd, 


Buena Park, CA 


90620 


   


4/26/19 Medieval Times 


 


8:30pm Warner Center 


Marriott Woodland 


Hills 


9:30pm 21850 W. Oxnard 


Street, Woodland Hills, 


CA 91367 


 50 mins  


4/27/19 Warner Center 


Marriott Woodland 


Hills 


 Universal Theme 


Park 


 100 Universal City 


Plaza, Universal City, 


CA 91608 


   


4/27/19 Universal Theme 


Park 


 Warner Center 


Marriott Woodland 


Hills 


 21850 W. Oxnard 


Street, Woodland Hills, 


CA 91367 


 20min  


4/28/19 Universal Studios 


 


10:00am Harbor High 


School 


5:30pm  300 La Fonda Ave, 


Santa Cruz, CA 


95062 


   


 


92/303







AGENDA ITEM:  8.2.3 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Revised Facility Use Fee Schedule  
 
MEETING DATE:  March 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Revised Facility Use Fee Schedule. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
At the 1/16/19 meeting, the Board received a staff report on proposed revisions to the Facility 
Use Fee Schedule.   A community forum was held for stakeholders on 2/21/19.  Organizations 
and individuals who had previously rented facilities from the District were invited to discuss the 
proposed changes and to hear the rationale for the changes.  Feedback from the forum will 
help fine tune the billing process. 
 
In conjunction with the Civic Center Act and Board Policy 1330, the District is eligible to offset 
costs for District facilities associated with use by outside organizations and individuals.  The last 
time the District made minor adjustments to the fee schedule was in 2014.  Rates for most 
items, including charges for custodians, have not been increased since 2009.  Since 2009, the 
costs of electricity and gas have increased, the cost of water has doubled, and salary increases 
have been given to employees.  The draft facility fee schedule reflects changes to the rates for 
employees, and for particular facilities. 
 
Board Policy 1330 states the following: 
In determining direct costs to be charged for community use of each, or each type of, school 
facility or grounds, the Superintendent or designee shall calculate, in accordance with 5 
CCR 14038, the community's proportionate share of the following costs: (Education Code 38134; 
5 CCR 14038-14041) 
1. Capital direct costs calculated in accordance with 5 CCR 14039, including the estimated costs 
of maintenance, repair, restoration, and refurbishment of non-classroom space school facilities 
or grounds… 
2. Operational direct costs calculated in accordance with 5 CCR 14040, including estimated costs 
of supplies, utilities, janitorial services, other services of district employees and/or contracted 
workers, and salaries and benefits paid to district employees directly associated with the 
administration of the Civic Center Act to operate and maintain school facilities and grounds. 
Direct cost fees shall not be discounted to any group or organization except when the discount is 
specifically authorized in the adopted fee schedule. (5 CCR 14041) 
Groups shall be charged fair rental value when using school facilities or grounds for 


93/303







AGENDA ITEM:  8.2.3 
 


entertainment or meetings where admission is charged or contributions solicited and net 
receipts are not to be expended for charitable purposes or for the welfare of the district's 
students. (Education Code 38134) 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Potential increase in facilities revenue to be determined. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
  


94/303







Board Policy 1330 Board approved 3/20/19


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Multi-Purpose Room $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Field $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00


Kitchen $0.00 $20.00 $35.00 $52.00 $50.00


Library $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Multi-Purpose Room $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Parking Lot / per day $0.00 $100.00 $150.00 $200.00


Outdoor Basketball Court $0.00 $10.00 $20.00 $30.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Baseball/Softball (Artificial Turf) $0.00 $30.00 $40.00 $75.00 $100.00


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Field (Artificial Turf) $0.00 $40.00 $60.00 $90.00 $100.00


Track $0.00 $40.00 $50.00 $75.00 $50.00


Gym $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $75.00 $50.00


Kitchen $0.00 $25.00 $45.00 $67.00 $50.00


Library $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Locker/Shower $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Parking Lot / per day $0.00 $100.00 $150.00 $200.00


Multi-Purpose Room $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $50.00


Outdoor Basketball Court / each $0.00 $10.00 $20.00 $30.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Field $0.00 $30.00 $45.00 $67.00 $50.00


Library $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Multi-Purpose Room $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Blacktop Area $0.00 $10.00 $20.00 $30.00


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Field $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $50.00


Kitchen $0.00 $20.00 $35.00 $52.00 $50.00


SCCS  Facility Use Fee Schedule


DeLaveaga Elementary School


Facility - Adult Education


Bay View Elementary School


Branciforte Middle School


Branciforte Small Schools


Rates effective July 1, 2019


Rev. 032019 95/303







Library $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Multi-Purpose Room $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $50.00


Parking Lot / per day $0.00 $100.00 $150.00 $200.00


Outdoor Basketball Courts $0.00 $10.00 $20.00 $30.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Field $0.00 $15.00 $20.00 $30.00 $50.00


Kitchen $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $50.00


Library $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Multi-Purpose Room $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $50.00


Outdoor Basketball Courts $0.00 $10.00 $20.00 $30.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Baseball Batting Cage $0.00 $10.00 $15.00 $20.00 $25.00


Baseball Field Artificial Turf $0.00 $40.00 $60.00 $100.00 $100.00


Big Gym $0.00 $35.00 $50.00 $100.00 $50.00


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Artificial Turf Field $0.00 $50.00 $75.00 $100.00 $100.00


Kitchen $0.00 $25.00 $45.00 $67.00 $50.00


Library $0.00 $30.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Locker/Shower $0.00 $30.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Multi-Purpose Room $0.00 $25.00 $35.00 $45.00 $50.00


Parking Lot $0.00 $15.00 $20.00 $25.00


Running Track $0.00 $40.00 $50.00 $75.00 $50.00


Small Gym $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $50.00 $50.00


Softball Batting Cage 1 $0.00 $5.00 $10.00 $15.00 $25.00


Softball Batting Cage 2 $0.00 $5.00 $10.00 $15.00 $25.00


Softball Field 1 $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $50.00 $50.00


Softball Field 2 $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $50.00 $50.00


Stadium lighting per hour $0.00 $20.00 $20.00 $40.00


Stadium / grandstands only $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $75.00


Swimming Pool $0.00 $60.00 $110.00 $150.00 $100.00


Winter startup fee $400.00 $400.00 $400.00


Pool lighting $0.00 $10.00 $10.00 $20.00


Tennis Court $0.00 $5.00 $10.00 $20.00 $25.00


Parking Lot / per day $0.00 $100.00 $150.00 $200.00


Theatre / plus staff $0.00 $45.00 $75.00 $100.00 $50.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Artificial Turf Socer/Baseball $0.00 $40.00 $75.00 $100.00 $100.00


Gym $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $75.00 $50.00


Kitchen $0.00 $25.00 $45.00 $67.00 $50.00


Gault Elementary School


Harbor High School


Mission Hill Middle School


Rev. 032019 96/303







Library $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Locker/Shower $0.00 $20.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Multi-Purpose Room $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $50.00


Outdoor Basketball Courts $0.00 $10.00 $15.00 $25.00


Running Track $0.00 $40.00 $50.00 $75.00 $50.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Blacktop Area


Field $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $50.00


Classroom


Gym $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $75.00 $50.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Auditorium / plus staff $0.00 $60.00 $90.00 $150.00 $50.00


Baseball Batting Cage $0.00 $5.00 $10.00 $15.00 $25.00


Baseball Field $0.00 $30.00 $50.00 $75.00 $50.00


Basketball Court A $0.00 $30.00 $50.00 $75.00 $50.00


Basketball Court B $0.00 $30.00 $50.00 $75.00 $50.00


Bleachers $0.00 $15.00 $20.00 $30.00


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Field (artificial turf) $0.00 $50.00 $75.00 $100.00 $100.00


Gym / both $0.00 $50.00 $80.00 $120.00 $75.00


Kitchen $0.00 $25.00 $45.00 $67.00 $50.00


Library $0.00 $30.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Locker/Shower $0.00 $30.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Running Track $0.00 $40.00 $50.00 $75.00 $50.00


Softball Batting Cage $0.00 $5.00 $10.00 $19.00 $25.00


Softball Field $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Stadium / grandstands only $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $75.00


Stadium lighting per hour $0.00 $20.00 $20.00 $40.00


Swimming Pool $0.00 $60.00 $100.00 $120.00 $100.00


Winter startup fee $500.00 $500.00 $500.00


Pool lighting $0.00 $10.00 $10.00 $20.00


Tennis Court $0.00 $5.00 $10.00 $9.00 $25.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Baseball Batting Cage $0.00 $5.00 $10.00 $15.00 $25.00


Baseball Field $0.00 $20.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Field grass $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00


Stadium Field (Artificial Turf) $0.00 $60.00 $85.00 $100.00 $100.00


Gym $0.00 $30.00 $50.00 $75.00 $50.00


Kitchen $0.00 $22.50 $45.00 $67.00 $50.00


Library $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Natural Bridges Elementary School


Santa Cruz High School


Soquel High School


Rev. 032019 97/303







Locker/Shower $0.00 $20.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Multi-Purpose Room $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $50.00


Parking Lot $0.00 $15.00 $20.00 $30.00


Running Track $0.00 $40.00 $50.00 $75.00 $50.00


Softball Batting Cage 1 $0.00 $15.00 $20.00 $30.00 $25.00


Softball Batting Cage 2 $0.00 $15.00 $20.00 $30.00 $25.00


Softball Field 1 $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $50.00


Softball Field 2 $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $50.00


Softball Field 3T $0.00 $10.00 $20.00 $30.00 $25.00


Stadium / grandstands only $0.00 $20.00 $40.00 $75.00


Stadium lighting per hour $0.00 $20.00 $20.00 $40.00


Swimming Pool $0.00 $80.00 $130.00 $150.00 $100.00


Winter startup fee $600.00 $600.00 $600.00


Pool lighting $0.00 $10.00 $10.00 $20.00


Parking Lot / per day $0.00 $100.00 $150.00 $200.00


Tennis Court $0.00 $10.00 $15.00 $20.00 $25.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Field upper $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $25.00


Field lower $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $25.00


Kitchen $0.00 $20.00 $35.00 $52.00 $50.00


Library $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Multi-Purpose Room $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Parking Lot / per day $0.00 $100.00 $150.00 $200.00


Outdoor Basketball Courts $0.00 $10.00 $20.00 $30.00


As available Deposit


Chairs, each $0.00 $3.00 $4.00 $6.00


Tables, each $0.00 $5.00 $7.00 $10.00


Other equipement - TBD $0.00


Projector / TV / sound system-per use $30.00 $35.00 $50.00


Other Charges per hour 2 hour min Deposit


Custodian 0.00 47.00 47.00 60.00


Food Service 0.00 45.00 45.00 60.00


Maintenance & Operations 0.00 47.00 47.00 60.00


AV Technician / lighting tech 0.00 31.00 31.00 40.00


Theatre Manager 0.00 35.00 35.00 45.00


Masonite floors for theatre 0.00 200.00 200.00 250.00


Processing Fee per request for change 0.00 10.00 10.00 25.00


   profit groups serving District students and families and providing free services to low income children


* Credit Card use will add a 3.5% proccessing fee


* Reduced fee status granted annually by Assistant Superintendent,  Business Services or Designee for non-


Westlake Elementary School


Rev. 032019 98/303







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.4 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 


AGENDA ITEM:  Consultant Services Agreement - Ruben J. Parra 


MEETING DATE:  March 20, 2019 


FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Asst. Superintendent, Business Services   


THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Consultant Services Agreement with Ruben J. Parra, Instructor #5276, and 
California Department of Education Certified Driver Instructor, to train and certify the Santa 
Cruz City Schools Trainer/Lead Driver. This will fulfill the application requirements for 
enrollment in the California Department of Education’s Office of School Transportation’s Bus 
Driver Instructor Certification Course.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Trainer/Lead Driver job duties require a ‘Driver Instructor’ Certification.  Obtaining this 
Certification is a three part process.   


1. The Trainer/Lead Driver completes the application process to attend the Instructor 
Certification Course in Sacramento.  The application process requires the services of a 
California Certified Bus ‘Driver Instructor’.  The ‘Driver Instructor’ provides 40-50 hours 
of training and certifies the applicant to attend the Calif. Dept. of Ed.’s Bus Driver 
Instructor Certification Course.    


2. The applicant is interviewed by the Office of School Transportation, and if accepted, the 
applicant is assigned to a Certification Course hosted in Sacramento.  


3. Once the enrollee has successfully completed the three-week course, the graduate is 
certified as a ‘Driver Instructor’ and given an identification number.   


This Consultant Services Agreement provides the required support to complete part 1, the 
application process. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Not to exceed $3,750.00, Home to School Transportation funds (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 


Prepared by Emil F. Frates, Transportation Supervisor  
 


99/303







100/303







101/303







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.5. 
  


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 


 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Memorandum of Understanding with Pacific Collegiate School  
 
MEETING DATE: March 20, 2019 
 
FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the revised Memorandum of Understanding between Santa Cruz City Schools and 
Pacific Collegiate School regarding use of District facilities. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This is an extension of the District’s existing Memorandum of Understanding with Pacific 
Collegiate School for use of athletic and visual and performing arts spaces on District property.  
The Memorandum of Understanding was previously brought to the Board for approval on 
February 20, 2019.  The revision requested by the Board in Section 1.a has been incorporated.  
This new agreement will take effect when the current agreement expires on June 30, 2019. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Pacific Collegiate School will pay 25% of the direct cost for each use of District Facilities, with 
related hourly costs to open and close the facility.   
 


 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


102/303







 


 


MOU District Facilities – March 2019  


Page 1 of 12 


MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 


 


THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (“MOU”) is made on this ___ day of 


October  2018, by and between the Santa Cruz City Schools, a California public school district, 


(“District”); and Pacific Collegiate School, a California public charter school (“PCS” or “Charter 


School”).  The District and PCS are jointly referred to herein as “the Parties.” 


RECITALS: 


WHEREAS, District, a school district existing under the laws of the State of California 


owns certain real property located at 255 Swift Street, Santa Cruz, California 95060 (“Natural 


Bridges site”), and at 415 Walnut Avenue, Santa Cruz, California 95060 (“Santa Cruz High 


School”); 


WHEREAS, PCS is a charter school organized under the laws of the State of California 


that operates education programs for students in grades 7-12;  


WHEREAS, an existing Facilities Use Agreement was entered into by and between PCS 


and the District in October, which shall terminate on June 30, 2019 (“FUA”); 


WHEREAS, PCS has athletic and visual and performing arts facility needs, and PCS 


seeks use of space both for practice, performance and competition related activities.   


WHEREAS, District desires to grant PCS use of District facilities for their athletic and 


visual and performing arts programs for practices, performances and competition related 


activities.  


NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and agreements hereinafter set 


forth, District and PCS enter into this MOU and agree as follows: 


1. USE OF DISTRICT FACILITIES FOR ATHLETICS, DRAMA, AND MUSICAL 


PERFORMANCES. 


(a) Santa Cruz High School Gymnasium and Pool:  Beginning June 30, 2019, 


District does hereby grant to PCS use of the Santa Cruz High School Gymnasium 


and Pool, with the following prioritization:  (1) Santa Cruz City Schools students 


receive first priority for Gymnasium or Pool use; (2) PCS students receive next 


priority over other users for Gymnasium or Pool use.   


PCS agrees to schedule its usage of the Gymnasium of Pool with Santa Cruz High 


School. 


Further, PCS agrees to and shall secure appropriate insurance coverage, including 


for competition-related activities, naming the District as an additional insured in 


connection with its use of the Gymnasium or Pool. 


103/303







 


 


MOU District Facilities – March 2019  


Page 2 of 12 


District agrees that, if the Santa Cruz High School Gymnasium and Pool are 


unavailable to PCS for the date and time that PCS wishes to use either facility, 


then PCS may use another District facility, provided that such facility is not being 


used by District students for that date and time. 


(b) Natural Bridges Gymnasium and Playing Fields:  Beginning June 30, 2019, 


District does hereby grant to PCS use of the Natural Bridges site as follows: 


(i) The Natural Bridges Gymnasium shall be made available to PCS on a 


priority basis between the hours of 3:30 p.m. through 5:30 p.m., and 


further subject to the agreement between the City School District and the 


City Parks and Recreation Department granting the Parks Recreation 


Department priority use of the Gymnasium Tuesdays, Wednesdays, and 


Thursdays from 6:30 p.m. to 10:30 p.m., and Saturdays from 9:00 a.m. to 


12:00 p.m. 


(ii) The Natural Bridges Playing Fields shall be made available to PCS on a 


priority basis for activities during the weekday hours of 3:30 p.m. until 


5:30 p.m. 


PCS shall schedule its usage of the Natural Bridges site with the Santa Cruz City 


Schools Facilities Department. 


PCS shall be subject to and compliant with both the Civic Center Act (as set forth 


in Section 13 below) and the Reciprocal Facilities Use Agreement and the 


addendum thereto (“Reciprocal Use Agreement”) that exists between the City of 


Santa Cruz and the District as they relate to the Natural Bridges site. 


Further, PCS agrees to and shall secure appropriate insurance coverage naming 


the District as an additional insured in connection with its use of the Natural 


Bridges Gymnasium or Playing Fields. 


2. WAIVER OF PROPOSITION 39.  PCS hereby waives any and all rights under 


Education Code section 47614 and the implementing regulations (“Proposition 39”) for 


the duration that this MOU is in force and effect. It is understood and acknowledged by 


the parties that PCS’s use of the District Facilities is not being granted pursuant to 


Proposition 39 and is not governed by Proposition 39, its implementing regulations, or 


case law interpreting same.  Rather, the parties agree that this MOU is made in-lieu of 


PCS’s Proposition 39 facility requests.    Both parties agree that PCS will be eligible to 


apply for District owned facility space for its programs pursuant to Education Code 


Section 47614 (“Proposition 39”) for the 2024-2025 school year. 


3. ENROLLMENT.  PCS agrees that it shall not preferentially target in-District students, 


that it shall continue recruitment outside the District and that it shall continue to employ a 


weighted lottery through the Term of this MOU.   


4. RECRUITMENT.  PCS shall seek to increase diversity by pursuing students from a 


wider area, including areas outside the District’s boundaries.  PCS shall demonstrate 


104/303







 


 


MOU District Facilities – March 2019  


Page 3 of 12 


meaningful recruitment in:  Watsonville, Scotts Valley, and San Lorenzo Valley.  PCS 


shall furnish to the District PCS recruitment materials and enrollment data related to 


grade and residence. 


5. TERM.  The MOU shall be in full force an effect from June 30, 2019, and unless sooner 


terminated under any provision hereof, this MOU shall end on June 30, 2024. 


Either PCS or the District may terminate this MOU and extinguish the rights and 


obligations of the Parties hereunder upon providing the other party with three hundred 


and sixty five (365) days prior written notice of said termination. 


6. PURPOSE OF MOU.  The purpose of this MOU is for District to provide PCS the use of 


the District Facilities as described above.  PCS warrants that it will conduct its Program 


in compliance with all applicable law, rules, and/or regulations. 


7. FEES.  For and in consideration of the use of the District Facilities, PCS agrees to pay the 


District the fees (“Fees”) as follows:  


(a) The Fees for each use of District Facilities (as defined herein) shall be 25% of the 


direct cost, with related hourly costs to open and close the facility, as set forth in 


Exhibit A (rate sheets), attached hereto.  


(b) PCS shall pay promptly to District the Fees on the first day of each month in 


advance during the Term and any Extended Term of the MOU, without deduction, 


setoff, prior notice or demand. 


(c) PCS acknowledges that late payment by PCS to District of the Fees and other 


sums due hereunder will cause District to incur costs not contemplated by this 


MOU, the exact amount of which will be extremely difficult to ascertain.  Such 


costs include, but are not limited to, processing and accounting charges.  


Accordingly, if District does not receive any payment of Fees or any other sum 


due from PCS by 4:00 p.m. within ten (10) days after such amount is due, PCS 


shall pay to District, as additional fees (“Additional Fees”), a late charge equal to 


five percent (5%) of such overdue amount or the maximum amount allowed by 


law, whichever is less.  The parties hereby agree that such late charges represent a 


fair and reasonable estimate of the costs District will incur by reason of late 


payment by PCS.  Acceptance of such late charge by District shall in no event 


constitute a waiver of PCS’s default with respect to such overdue amount, nor 


prevent District from exercising any of its other rights and remedies granted 


hereunder. 


(d) Late charges, costs and expenses which PCS is required to pay hereunder, 


together with all interest and penalties that may accrue thereon in the event of 


PCS’s failure to pay such amounts, and all reasonable damages, and costs and 


expenses which District may incur by reason of any Event of Default of PCS, 


shall be deemed to be Additional Fees and, in the event of nonpayment by PCS, 


105/303







 


 


MOU District Facilities – March 2019  


Page 4 of 12 


District shall have all of the rights and remedies with respect thereto as District 


has for the nonpayment of the Fees.  


8. INDEMNITY 


(a) PCS shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the District, its trustees, officers, 


employees and agents against and from any and all claims, demands, actions, 


suits, losses, liability, expenses and costs for any injury, death or damage to any 


person or property arising from the PCS’s use of the District Facilities or from the 


conduct of its business or from any activity, work, or other things done, permitted 


or suffered by PCS in or about the District Facilities, excepting those claims, 


demands, actions, suits, losses, liability, expenses and costs arising out of or 


relating to obligations of District as they relate to the District Facilities or caused 


by the active negligence or wrongful intentional actions of the District, its 


employees, agents, officers and invitees. 


 


 PCS shall further indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the District against and 


from any and all claims arising from any breach or default in the performance of 


any obligation on PCS’s part to be performed under the terms of this MOU, or 


arising from any act, omission or negligence of the PCS, or any officer, agent, 


employee, guest, or invitee of PCS, and from all costs, attorney’s fees, and 


liabilities incurred in or about the defense of any such claim or any action or 


proceeding brought thereon. If any action or proceeding is brought against District 


by reason of such claim (regardless of whether a claim is filed), PCS upon notice 


from District shall defend the same at PCS’s expense.  PCS shall give prompt 


written notice to District’s Risk Manager in case of casualty or accidents in or on 


the District Facilities. 


(b) District shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend PCS, its trustees, officers, 


employees and agents against and from any and all claims, demands, actions, 


suits, losses, liability, expenses and costs for any injury, death or damage to any 


person or property arising from the District’s active negligence or wrongful 


intentional acts, excepting those claims, demands, actions, suits, losses, liability, 


expenses and costs arising out of or relating to obligations of PCS as they relate to 


the District Facilities or caused by the negligence or intentional acts of the PCS, 


its employees, agents, officers and invitees. 


9. DEFAULT. 


(a) Events of Default.  A breach of this MOU shall exist if any of the following 


events (hereinafter referred to as “Event of Default”) shall occur: 


(i) Default in the payment when due of any installment of Fees or other 


payment required to be made by PCS hereunder, and the default shall not 


have been cured within ten (10) business days after receipt of written 


notice from District; 


106/303







 


 


MOU District Facilities – March 2019  


Page 5 of 12 


(ii) PCS’s failure to perform any other term, covenant or condition contained 


in this MOU and the failure shall have continued for thirty (30) days after 


receipt of written notice of such failure is given to PCS unless, however, 


the Parties agree in writing that the nature of the default is such that the 


same cannot reasonably be cured within said 30 day period. Charter 


School shall not be deemed to be in default if Charter School shall within 


such agreed period commence such cure and thereafter diligently 


prosecute the same to completion.  


(iii) Any case, proceeding, or other action against PCS or any guarantor of 


PCS’s obligations hereunder shall be commenced seeking to have an order 


for relief entered against it as debtor, or seeking reorganization, 


arrangement, adjustment, liquidation, dissolution or composition of it or 


its debts under any law relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization 


or relief of debtors, or seeking appointment of a receiver, trustee, 


custodian or other similar official for it or for all or any substantial part of 


its property, and the case, proceeding or other action (i) results in the entry 


of an order for relief against it which is not fully stayed within seven (7) 


business days after the entry thereof or (ii) remains undismissed for a 


period of forty-five calendar (45) days. 


(iv) Revocation, non-renewal or termination of the PCS charter or cessation of 


the PCS program for any reason; however, the Charter School shall not be 


in default under this provision pending any appeal, statutory or otherwise, 


of a non-renewal or revocation of its charter; 


(v) The failure by PCS to utilize the District Facilities for the sole purpose of 


the safe operation of athletics, drama, and musical performances, as 


authorized by this MOU or additional need, as authorized by the District. 


(b) Remedies.  Upon any Event of Default, District shall have the following 


remedies, in addition to all other rights and remedies provided by law, to which 


District may resort cumulatively, or in the alternative: 


(i) Termination.  District may terminate this MOU by giving PCS written 


notice of termination.  On the giving of the notice all of PCS’s rights in the 


District Facilities shall terminate.  This MOU may also be terminated by a 


court order or judgment specifically providing for termination.  Any 


termination under this section shall not release PCS from the payment of 


any sum then due District or from any claim for damages or rent 


previously accrued or then accruing against PCS.  In no event shall any 


one or more of the following actions by District constitute a termination of 


this MOU: 


 


  (a) maintenance and preservation of the District Facilities; 


  (b) efforts to relet the District Facilities; 


107/303







 


 


MOU District Facilities – March 2019  


Page 6 of 12 


(c) appointment of a receiver in order to protect District’s interest 


hereunder; 


(d) consent to any assignment of this MOU by PCS, whether pursuant 


to provisions hereof concerning assignment or otherwise; or, 


(e) any other action by District or District’s agents intended to 


mitigate the adverse effects from any breach of this MOU by PCS; 


(f) authorization of use of the District Facilities; 


(g) entry upon the District Facilities. 


(ii) Damages.  In the event this MOU is terminated, District shall be entitled 


to damages in the following sums: 


 


(a) the worth at the time of award of the unpaid Fees which has been 


earned at the time of termination; plus, 


(b) the worth at the time of award of the amount by which the unpaid 


Fees which would have been earned after termination until the time 


of award exceeds the amount of such rental loss that PCS proves 


could have been reasonably avoided; plus, 


(c) the worth at the time of award of the amount by which the unpaid 


Fees for the balance of the term after the time of award exceeds the 


amount of such loss that PCS proves could be reasonably avoided; 


and, 


(d) any other amount necessary to compensate District for all 


detriment proximately caused by PCS’s failure to perform PCS’s 


obligation under this MOU, or which in the ordinary course of 


business would be likely to result therefrom including, without 


limitation, the following:  (i) expenses for cleaning, repairing or 


restoring the District Facilities; (ii) real estate broker’s fees, 


reasonable advertising costs and other expenses of reletting the 


District Facilities; (iii) costs of carrying the District Facilities and 


insurance premiums thereon, utilities and security precautions; (iv) 


expenses in retaking possession of the District Facilities; (v) 


reasonable attorneys’ fees and court costs; and, (vi) any 


unamortized real estate brokerage commission paid in connection 


with this MOU; 


(e) the “worth at the time of award” of the amounts referred to in 


Subsections (a) and (b) of this section, is computed by allowing 


interest at the rate of Bank of America’s or its successor reference 


rate plus three percent (3%) per annum.  The “worth at the time of 


award” of the amounts referred to in Subsection (c) of this section 


is computed by discounting such amount at the discount rate of the 


Federal Reserve Board of San Francisco at the time of award plus 


one percent (1%).  The term “rent” as used in this section shall 


include all sums required to be paid by PCS to District pursuant to 


the term of this MOU.  


108/303







 


 


MOU District Facilities – March 2019  


Page 7 of 12 


10. NOTICES.  Any notices which either of the parties hereto is required or may desire to 


send or deliver to give to the other party, shall be mailed, certified mail, return receipt 


requested, postage prepaid, or delivered, with all charges prepaid, to such other party at 


the address listed below, or to such address as either party may designate to the other 


from time to time in writing. 


 


District:  Superintendent  


  Santa Cruz City Schools 


  405 Old San Jose Road 


  Soquel, CA 95073 


  


PCS:  Board President 


  Pacific Collegiate Charter School 


  255 Swift Street 


Santa Cruz, CA 95060 


  


The date of service of any notice mailed as aforesaid, shall be deemed to be five (5) days 


after the date of such mailing, and the date of service of any notice hand delivered, as 


aforesaid, shall be deemed to be one (1) day after delivery thereof to the delivery service 


office. 


11. ATTORNEYS’ FEES.  In the event either party shall bring any action or legal 


proceeding for damages for any alleged breach of any provision of this MOU, to recover 


fees or possession of the District Facilities, to terminate this MOU, or to enforce, protect 


or establish any term or covenant of this MOU or right or remedy of either party, the 


prevailing party shall be entitled to recover, as a part of the action or proceeding, 


reasonable attorneys’ fees and court costs, including attorneys’ fees and costs for appeal, 


as may be fixed by the court or jury.  The term “prevailing party” shall mean the party 


who received substantially the relief requested, whether by settlement, dismissal, 


summary judgment, judgment, or otherwise. 


12. CIVIC CENTER ACT COMPLIANCE.  After 5:30 pm during the week and all day on 


weekends and holidays, and subject to the use limitations and priorities identified in 


Section 1, the District Facilities shall be subject to use by the public pursuant to the Civic 


Center Act and/or any joint use or recreational program use that has been established by 


the District.  Civic Center Act use requests for use of the District Facilities by users other 


than PCS shall be evaluated and handled by the District.   If not otherwise scheduled for 


use under the Civic Center Act, the play areas shall be open to the public at all times that 


school is not in session and in accordance with the normal practices of the District. 


13. TITLE TO PROPERTY.  The parties acknowledge that title to the District Facilities is 


held by the District and shall remain in the District at all times. 


14. ASSIGNMENT/SUBLEASING.  PCS may not assign and/or sublet this MOU or any 


portion of the District Facilities.  Any assignment or sublease in violation of this Section 


shall be void and of no effect.  PCS agrees that the District may assign any interest in this 


109/303







 


 


MOU District Facilities – March 2019  


Page 8 of 12 


MOU, as required or desired at any time, provided that the assignment will not disturb 


PCS’s possession and quiet enjoyment of the District Facilities.  


15. MUTUAL COVENANTS.  The parties covenant, warrant and represent that they each 


respectively have full right and power to execute and perform this MOU, and to grant and 


accept the estate demised herein. 


16. BROKERAGE.  District and PCS agree that no broker was involved in any of the 


negotiations that preceded this MOU or in the procuring of same.  District and PCS agree 


that if any claim be made for brokerage fees by, through or on account of any acts of 


District or PCS or their respective representatives, the party upon whose acts such claim 


is made will hold the other harmless from any and all liabilities and expenses in 


connection therewith. 


17. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS.  District and PCS agree as follows with respect to the 


existence or use of Hazardous Materials on the District Facilities including any 


improvements made by PCS. 


(a) Definition.  As used herein, the term “Hazardous Materials” means any hazardous 


or toxic substance, material or waste that is or becomes regulated by any local 


governmental authority, the State of California or the United States Government.  


The term “Hazardous Materials” includes, without limitation, petroleum products, 


asbestos, PCB’s, and any material or substance which is (i) defined as hazardous 


or extremely hazardous pursuant to Title 22 of the California Code of 


Regulations, Division 4.5, Chapter 11, Article 4, Section 66261.30 et seq. (ii) 


defined as a “hazardous waste” pursuant to Section (14) of the federal Resource 


Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. 6901 et. seq. (42 U.S.C. 6903), or (iii) 


defined as a “hazardous substance” pursuant to Section 10 of the Comprehensive 


Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. 9601 et. 


seq. (42 U.S.C. 9601).  As used herein, the term “Hazardous Materials Law” shall 


mean any statute, law, ordinance, or regulation of any governmental body or 


agency (including the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, the California 


Regional Water Quality Control Board, and the California Department of Health 


Services) which regulates the use, storage, release or disposal of any Hazardous 


Material. 


(b) Hazardous Materials.  PCS shall not cause or permit any Hazardous Material to be 


generated, brought onto, used, stored, or disposed of in or about the District 


Facilities and any improvements by PCS or its agents, employees, contractors, 


subtenants, or invitees, except for limited quantities of standard office, classroom 


and janitorial supplies (which shall be used and stored in strict compliance with 


Hazardous Materials Laws).   


(c) Responsibility of PCS.  From and after the Commencement Date, PCS shall be 


solely responsible for all environmental matters predicated upon its use of the 


District Facilities.  Without limiting the preceding sentence: 


110/303







 


 


MOU District Facilities – March 2019  


Page 9 of 12 


(i) Any handling, transportation, storage, treatment, disposal or use of 


Hazardous Materials in or about the District Facilities by PCS shall strictly 


comply with all applicable Hazardous Materials Laws and the provisions 


of this MOU. 


(ii) It shall be the duty of PCS to insure that its activities on the District 


Facilities are at all times in strict compliance with all Hazardous Materials 


Laws and that all activities conducted in or about the District Facilities and 


improvements comply in every respect with all applicable Hazardous 


Materials Laws including, but not limited to, all notification, record 


keeping, and maintenance requirements of such Hazardous Materials 


Laws. 


(iii) During the Term of this MOU, PCS shall have and discharge all of the 


duties and obligations of the owner of the District Facilities and 


improvements under applicable Hazardous Materials Laws related to 


PCS’s use thereof, including, but not limited to, response and remediation; 


and 


(iv) PCS shall be responsible for all liability to third parties who may be 


harmed or claim harm resulting from an environmental condition on or 


about any PCS improvements to the District Facilities. 


(d) Indemnification.  PCS shall indemnify, defend upon demand with counsel 


reasonably acceptable to District, and hold harmless District and its trustees, 


agents and employees from and against any liabilities, losses, claims, damages, 


lost profits, consequential damages, interest, penalties, fines, monetary sanctions, 


attorneys’ fees, experts’ fees, court costs, remediation costs, investigation costs, 


and other expenses which result from or arise in any manner whatsoever out of 


PCS’s use, storage, treatment, transportation, release, or disposal of Hazardous 


Materials on or about the District Facilities.  


(e) PCS Action.  If the presence of Hazardous Materials on the District Facilities 


brought on to the District Facilities or allowed upon the Premised by PCS results 


in contamination or deterioration of water or soil resulting in a level of 


contamination greater than the levels established as acceptable by any 


governmental agency having jurisdiction over such contamination, and if PCS is 


responsible therefore under applicable law, then PCS shall, at its sole cost and 


expense, promptly take any and all action necessary to investigate and remediate 


such contamination if required by law or as a condition to the issuance or 


continuing effectiveness of any governmental approval which relates to the use of 


the District Facilities and any improvements or any part thereof.  PCS shall 


further be solely responsible for, and shall defend, indemnify and hold District 


and its agents harmless from and against, all claims, costs and liabilities, 


including attorneys’ fees and costs, arising out of or in connection with any 


111/303







 


 


MOU District Facilities – March 2019  


Page 10 of 12 


investigation and remediation required hereunder to return the District Facilities 


and any improvements to full compliance with all Hazardous Materials Laws. 


(f)  Notice.  District and PCS shall each give written notice to the other as soon as 


reasonably practicable of (i) any communication received from any governmental 


authority concerning Hazardous Materials which relates to the District Facilities 


and any improvements, and (ii) any contamination of the District Facilities and 


any improvements by Hazardous Materials which constitutes a violation of any 


Hazardous Materials Law.  PCS may use small quantities of household chemicals 


such as adhesives, lubricants, and cleaning fluids in order to conduct its Program 


on the District Facilities and such other Hazardous Materials as are necessary for 


the operation its Program.  At any time during the Term, PCS shall, within thirty 


(30) days after written request therefore received from District, disclose in writing 


all Hazardous Materials that are being used by PCS on the District Facilities and 


any improvements, the nature of the use, and the manner of storage and disposal. 


(g) Monitoring Wells.  In the event that District has reason to believe that Hazardous 


Materials may be present on the District Facilities as a result of PCS’s use during 


the Term of this MOU and in violation of this MOU, District may require that, at 


PCS’s expense, testing wells be installed on the District Facilities and any 


improvements, at locations determined by District and PCS, and may cause the 


ground water to be tested to detect the presence of Hazardous Materials by the use 


of such tests as are then customarily used for such purposes.  PCS shall comply 


promptly with any such request. 


(h) Survival.  The obligations of PCS under this Section shall survive the expiration 


or earlier termination of this MOU.  The rights and obligations of District and 


PCS with respect to issues relating to Hazardous Materials are exclusively 


established by this Section.  In the event of any inconsistency between any part of 


this MOU and this Section, the terms of this Section shall control. 


(i) In the event that PCS causes any Hazardous Materials to be released, spilled or 


otherwise exposed through its use and occupancy of the District Facilities, such 


as, but not limited to remodeling or other construction, PCS shall be solely 


responsible for all costs associated with the proper handling, mitigation, 


remediation and disposal of the Hazardous Materials and all related cleanup. 


18. SUCCESSORS.  This MOU contains all of the covenants, agreements, representations 


and provisions thereof and shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the respective 


heirs, legal representatives, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of the 


parties hereto, except as provided in the preceding Section.  


19. WAIVER.  The waiver by District or PCS of any breach of any term, covenant or 


condition or any subsequent breach of the same or any other term, covenant or condition 


herein contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver of the term, covenant or condition or 


any subsequent breach of the same or any other term, covenant or condition herein 


contained. 


112/303







 


 


MOU District Facilities – March 2019  


Page 11 of 12 


20. CAPTIONS.  The captions and section headings used in this MOU are for the purposes of 


convenience only.  They shall not be construed to limit or extend the meaning of any part 


of this MOU.  


21. TIME OF THE ESSENCE.  Time is of the essence for the performance of each term, 


covenant and condition of this MOU. 


22. AGREEMENT TO TERMS.  The Parties hereby expressly agree to all terms and 


conditions set forth in this MOU and recognize that the terms and conditions are not 


severable.  The Parties further waive any claim of illegality of any and all terms and 


conditions in this MOU and neither Party shall be permitted to disregard or otherwise fail 


to comply with any term in this MOU on the ground that such term is illegal and/or 


invalid.    


23. APPLICABLE LAW.  This MOU shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the 


laws of the State of California. 


24. JOINT AND SEVERAL LIABILITY.  If PCS is more than one person or entity, each 


such person or entity shall be jointly and severally liable for the obligations of PCS 


hereunder. 


25. NO SUBORDINATION.  PCS agrees that District’s fee interest shall at all times be and 


remain unsubordinated to any leasehold mortgage which may be imposed upon PCS’s 


leasehold interest hereunder or upon the improvements, and that nothing contained in this 


MOU shall be construed as an agreement by District to subject its fee interest to any lien.  


Nothing in this Section or in any other provision of this MOU shall be construed as an 


agreement by District to subordinate its fee interest in the District Facilities to any 


leasehold mortgage or other lien or right.  No leasehold mortgage shall impair District 


from enforcing its rights and remedies herein or by law provided. 


26. COOPERATION WITH OTHER OCCUPANTS OF THE PROPERTY.  It is understood 


and recognized by PCS that the District Facilities will be used by other parties, including 


District, and PCS shall cooperate with the other parties in reaching amicable 


arrangements concerning the schedule of use as identified in Section 1 herein. 


27. INDEPENDENT STATUS.  This MOU is by and between two independent entities and 


is not intended to and shall not be construed to create the relationship of agent, servant, 


employee, partnership, joint venture, or association. 


28. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This MOU constitutes the entire understanding between the 


parties hereto and no addition to or modification of, any term or provision of this MOU 


shall be effective until set forth in writing signed by both District and PCS.   


29. SEVERABILITY.  If one or more of the provisions of this Agreement is found to be 


invalid, illegal, or unenforceable by a court of law, except for the payment of rent, the 


Agreement will remain in effect without that offending clause through the duration of the 


Term of this Agreement, at which time this Agreement will terminate, unless renegotiated 


113/303







 


 


MOU District Facilities – March 2019  


Page 12 of 12 


otherwise by the Parties.  PCS agrees that all clauses in this Agreement are valid, legal, 


and enforceable, and also agrees that it will not challenge the enforceability of any clause 


in this Agreement.   Should a third party challenge any of the terms of this Agreement, or 


initiate litigation that calls into question the validity, legality or enforceability of any of 


the clauses in this Agreement, PCS agrees to defend in good faith any challenge brought 


against the Agreement. 


30. MEDIATION.  All claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in relation to the 


interpretation, application or enforcement of this MOU may be submitted to mediation as 


the first method of resolution if agreeable to both Parties.   


 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, District and PCS have executed this MOU, through their 


respective officers or representatives, duly authorized, as of the day and year shown below. 


 


District:     PCS: 


Santa Cruz City Schools,    Pacific Collegiate Charter School 


a California public school district  a public charter school 


    


By:    __________________________    By:____________________________ 


 


Name:  ________________________  Name:_________________________ 


 


Title: __________________________  Title:___________________________ 


 


Date:  _________________________    Date:__________________________ 


 


Attachments: 


Exhibit “A” 


114/303







EXHIBIT A


Board Policy 1330 Board approved 3/20/19


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Multi-Purpose Room $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Field $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00


Kitchen $0.00 $20.00 $35.00 $52.00 $50.00


Library $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Multi-Purpose Room $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Parking Lot / per day $0.00 $100.00 $150.00 $200.00


Outdoor Basketball Court $0.00 $10.00 $20.00 $30.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Baseball/Softball (Artificial Turf) $0.00 $30.00 $40.00 $75.00 $100.00


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Field (Artificial Turf) $0.00 $40.00 $60.00 $90.00 $100.00


Track $0.00 $40.00 $50.00 $75.00 $50.00


Gym $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $75.00 $50.00


Kitchen $0.00 $25.00 $45.00 $67.00 $50.00


Library $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Locker/Shower $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Parking Lot / per day $0.00 $100.00 $150.00 $200.00


Multi-Purpose Room $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $50.00


Outdoor Basketball Court / each $0.00 $10.00 $20.00 $30.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Field $0.00 $30.00 $45.00 $67.00 $50.00


Library $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Multi-Purpose Room $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Blacktop Area $0.00 $10.00 $20.00 $30.00


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Field $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $50.00


Kitchen $0.00 $20.00 $35.00 $52.00 $50.00


SCCS  Facility Use Fee Schedule


DeLaveaga Elementary School


Facility - Adult Education


Bay View Elementary School


Branciforte Middle School


Branciforte Small Schools


Rates effective July 1, 2019


Rev. 032019 115/303







EXHIBIT A


Library $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Multi-Purpose Room $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $50.00


Parking Lot / per day $0.00 $100.00 $150.00 $200.00


Outdoor Basketball Courts $0.00 $10.00 $20.00 $30.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Field $0.00 $15.00 $20.00 $30.00 $50.00


Kitchen $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $50.00


Library $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Multi-Purpose Room $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $50.00


Outdoor Basketball Courts $0.00 $10.00 $20.00 $30.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Baseball Batting Cage $0.00 $10.00 $15.00 $20.00 $25.00


Baseball Field Artificial Turf $0.00 $40.00 $60.00 $100.00 $100.00


Big Gym $0.00 $35.00 $50.00 $100.00 $50.00


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Artificial Turf Field $0.00 $50.00 $75.00 $100.00 $100.00


Kitchen $0.00 $25.00 $45.00 $67.00 $50.00


Library $0.00 $30.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Locker/Shower $0.00 $30.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Multi-Purpose Room $0.00 $25.00 $35.00 $45.00 $50.00


Parking Lot $0.00 $15.00 $20.00 $25.00


Running Track $0.00 $40.00 $50.00 $75.00 $50.00


Small Gym $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $50.00 $50.00


Softball Batting Cage 1 $0.00 $5.00 $10.00 $15.00 $25.00


Softball Batting Cage 2 $0.00 $5.00 $10.00 $15.00 $25.00


Softball Field 1 $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $50.00 $50.00


Softball Field 2 $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $50.00 $50.00


Stadium lighting per hour $0.00 $20.00 $20.00 $40.00


Stadium / grandstands only $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $75.00


Swimming Pool $0.00 $60.00 $110.00 $150.00 $100.00


Winter startup fee $400.00 $400.00 $400.00


Pool lighting $0.00 $10.00 $10.00 $20.00


Tennis Court $0.00 $5.00 $10.00 $20.00 $25.00


Parking Lot / per day $0.00 $100.00 $150.00 $200.00


Theatre / plus staff $0.00 $45.00 $75.00 $100.00 $50.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Artificial Turf Socer/Baseball $0.00 $40.00 $75.00 $100.00 $100.00


Gym $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $75.00 $50.00


Kitchen $0.00 $25.00 $45.00 $67.00 $50.00


Gault Elementary School


Harbor High School


Mission Hill Middle School


Rev. 032019 116/303







EXHIBIT A


Library $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Locker/Shower $0.00 $20.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Multi-Purpose Room $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $50.00


Outdoor Basketball Courts $0.00 $10.00 $15.00 $25.00


Running Track $0.00 $40.00 $50.00 $75.00 $50.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Blacktop Area


Field $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $50.00


Classroom


Gym $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $75.00 $50.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Auditorium / plus staff $0.00 $60.00 $90.00 $150.00 $50.00


Baseball Batting Cage $0.00 $5.00 $10.00 $15.00 $25.00


Baseball Field $0.00 $30.00 $50.00 $75.00 $50.00


Basketball Court A $0.00 $30.00 $50.00 $75.00 $50.00


Basketball Court B $0.00 $30.00 $50.00 $75.00 $50.00


Bleachers $0.00 $15.00 $20.00 $30.00


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Field (artificial turf) $0.00 $50.00 $75.00 $100.00 $100.00


Gym / both $0.00 $50.00 $80.00 $120.00 $75.00


Kitchen $0.00 $25.00 $45.00 $67.00 $50.00


Library $0.00 $30.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Locker/Shower $0.00 $30.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Running Track $0.00 $40.00 $50.00 $75.00 $50.00


Softball Batting Cage $0.00 $5.00 $10.00 $19.00 $25.00


Softball Field $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Stadium / grandstands only $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $75.00


Stadium lighting per hour $0.00 $20.00 $20.00 $40.00


Swimming Pool $0.00 $60.00 $100.00 $120.00 $100.00


Winter startup fee $500.00 $500.00 $500.00


Pool lighting $0.00 $10.00 $10.00 $20.00


Tennis Court $0.00 $5.00 $10.00 $9.00 $25.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Baseball Batting Cage $0.00 $5.00 $10.00 $15.00 $25.00


Baseball Field $0.00 $20.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Field grass $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00


Stadium Field (Artificial Turf) $0.00 $60.00 $85.00 $100.00 $100.00


Gym $0.00 $30.00 $50.00 $75.00 $50.00


Kitchen $0.00 $22.50 $45.00 $67.00 $50.00


Library $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Natural Bridges Elementary School


Santa Cruz High School


Soquel High School


Rev. 032019 117/303







EXHIBIT A


Locker/Shower $0.00 $20.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Multi-Purpose Room $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $50.00


Parking Lot $0.00 $15.00 $20.00 $30.00


Running Track $0.00 $40.00 $50.00 $75.00 $50.00


Softball Batting Cage 1 $0.00 $15.00 $20.00 $30.00 $25.00


Softball Batting Cage 2 $0.00 $15.00 $20.00 $30.00 $25.00


Softball Field 1 $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $50.00


Softball Field 2 $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $50.00


Softball Field 3T $0.00 $10.00 $20.00 $30.00 $25.00


Stadium / grandstands only $0.00 $20.00 $40.00 $75.00


Stadium lighting per hour $0.00 $20.00 $20.00 $40.00


Swimming Pool $0.00 $80.00 $130.00 $150.00 $100.00


Winter startup fee $600.00 $600.00 $600.00


Pool lighting $0.00 $10.00 $10.00 $20.00


Parking Lot / per day $0.00 $100.00 $150.00 $200.00


Tennis Court $0.00 $10.00 $15.00 $20.00 $25.00


Hourly rates for Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4 Deposit


Classroom $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $20.00


Field upper $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $25.00


Field lower $0.00 $20.00 $30.00 $45.00 $25.00


Kitchen $0.00 $20.00 $35.00 $52.00 $50.00


Library $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Multi-Purpose Room $0.00 $25.00 $40.00 $60.00 $50.00


Parking Lot / per day $0.00 $100.00 $150.00 $200.00


Outdoor Basketball Courts $0.00 $10.00 $20.00 $30.00


As available Deposit


Chairs, each $0.00 $3.00 $4.00 $6.00


Tables, each $0.00 $5.00 $7.00 $10.00


Other equipement - TBD $0.00


Projector / TV / sound system-per use $30.00 $35.00 $50.00


Other Charges per hour 2 hour min Deposit


Custodian 0.00 47.00 47.00 60.00


Food Service 0.00 45.00 45.00 60.00


Maintenance & Operations 0.00 47.00 47.00 60.00


AV Technician / lighting tech 0.00 31.00 31.00 40.00


Theatre Manager 0.00 35.00 35.00 45.00


Masonite floors for theatre 0.00 200.00 200.00 250.00


Processing Fee per request for change 0.00 10.00 10.00 25.00


   profit groups serving District students and families and providing free services to low income children


* Credit Card use will add a 3.5% proccessing fee


* Reduced fee status granted annually by Assistant Superintendent,  Business Services or Designee for non-


Westlake Elementary School


Rev. 032019 118/303







 


AGENDA ITEM 8.2.6 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 


AGENDA ITEM: Consultant Services Agreement - Jerene Lacey 


MEETING DATE: March 20, 2019 


FROM:   Patrick K. Gaffney, Asst. Superintendent, Business Services    


THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Retroactively approve the Consultant Service Agreement with Jerene Lacey for assistance with 
the District’s Second Interim Report. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Jerene Lacey is a past Finance Director of Santa Cruz City SChools, and is well acquainted with 
Digital Schools and the District’s budget.  Due to absences in the finance department, staff 
needed additional support to complete the second interim budget report. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Not to exceed $2,000  LCFF Base (Unrestricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
 


119/303







120/303







121/303







                            


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: AV NOW Contract and Proposal for the Sound System at Harbor 
High School Athletic Field 


      
MEETING DATE:  March 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the AV NOW contract and proposal for the sound system at the Harbor High School 
athletic field.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of professional services to connect the old field sound system to the new 
spectator sound system.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$3,726.62 Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.01% of the overall site budget. 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


122/303







123/303







124/303







125/303







126/303







Quote


Order Number: 131853


BILL TO ADDRESS
Harbor High School
405 Old San Jose Road
Soquel, CA  95073  USA


SHIP TO ADDRESS
Harbor High School
300 La Fonda Ave
Santa Cruz, CA  95062-1431  USA


Lift to be provided by Santa Cruz City Schools
Scope of work:


    •  AV Now to pick up amplifiers from site and take back to office to bench test for signal pass through.
    •  Speakers to be left in place. 
    •  Speaker wires will be tested to identify what wire goes to what speaker. 
    •  Once wires are identified speaker wires can be connected to amps, signal will be passed through the to the speakers
to test for audio signal for each of the speakers (AV Now will not be able to verify that all drivers in the speakers work
without doing a proper bench tech on each speaker). 
    •  Once signal test is complete speakers will be aimed to service desired areas for field coverage.
    •  Jupiter processor will be commissioned and attenuated for optimal audio quality with new and pre-existing speakers
integrated into a cohesive audio system to support the football field. 


**Any additional hours beyond original projection will be billed at $150 per hour. 


Memo:


Customer PO # Payment Terms Shipping Terms Shipment Sales Rep FOB Point


Net 30 WHITE GLOVE Karl


AV Now
100 Pioneer St.
Suite B
Santa Cruz, CA 95060
(800) 491-6874
sales@avnow.com


Qty Part Number Part Name Unit Price Total Price


1 Jupiter 4 Software-controlled 4-input 4-zone mixer $ 1,369.00 $ 1,369.00


4 XLR-6 XLR 6' Cable $ 9.99 $ 39.96


2 NL4MMx Speakon to Speakon Barrel Adaptor $ 10.00 $ 20.00


6 NL4FX-SPKN-
CONNECTOR


SpeakOn- connector-4 Conductor adapter for
speaker wires


$ 9.99 $ 59.94


March 04, 2019 Page 1
127/303







Qty Part Number Part Name Unit Price Total Price


1 White Glove AV Now White Glove Service Fee $ 300.00 $ 300.00


Memo:
Assistant at 4 hours of labor


1 White Glove AV Now White Glove Service Fee $ 1,800.00 $ 1,800.00


Memo:
System engineer labor estimated at 12 hours of
labor.


Page 2


Every product we sell except Special Orders* comes with our 30-day Money Back Guarantee. If
you’re not satisfied, return the item(s) in unused new condition, with all original packaging,
warranty cards & manuals within 30 days of purchase for a full refund (less s & h). Minimum
25% restocking fee will be charged for incomplete, scratched or damaged products or
packaging. Returns must have a Return Authorization number to be processed. Claims for
missing or damaged in transit items must be received within 7 business days of delivery.
*Special Order Items may not be returned. Visit www.avnow.com/customer-service for info
about our Free Shipping at $50 offer and shipping timeframes.


March 04, 2019


$3,726.62


Tax:


Total:


$137.72


Subtotal: $3,588.90


128/303







                            


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Belli Architectural Group Agreement Amendment for the 
Theater/Fine Arts/Music Building Modernization Phase 2 Project 
at Harbor High School  


      
MEETING DATE:  March 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Belli Architectural Group agreement amendment for the theater/fine arts/music 
building modernization phase 2 at Harbor High School.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Board previously approved a Master Agreement for Architectural Services with Belli 
Architectural Group on 12/14/16. This agreement amendment for the Harbor High School 
modernization phase 2 includes the theater, fine arts and music building. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$328,831.00, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 1.10% of the overall site budget 
 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


129/303







130/303







131/303







132/303







133/303







134/303







                            


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.3. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Butano Geotechnical Engineering, Inc. Change Order #1 to Harbor 
High School Swimming Pool Project 


      
MEETING DATE:  March 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Butano Geotechnical Engineering, Inc. change order #1 to the Harbor High School 
swimming pool project. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This change order consists of additional geotechnical exploration and drilling for lighting at the 
swimming pool. This further investigation is intended to try to mitigate excessive soil work. The 
previously approved contract amount was $13,300.00 and the new total contract, including this 
change order, will be $20,315.00. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Change Order #1     $7,015.00, (52.74% increase to the contract), Measure A Funds (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


135/303







136/303







137/303







138/303







139/303







140/303







141/303







142/303







143/303







144/303







145/303







                            


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.4. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: CRW Industries, Inc. Change Order #1 to Branciforte Small Schools 
Modernization Phase 1 Waterproofing Project 


      
MEETING DATE:  March 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve CRW Industries, Inc. change order #1 to the Branciforte Small Schools’ Modernization 
Phase 1 waterproofing project.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
This change order consists of tree stump removal, replacing 3 downspouts, snaking existing 
drains at the street curb and applying ground cover as part of the waterproofing at Branciforte 
Small Schools. The previously approved contract amount was $59,550.00 and the new total 
contract, including this change order, will be $66,950.00. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Change Order #1     $7,400.00, (12.52% increase to the contract), Measure B Funds (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


146/303







147/303







148/303







                            


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.5. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: CRW Industries, Inc. Change Order #4 to Relocate Playground 
Project for Branciforte Small Schools 


      
MEETING DATE:  March 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve CRW Industries, Inc. change order #4 to the Branciforte Small Schools playground 
relocation project.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
This change order consists of providing patch back work after the installation of the hand dryers 
as part of the playground relocation project at Branciforte Small Schools. The previously 
approved contract amount was $266,792.24 and the new total contract, including this change 
order, will be $268,075.50. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Change Order #4     $1,283.26, (0.48% increase to the contract), Measure B Funds (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


149/303







150/303







151/303







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.6. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Enviroplex Change Order #1 to Natural Bridges Gym 
Modernization Phase 2 with Modular Restroom 


      
MEETING DATE:  March 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Enviroplex change order#1 to the Natural Bridges Modernization phase 2 with 
modular restroom. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This change order consists of additional overhangs, hand dryers and water heater expansion 
tank for sinks. The previously approved contract amount was $180,526.87 and the new total 
contract, including this change order, will be $212,628.87. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Change Order #1     $32,102.00, (17.78% increase to the contract), Measure B Funds (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


152/303







153/303







Contractor Name: Date: 3/4/2019
Contract #: COR No. :


DSA Application #: PCO No. : 1


Project Name: Natural Bridges - Santa Cruz RFI/Submittal/CCD


Name Classification Hours Approved Rate Total


-$                              -$                                                      


-$                              -$                                                      


-$                              -$                                                      


-$                              -$                                                      


-$                                                      


-$                                                      


-$                                                      


-$                                                      


-$                                                      


-$                                                      


1. -$                                                        


Description of Material Quantity Unit Price (pre-tax) Total


-$                              -$                                                      


-$                              -$                                                      


-$                              -$                                                      


-$                              -$                                                      


-$                              -$                                                      


-$                              -$                                                      


-$                                                      


-$                                                      


-$                                                        


SALES TAX (9.00%) -$                                                        


2. -$                                                        


Quantity Price Total


18" overhang 40' side 2 8,056.00$                      16,112.00$                                            


18 " overhang 12' sides 1 5,130.00$                      5,130.00$                                              


3 1,428.55$                      4,285.65$                                              


1 (1,560.77)$                     (1,560.77)$                                             


1 1,928.89$                      1,928.89$                                              


-$                                                      


-$                                                      


25,895.77$                                        


SALES TAX (9.25%) 942.25$                                                  


3. 26,838$                                                  


Lump Sum Invoice


4,544.00$                                              


720.00$                                                 


-$                                                      


-$                                                      


-$                                                      


4. 5,264$                                                     


5. -$                              


-$                              


-$                                                      


6. -$                              


-$                              


-$                                                      


7. 26,838.02$                     


-$                              


26,838$                                                 


8. 5,264.00$                      


-$                              


5,264$                                                     


9. 32,102$                                                  


-$                                                        


TOTAL COST OF CHANGE 32,102$                                    


GENERAL CONTRACTOR SIGNATURE


Enviroplex Inc. Lisa Cazares


GENERAL CONTRACTOR NAME Print Name


Project Manager


Date Position


OWNER SIGNATURE


OWNER NAME Sign & Print Name


Date Position


SCHEDULE A


LOWER TIER Trade Contractor with Description


30 gallon electric water heater with expansion tank


LABOR


MATERIALS


TOTAL MATERIAL COSTS (Attach material receipts and /or summarize above)


TOTAL LABOR COSTS


TOTAL MATERIAL COSTS (pre-tax)


Eastside Independence Admin
Enviroplex Inc.


Credit 2070 plumbchase door


Hand Dryers


GENERAL CONTRACTOR COST PROPOSAL FORM


DESCRIPTION OF WORK


TOTAL Piggy-back COSTS


Add 3070 plumbchase door


Item# & Title


Piggy-back Line Items


TOTAL Piggy-back COSTS (pre-tax)


SUBCONTRACTED / LOWER TIER TRADE


(2) Additional Pilot cars for oversize width


12' x 40' - 2" rough finish rat slab 


TOTAL LOWER TIER COSTS


TOTAL COST OF LOWER TIER CONTRACTOR


LABOR COSTS


Markup of Line 6 - Line item has markup


Piggy-Back COSTS


Markup of Line 5


TOTAL LABOR COST (from Line 1 above)


TOTAL COST


TOTAL COST FOR BOND AND INSURANCE (0% Markup of Line 9)


LOWER TIER CONTRACT COSTS


TOTAL MATERIAL COST (from Line 2 above)


SUBTOTAL


MATERIAL COSTS


TOTAL Piggy-back Price (from Line 3 above)


0% Markup of Line 7


Markup of Line 8


Page 2 of 2


154/303







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.7. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: M3 Environmental Consulting, LLC. Contract and Proposal for 
Hazardous Materials Inspection and Specification Development 
for the Mission Hill Middle School Gym Roof 


      
MEETING DATE:  March 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the M3 environmental Consulting, LLC. Contract and proposal for hazardous materials 
inspections and specification development for the Mission Hill Middle School gym roof.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal is for professional services. It is required based on compliance with regulations 
issued by the Federal Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA), California OSHA 
(Cal/OSHA), the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), and the Monterey Bay 
Air Resources District (MBARD).  This is a continuation of previously approves services already 
in process. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$5,442.00, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.03% of the overall site budget 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


155/303







156/303







157/303







158/303







159/303







 
 


9821 Blue Larkspur Lane, Suite 100 Monterey, CA 93940 T: 831-649-4623 www.M3environmental.com 


March 5, 2019 
 
Mr. Trevor Miller       Via email: 
Director of Facilities       trevormiller@sccs.net 
Santa Cruz City Schools   
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
831.429.3904 (p) 
 
 
Subject: Proposal for Hazardous Materials Inspection and Specification Development for the 


Gymnasium Roof at Mission Hill Middle School Located at 425 King Street in Santa Cruz, 
California. 


 M3 Proposal No. 192569 
 
Dear Mr. Miller: 
 
M3 Environmental Consulting (M3) is pleased to present this proposal to provide a hazardous material 
(primarily asbestos and lead) inspection services and subsequent abatement specification development for 
the removal and replacement of the roof of the gymnasium at Mission Hill Middle School located at 425 
King Street in Santa Cruz, California.   
 
Project Understanding 
 
M3 understands that the roofs of the building is to be replaced.   The building is a single-story building with 
three roof levels.  Renovation activities will disturb suspect asbestos containing materials (ACM) and lead 
containing paint (LCP).  The survey will include all roofing materials, including roof mounted equipment and 
gutters, downspouts and fascia.    
 
The Santa Cruz City Schools District (SCCS) is requesting this quote for a survey and development of 
abatement specifications of the building prior to the renovation.   
 
Scope of Work 
 
This proposal presents the services needed to successfully complete this project based on the above 
understanding.  M3 will provide the following services needed to successfully complete this project: 
 
Task 1 - Hazardous Materials Inspection 
 


Asbestos and Lead 
 


• Conduct a walk-through inspection of roof areas to delineate the scope of work, and to sample 
suspect ACM and LCP. 


 
• Analyze collected samples in an American Hygiene Association-accredited laboratory  


 
• Prepare and submit a written report at the completion of the project that will include field floor plans 


showing sample locations, laboratory documentation for all samples collected, and 
recommendations as appropriate.  ACM and lead will be identified by type/component but not 
quantified.  Quantity estimates must be made by contractors submitting bids to remove these 
materials or determined during the development of bid documents.   


 


160/303







 
SCCS 


Hazardous Material Inspection & Specification 
Mission Hill MS Gym Roof Replacement 


M3 Proposal No. 192569 
Page 2 


 


Task 2 - Hazardous Materials Abatement Specification 
 
The specification will identify the materials (primarily ACM and LCP) to be removed during this project and 
will require compliance with regulations issued by the Federal Occupational Safety and Health 
Administration (OSHA), California OSHA (Cal/OSHA), the United States Environmental Protection Agency 
(EPA), and the MBARD.  The specification will describe the scope of work and procedures to be followed, 
including: 
 


• Required notifications 
• Applicable regulations 
• Air monitoring 
• Work area preparation 
• Work practices 
• Methods of removal 
• Decontamination 
• Condition of occupancy 
• Waste disposal requirements 


 
Fees 
 
All services described will be provided for a fee of $5,442 based on the following schedules: 
 
Task 1 - Hazardous Materials Inspection 
 
All services described will be provided for a fee of $2,942 based on the following fee schedule: 
 


Staff/Expense Budget Unit Total 
Principal Hygienist 1 hour $225/hour $225.00 
Staff Environmental Consultant 16 hours $95/hour 1,520.00 
(includes prep, travel, survey, report writing) 
Clerical 1 hour $75/hour $75.00 
Asbestos Bulk Samples (3-day turnaround) 38 samples $14 each 532.00 
Asbestos roof core samples (3-day turnaround) 10 samples $28 each 280.00 
Lead paint samples (3-day turnaround) 10 samples $16 each 160.00 
FedEx, mileage, supplies, copies, etc. cost plus 15%  150.00 


 Estimated Total Fee  $2,942.00 
 
**If rush analysis is needed, samples can be analyzed with 24-hour turnaround time for an additional 
fee of $21 per asbestos sample and $24 per sample for lead paint.   
 
Our estimated fee is based on the following assumptions: 
 


• M3 will have unfettered access to the building. 
• Some damage to building materials will be caused by inspection and sampling activities. 
• M3 will temporarily patch sample locations. 
• This inspection does not include asbestos point counting or lead waste profiling. 


 
Task 2 – Hazardous Materials Abatement Specification 
 
 Fixed fee   $2,500.00 
 Abatement Specification Total Fee  $2,500.00 
 
 Project Total  $5,442.00 


161/303







 
SCCS 


Hazardous Material Inspection & Specification 
Mission Hill MS Gym Roof Replacement 


M3 Proposal No. 192569 
Page 3 


 


 
Limitations 
 
Although a reasonable effort will be made to identify suspect materials, this does not guarantee that all 
possible sources of hazardous materials will be identified as certain building materials may be inaccessible 
or hidden by walls, flooring, partitions, etc.  During demolition or renovation operations, building materials 
may be uncovered that may be suspect.  These materials should be sampled and identified before activities 
resume.  
 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit our proposal to you.  If you have any questions please call me at 
831.649.4623. 
  
Sincerely, 
M3 Environmental Consulting, LLC 


 
Chris G. Gatward 
Principal 
California CAC No. 92-0216 


 


162/303







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.8. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Paine Construction Bid and Contract for Minor Repairs and 
Interior Painting of the Mission Hill Middle School Locker Rooms 


      
MEETING DATE:  March 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Paine Construction bid and contract for minor plaster repairs and interior painting of 
the Mission Hill Middle School locker rooms.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The project consists of the minor plaster repairs, refinishing of existing wood benches and 
painting of the interior of the gym locker rooms at Mission Hill Middle School. 
 
A request for bids was sent out to contractors on our approved California Uniform Public 
Construction Cost Accounting Act list. Four bids were received. Paine Construction was the 
successful low bidder. 


Bid Summary 


 
Staff recommends that the bid be awarded to Paine Construction, the lowest responsive and 
responsible bidder. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$39,700.00, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.22% of the overall site budget 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 


CONTRACTOR CITY BASE BID Add Alt. 1 


Athens Painting Pittsburg $49,219.00 $4,261.00 


D and T Painting Manteca $42,000.00 $36,000.00 


H.B. Restoration Inc. Rio Linda $51,500.00 $18,00.00 


Paine Construction Rio Linda $36,000.00 $3,700.00 


    


LOW BID Paine Construction $36,000.00 3,700.00 


163/303







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.8. 


Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


 Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


164/303







 


AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR 


 


This Agreement effective 20 March, 2019, by and between Santa Cruz City Schools, Santa Cruz County, 


California, hereinafter called the "Owner" and Paine Construction, Inc., hereinafter called the 


"Contractor." 


 


WITNESSETH: That the Contractor and the Owner for the consideration hereinafter named agree as 


follows: 


 


ARTICLE I.  SCOPE OF WORK.  The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, equipment and materials, 


including tools, implements, and appliances required, and to perform all the work in a good and 


workmanlike manner, free from any and all liens and claims from mechanics, material suppliers, 


subcontractors, artisans, machinists, teamsters, freight carriers, and laborers required for: 


 


 


Mission Hill Middle School Locker Rooms Minor Repairs and Interior Painting, 


• Per attached proposal submitted on 14 February, 2019 by Paine Construction, Inc. 


• Per attached proposal request dated 04 February, 2019. 


• Per attached Addendum 01 issued on 08 February, 2019. 


• Per attached drawings and specifications of proposed work to include but not limited to: 


o Lead-Containing Paint Removal/Stabilization as described in technical specifications. 


o Labor and materials for minor repairs and painting all interior surfaces at the Girls’ and 


Boys’ Locker Rooms and support spaces. 


o Cleaning.  


 


all in strict compliance with the coordination therefore provided by: 


 


Bartos Architecture 


1730 South Amphlett Blvd, Suite 225 


San Mateo, CA 94402 


 


and other contract documents relating thereto. 


 


Article II, Contract Documents 


The Contractor and the Owner agree that all of the documents listed in Article 1.1.1 of the General 


Conditions form the Contract Documents which form the Contract. 


 


Article III, Time to Complete and Liquidated Damages 


Time is of the essence in this contract, and the time of completion for this Project shall be by  


07 April, 2019. Failure to complete the Project within the time and in the manner provided for by the 


Contract Documents shall subject the Contractor to liquidated damages of $250.00 for each calendar day 


by which completion of the Project is delayed beyond the completion date.  The actual occurrence of 


damages and the actual amount of the damages which the Owner would suffer if the Project were not 


completed within the specified times set forth are dependent upon many circumstances and conditions 


which could prevail in various combinations and, from the nature of the case, it is impracticable and 


extremely difficult to fix the actual damages.  Damages which the Owner would suffer in the event of 


delay include, but are not limited to, loss of the use of the Project, disruption of activities, costs of 


administration, supervision and the loss suffered by the public.  Accordingly, the parties agree that the 


amount set forth above shall be presumed to be the amount of damages which the Owner shall directly 


incur upon failure of the Contractor to complete the Project within the time specified, during or as a result 


of each calendar day by which completion of the Project is delayed beyond the completion date.  If the 


165/303







Owner accepts any work or makes any payment under this Agreement after a default by reason of delays, 


the payment or payments shall in no respect constitute a waiver or modification of any Agreement 


provisions regarding time of completion and liquidated damages. 


 


If the Contractor becomes liable under this section, the Owner, in addition to all other remedies provided 


by law, shall have the right to withhold any and all retained percentages of payments and/or progress 


payments, and to collect the interest thereon, which would otherwise be or become due the Contractor 


until the liability of the Contractor under this section has been finally determined.  If the retained 


percentages and withheld progress payments appear insufficient to discharge all liabilities of the 


Contractor incurred under this Article, the Contractor and its sureties shall continue to remain liable to 


the Owner for such liabilities until all such liabilities are satisfied in full. 


 


Article IV, Payments 


The Owner agrees to pay the Contractor in current funds for the performance of the Contract  


Thirty Nine Thousand Seven Hundred dollars ($39,700.00) and to make payments on account thereof as 


provided in the General Conditions. 


 


The Contract Sum is based upon the following Alternate, which is described and the Contract Documents 


and hereby accepted by the Owner: 


Alternate 1: Refinish Wood Benches and Paint Posts 


 


Article V, Changes 


Changes in this Agreement or in the Work to be done under this Agreement shall be made as provided in 


the General Conditions. 


 


Article VI, Termination 


The Agreement may be terminated as provided in the General Conditions. 


 


Article VII, Prevailing Wages 


Pursuant to the provisions of Section 1770 et seq. of the Labor Code of the State of California, which are 


hereby incorporated by reference and made a part hereof, the Director of Industrial Relations has 


determined the general prevailing rate of per diem wages and the general prevailing rate for holiday and 


overtime work in the locality in which the work is to be performed, for each craft, classification or type of 


worker needed to execute this Contract.  Per diem wages shall be deemed to include employer payments 


for health and welfare, pension, vacation, apprenticeship or other training programs, and similar 


purposes.  Copies of the rates are on file at the Owner's principal office and are available upon request.  


The rate of prevailing wage for any craft, classification or type of workmanship to be employed on this 


Project is the rate established by the applicable collective bargaining agreement which rate so provided is 


hereby adopted by reference and shall be effective for the life of this Agreement or until the Director of 


the Department of Industrial Relations determines that another rate be adopted.  It shall be mandatory 


upon the Contractor and on any subcontractor to pay not less than the said specified rates to all workers 


employed in the execution of this Agreement. 


 


The Contractor and any subcontractor under the Contractor as a penalty to the Owner shall forfeit not 


more than Fifty Dollars ($50.00) for each calendar day or portion thereof for each worker paid less than 


the stipulated prevailing rates for such work or craft in which such worker is employed.  The difference 


between such stipulated prevailing wage rates and the amount paid to each worker for each calendar day 


or portion thereof for which each worker was paid less than the stipulated prevailing wage rate shall be 


paid to each worker by the Contractor or Subcontractor. 


 


The Contractor and each Subcontractor shall keep or cause to be kept an accurate record for work on this 


Project showing the names, addresses, social security numbers, work classification, straight time and 


overtime hours worked and occupations of all laborers, workers and mechanics employed by them in 


166/303







connection with the performance of this Contract or any subcontract thereunder, and showing also the 


actual per diem wage paid to each of such workers, which records shall be open at all reasonable hours to 


inspection by the Owner, its officers and agents and to the representatives of the Division of Labor Law 


Enforcement of the State Department of Industrial Relations.  Contractor and Subcontractor shall comply 


with Labor Code section 1776. 


 


 


Article VIII, Working Hours 


In accordance with the provisions of Sections 1810 to 1815, inclusive, of the Labor Code of the State of 


California, which are hereby incorporated and made a part hereof, the time of service of any worker 


employed by the Contractor or a Subcontractor doing or contracting to do any part of the Work 


contemplated by this Agreement is limited and restricted to eight hours during any one calendar day and 


forty hours during any one calendar week, provided, that work may be performed by such employee in 


excess of said eight hours per day or forty hours per week provided that compensation for all hours 


worked in excess of eight hours per day, and forty hours per week, is paid at a rate not less than one and 


one-half (1½) times the basic rate of pay.  The Contractor and every Subcontractor shall keep an accurate 


record showing the name of and the actual hours worked each calendar day and each calendar week by 


each worker employed by them in connection with the Work.  The records shall be kept open at all 


reasonable hours to inspection by representatives of the Owner and the Division of Labor Law 


Enforcement.  The Contractor shall as a penalty to the Owner forfeit Twenty-five Dollars ($25.00) for each 


worker employed in the execution of this Agreement by the Contractor or by any subcontractor for each 


calendar day during which such worker is required or permitted to work more than eight hours in any one 


calendar day, and forty hours in any one calendar week, except as herein provided. 


 


Article IX, Apprentices 


The Contractor agrees to comply with Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2, Sections 1777.5 and 1777.6 of the 


California Labor Code, which are hereby incorporated and made a part hereof.  These sections require 


that contractors and subcontractors employ apprentices in apprenticeable occupations in a ratio of not 


less than one hour of apprentice's work for each five hours of work performed by a journeyman (unless 


an exemption is granted in accordance with Section 1777.5) and that contractors and subcontractors shall 


not discriminate among otherwise qualified employees as indentured apprentices on any public works 


solely on the ground of sex, race, religious creed, national origin, ancestry or color.  Only apprentices as 


defined in Labor Code Section 3077, who are in training under apprenticeship standards and who have 


signed written apprentice agreements, will be employed on public works in apprenticeable occupations.  


The responsibility for compliance with these provisions and Labor Code section 1777.5 is fixed with the 


Contractor for all apprenticeable occupations. 


 


Article X, Indemnification and Insurance 


The Contractor will defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, its governing board, officers, agents, 


trustees, and employees as provided in the Contract Documents. 


 


By this statement the Contractor represents that it has secured the payment of Workers' Compensation in 


compliance with the provisions of the Labor Code of the State of California and during the performance of 


the work contemplated herein will continue so to comply with said provisions of said Code.  The 


Contractor shall supply the Owner with certificates of insurance evidencing that Workers' Compensation 


Insurance is in effect and providing that the Owner will receive thirty (30) days' notice of cancellation. 


 


Contractor shall provide the insurance set forth in the General Conditions.   


 


Article XI, Entire Agreement 


The Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the parties relating to the Project, and 


supersedes any prior or contemporaneous agreement between the parties, oral or written, including the 


Owner's award of the Project to Contractor, unless such agreement is expressly incorporated herein.  The 


167/303







Owner makes no representations or warranties, express or implied, not specified in the Contract.  The 


Contract is intended as the complete and exclusive statement of the parties’ agreement pursuant to Code 


of Civil Procedure section 1856. 


 


Article XII, Execution of Other Documents 


The parties to this Agreement shall cooperate fully in the execution of any and all other documents and in 


the completion of any additional actions that may be necessary or appropriate to give full force and effect 


to the terms and intent of the Contract. 


 


ARTICLE XIII.  EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS 


This Agreement may be executed in counterparts such that the signatures may appear on separate 


signature pages.  A copy, or an original, with all signatures appended together, shall be deemed a fully 


executed Agreement. 


 


Article XIV, Binding Effect 


Contractor, by execution of this Agreement, acknowledges that Contractor has read this Agreement and 


the other Contract Documents, understands them, and agrees to be bound by their terms and conditions.  


The Contract shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the Contractor and the Owner and 


their respective successors and assigns. 


 


Article XV, Severability 


If any provision of the Contract shall be held invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, 


such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision hereof.  The Contract shall 


be governed by the laws of the State of California.  Any action or proceeding seeking any relief under or 


with respect to this Agreement shall be brought solely in the Superior Court of the State of California for 


the County of Santa Clara, subject to transfer of venue under applicable State law. 


 


Article XVI, Amendments 


The terms of the Contract shall not be waived, altered, modified, supplemented or amended in any 


manner whatsoever except by written agreement signed by the parties and approved or ratified by the 


Governing Board. 


 


Article XVII, Assignment of Contract 


The Contractor shall not assign or transfer by operation of law or otherwise any or all of its rights, 


burdens, duties or obligations without the prior written consent of the surety on the payment bond, the 


surety on the performance bond and the Owner. 


168/303







169/303







Bid Proposal 
Bid Proposal for Mission Hill Middle School Locker Rooms Minor Repairs and Interior Painting 


Sergey Sedlukha 
President 
Paine Construction Inc 
7212 8th St  
Rio Linda, CA 95673 
(916) 889-3840 


Mark Zaychenko 
Vice President 
Paine Construction Inc 
4501 Robertson Ave 
Sacramento, CA 95821 
(916) 868-1083 


Scope of Work 


Based on the project plans in the bid request, and thorough review of the property, we have 
developed this proposal. The scope of work consists of: 


• Removing and replacing all installed hardware not being painted
• Scraping and repair all loose or damaged surfaces
• Wall, ceiling, doors and door frame surfaces shall receive new paint
• Sand and repair both sides of interior doors
• All exposed conduit, electrical boxes and piping to receive paint
• All ceiling components shall be painted
• Install corner molding
• Any additional work will be an additional cost to the owner in a change order


*See project manual 17-006.4, and addendum 17-006.4-Interior Painting Addendum-01


Material list 
• Kelly Moore Interior Paint
• Kelly Moore Primer
• 3m Primer patch
• Bondo Patch
• Alex Plus caulking


• Kelly Moore
• 20 Minute drywall mud
• 6mil plastic
• Masking plastic
• Caution tape


Labor 


-30 man-days 


Time Table  


Work to be started when notice to proceed is given.  A total of 7 working days will be needed 
to complete the project (weather permitting). 


170/303







Project Schedule 
• Day 1: Mobilization/Setup 
• Day 2-4: Scraping/prep work
• Day 5 :
• Day 6:
• Day 7:


Finish prep work/priming 
Final Coat 
Cleanup/De-mobilization 


Total Costs 


Base Bid $36,000.00 
Alternate $3,700.00 


Total Lump Sum: $39,700.00 
Addendum Acknowledgement 
Addendum No.____   Signature Acknowledging Receipt____________________ Date__________ 
Addendum No.____   Signature Acknowledging Receipt____________________ Date__________ 


References (past 6 months) 


Type of Work/Contract amount Location and for Whom Performed 
Painting, interior/drywall   Dunham ES School District, Petaluma CA 
$22,000  
Contact- Krt Maness, Architect (707)829-0700 


Exterior painting, wood rot replacement,  Green Acres Elementary, Santa Cruz, CA 
and stucco repair  
$66,000 
Contact- Chip Odom, Director of Maintenance (831) 212-4862 
*Other references can be provided upon request.


 Paine Construction Inc 333880; B, C-33   
      Company Name Contractor's License Number and Class 


 7212 8th St  1000061535 
Address Public Works Contractor number (DIR) 
 Rio Linda, CA, 95673 Mark Zaychenko; Vice President 
City, State, Zip  Name and Title 
916-868-1083, 916-889-3840 
Telephone Number  Signature of Bidder 
Paineconstruction@gmail.com 02/12/2019 
Email Date 


01 02/12/19


171/303







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.9. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: PARC Specialty Contractors Bid and Contract for Ceiling Removal 
in Buildings 100 and 200 at Soquel High School Modernization 
Project 


      
MEETING DATE:  March 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve PARC Specialty Contractors bid and contract for ceiling removal in Buildings 100 and 
200 of Soquel High School as part of the Modernization project.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The project consists of the removal of asbestos containing sheetrock and ceiling tiles in 
buildings 100 and 200 at Soquel High School. This is to allow for early access for contractors to 
remove and measure for new units to allow for faster delivery. 
 
A request for bids was sent out to contractors on our approved California Uniform Public 
Construction Cost Accounting Act list. Three bids were received. PARC Specialty Contractors 
was the successful low bidder. 


Bid Summary 


 
Staff recommends that the bid be awarded to PARC Specialty Contractors, the lowest 
responsive and responsible bidder. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$22,981.00, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.06% of the overall site budget 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


CONTRACTOR CITY BASE BID 


PARC Specialty Contractors Sacramento $22,981.00 


Coastwide Environmental Watsonville $23,900.00 


Monterey Environmental Solutions & Services Monterey $29,160.00 


   


LOW BID PARC Specialty Contractors $22,981.00 


172/303







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.9. 


 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


 Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


173/303







1 


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR SERVICES AGREEMENT   


 


 


This Independent Contractor Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered 


into effective March 22nd , 2019 (the “Effective Date”) by and between Santa Cruz City 


Schools (“District”) and  PARC Specialty Contractors (“Contractor”). 


 


1. Contractor Services.  Contractor agrees to provide the following services: Remove 


asbestos containing sheetrock ceiling in six locations from hallways in buildings 100 and 


200 at Soquel High School.  
 


2. Contractor Qualifications.  Contractor represents that it or its principals or employees 


assigned to provide services under this Agreement have or shall have in effect all licenses, 


credentials, permits and has otherwise all legal qualifications to perform this Agreement.  


[OPTIONAL: Contractor shall provide District with a copy of a current curriculum vitae 


for each principal or employee assigned to work on District projects.] 


 


3.    Term.  This Agreement shall begin on March 22nd , 2019, and shall terminate upon 


completion of the scope of work.  There shall be no extension of the term of this 


Agreement without express written consent by the District and Contractor.  


 


4.  Termination.  The District may terminate this Agreement immediately at any time by 


giving written notice to the Contractor.  Such written notice shall be sufficient to stop 


further performance of services by Contractor.  In the event of termination prior to the end 


of the term of this Agreement, Contractor shall invoice the District for any work 


performed up to the date of termination, and shall promptly return any District property or 


records, and any copies thereof, in its possession to the District.  The District may then 


proceed with the work in any manner the District deems proper. 


 


5. Payment.  Total payment by District to Contractor shall not exceed $22,981 (Twenty-Two 


Thousand Nine Hundred Eighty One Dollars).  District agrees to pay Contractor within 


thirty (30) days of receipt of a detailed invoice.  


 


6. Indemnity.  The Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and its 


agents, employees, Board of Education, and members of the Board of Education, from and 


against claims, damages, losses, and expenses (including, but not limited to attorney’s fees 


and costs including fees of consultants) arising out of or resulting from performance of this 


Agreement including, but not limited to, the Contractor’s use of the site; the Contractor’s 


completion of its duties under this Agreement; injury to or death of persons or damage to 


property or delay or damage to the District, its agents, employees, Board of Education, 


members of the Board of Education, for any act, omission, negligence, or willful 


misconduct of the Contractor or its respective agents, subcontractors, employees, material 


or equipment suppliers, invitees, or licensees.  Such obligation shall not be construed to 


negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or obligations of indemnity, which would otherwise 


exist as to a party, person, or entity described in this paragraph.    


 


174/303







 


2 


7. Comprehensive General Liability and Automobile Insurance.  Without limiting 


Contractor’s indemnification as set forth in Section 6 hereof, Contractor shall, before 


beginning any of the services or work called for by any term of this Agreement, secure 


and maintain in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, the following 


insurance: 


 


A. Comprehensive General Liability, for bodily injury, personal injury and 


property damage in an amount not less than: $1,000,000.00 per 


occurrence. 


 


AND 


 


B. Automobile Insurance, for bodily injury and property damage combined 


single limit in an amount not less than: $1,000,000.00 per occurrence. 


 


 The District shall be named as an additional insured on Contractor’s insurance policy by 


endorsement.  The policy shall provide that it is primary such that insurance maintained by 


the District, if any, shall be excess and not co-primary.  A copy of the declarations page of 


Contractor’s insurance policy shall be attached to this Agreement as proof of insurance.  


 


8. Independent Contractor Status.  While engaged in carrying out the terms and conditions of 


this Agreement, the Contractor is an independent Contractor, and not an officer, 


employee, agent, partner, or joint venturer of the District.  


 


9. Workers’ Compensation Insurance.  Contractor agrees to provide all necessary workers’ 


compensation insurance for Contractor’s principals and employees, if any, at Contractor’s 


own cost and expense. 


 


10. Fingerprinting.  Contractor shall at all times comply with the fingerprinting and criminal 


background investigation requirements of the California Education Code (“Education 


Code”) section 45125.1.  Accordingly, by checking the applicable boxes below, 


Contractor and District agree to the following: 


 


  A.  Contractor and principals, employees, and subcontractors assigned to provide 


services under this Agreement will have only limited or no contact with District 


students at all times during the Term of this Agreement. 


 


11. Taxes.  Contractor agrees that Contractor has no entitlement to any future work from the 


District or to any employment or fringe benefits from the District.  Payments to the 


Contractor pursuant to this Agreement will be reported to Federal and State taxing 


authorities as required.  District will not withhold any money from compensation payable 


to Contractor.  In particular, District will not withhold FICA (social security); state or 


federal unemployment insurance contributions, state or federal income tax or disability 


insurance.  Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify and hold District harmless from all 


State and Federal tax consequences and any related consequences stemming from or 


related to this Agreement.  Contractor is independently responsible for the payment of all 


175/303







 


3 


applicable taxes. 


 


12. Assignment.  The Contractor shall not assign or transfer by operation of law or otherwise 


any or all of its rights, burdens, duties or obligations under this Agreement without the 


prior written consent of the District. 


 


13. Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the 


Contractor and the District and their respective successors and assigns. 


 


14. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by 


a court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable 


any other provision of this Agreement.  


 


15. Amendments.  The terms of the Agreement shall not be waived, altered, modified, 


supplemented or amended in any manner whatsoever except by written agreement signed 


by both parties. 


 


16. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 


the laws of the State of California and any action or proceeding seeking any relief under or 


with respect to this Agreement shall be brought solely in the Superior Court of the State of 


California for Santa Cruz County, subject to any motion for transfer of venue. 


 


17. Written Notice.  Written notice shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in 


person to the Contractor, or if delivered at or sent by registered or certified mail to the last 


business address known to the person who sends the notice. 


 


District: Contractor: 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


405 Soquel-San Jose Road 


Soquel, CA 95073 


Attn:  Assistant Superintendent,  


Business Services 


 


PARC Specialty Contractors 


1400 Vinci Avenue 


Sacramento, CA 95838 


 


18. Compliance with Law.  Each and every provision of law and clause required by law to be 


inserted into this Agreement shall be deemed to be inserted herein and this Agreement 


shall be read and enforced as though it were included therein.  Contractor shall comply 


with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances, 


including fingerprinting under Education Code section 45125.1, confidentiality of records, 


Education Code section 49406 and others.  Contractor agrees that it shall comply with all 


legal requirements for the performance of duties under this agreement and that failure to 


do so shall constitute material breach. 


 


19. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement is intended by the Parties as the final expression of 


their agreement with respect to such terms as are included herein and as the complete and 


exclusive statement of its terms and may not be contradicted by evidence of any prior 


176/303







 


4 


agreement or of a contemporaneous oral agreement, nor explained or supplemented by 


evidence of consistent additional terms. 


 


20. Execution of Other Documents.  The Parties to this Agreement shall cooperate fully in the 


execution of any and all other documents and in the completion of any additional actions 


that may be necessary or appropriate to give full force and effect to the terms and intent of 


this Agreement. 


 


21. Execution in Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts such that the 


signatures may appear on separate signature pages.  A copy, facsimile, or an original, with 


all signatures appended together, shall be deemed a fully executed Agreement. 


 


22. Board Approval/Ratification.  The effectiveness of this Agreement is contingent upon 


approval or ratification by the District’s Governing Board. 


 


 


 


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS CONTRACTOR 


 


 


 


By: ________________________________ 


 


Name:   ____________________________ 


 


Title:  ______________________________ 


 


Date: _______________________________ 


 


 


 


 


By: ________________________________ 


 


Name: _____________________________  


 


Title:   _____________________________ 


 


Date: _______________________________ 


 


Andrew Goforth


President


03/04/19


177/303







178/303







                            


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.10. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Sierra School Equipment Company Proposal for Combination 
Locks for Mission Hill Middle School Student Lockers 


      
MEETING DATE:  March 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Sierra School Equipment Company proposal for combination locks for Mission Hill 
Middle School student lockers. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of 50 combination lock systems, and two control keys for the new lockers 
recently installed in the hallway at Mission Hill Middle School. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$887.00, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.005% of the overall site budget. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


179/303







180/303







                            


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.11. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Swinerton Builders Change Order #1 to the Lease-Lease back 
Agreement for Site Infrastructure and Snack Shack Projects at 
Soquel High School  


      
MEETING DATE:  March 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Swinerton Builders change order #1 to the lease-lease back agreement for site 
infrastructure and snack shack projects at Soquel High School. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This change order consists of the addition of a 4” domestic water line and a drinking fountain. 
The existing domestic water supply is many decades old and contains mineral build-up. The 
previously approved contract amount was $3,794,246 and the new total contract, including this 
change order, will be $4,038,780.16. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Change Order #1    $244,534.16, (6.44% increase to the contract), Measure A Funds (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


181/303







 


 
Change Order 


AIA Document G701 - 2017 


 
\ 


PROJECT: 
Soquel High School  
Site Infrastructure and  
Concessions  
401 Soquel San Jose Rd   
Soquel, CA 95073 


CONTRACT INFORMATION: 
Contract For: Site Work and 
installation of a Fire Line and 
Concessions Building.  
 
Date: November 14, 2018 


  CHANGE ORDER INFORMATION: 
  Change Order Number:  001 
 
 
 
   Date: March 4,2019 


 
OWNER:    ARCHITECT:    CONTRACTOR: 
Santa Cruz City Schools      MADI Group, Inc                               Swinerton Builders 


   133 Mission Street, suite 100   303 Potrero St. suite 5  2880 Lakeside Dr. Suite 300 
   Santa Cruz, CA 95060  Santa Cruz, CA 95060  Santa Clara, CA 95054   
  
  


 


 


THE CONTRACT IS CHANGED AS FOLLOWS: 


Addition of a 4” Domestic Water Line and the addition of a Drinking fountain that was removed from Building 300 
scope. 


The original contract sum was 
The net change by previously authorized Change Orders 


$  3,794,246.00


$              00.00
The contract sum prior to this Change Order was $  3,794,246.00
The contract sum will be increased by this Change Order in the amount of $     244,534.16
The new contact sum including this Change Order will be  $  4,038,780.16


The Contract Time will be increased by Fifteen (15) days.  
The new date of’ Substantial Completion will be May 21, 2019.  


NOTE: This Change Order does not include adjustments to the Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum 
Price, or the Contract Time, that have been authorized by Construction Change Directive until the cost 
and time have been agreed upon by both the Owner and Contractor, in which case a Change Order is 
executed to supersede the Construction Change Directive. 


 


NOT VALID UNTIL SIGNED BY THE ARCHITECT, CONTRACTOR AND OWNER. 
 


MADI Group, Inc.  


ARCHITECT (Firm name) 


 
Swinerton Builders   


CONTRACTOR (Firm name) 


 Santa Cruz City Schools  


OWNER (Firm name) 


SIGNATURE  SIGNATURE SIGNATURE 


PRINTED NAME AND TITLE  PRINTED NAME AND TITLE PRINTED NAME AND TITLE 


 


DATE  DATE DATE 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 


  


Daniel Villarreal
Digitally signed by Daniel Villarreal
DN: C=US, E=daniel@madi-arch.com, 
O=MADI Group, CN=Daniel Villarreal
Date: 2019.03.06 11:56:52-08'00'


Steve Phares
Digitally signed by Steve Phares
DN: C=US, E=sphares@swinerton.com, O=Swinerton Builders, CN=Steve 
Phares
Reason: I attest to the accuracy and integrity of this document
Date: 2019.03.06 10:12:56-08'00'


Steve Phares, Asst. Project Manager


March 6, 2019


Daniel Villarreal, Designer


03/06/19


182/303







 
 


 


 
 
 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
405 Old San Jose Road  
Santa Cruz, CA,  
 
Attn: Trevor Miller  
 
Subject: Swinerton Builders Job 18090063 - Soquel High School Modernization Project Phase I 
 PCI No. 0006 Change Order Request # 001 
  
Dear  Mr. Miller, 
       


We request a Change Order to our contract for the following: 
 


Materials and Labor for the addition of a 4" domestic water line in the same trench as the current fire line 
and infrastructure project. 
 


Phase Category Description Subcontractor Quote 


330200 71140 Site Utilities GRANITE ROCK COMPANY 179,927.39 
 


   Subtotal  179,927.39 
 


999999 79999 Fee (3.25%) 3.25% 5,848.00 


007420 71160 Liability Insurance (1%) 1% 1,799.00 


013000 71151 General Conditions (10.04%) 10.04% 18,065.00 
 


   Markup Subtotal 25,712.00 


   PCI Total 205,639.39 


 
 


    TOTAL AMOUNT OF THIS CHANGE ORDER REQUEST:  205,639.39. 
 
Please NOTE: 


» The incorporation of this revision in to the contractual scope of work may have an impact on our 
schedule, which is yet to be finalized. Once determined, the job schedule will be adjusted accordingly to 
show the effect of this revision on the final project completion date.  


» The terms (cost and schedule impact) of this change order request are subject to review and a requote if 
not accepted within  days of its issuance. 


» This request does not include additional cost or delay due to late approval. 
 
    X       We HAVE NOT proceeded with this revised work per your instructions. Please issue a change order. 
 
 


 


Upon acceptance of this change order request, a formal change order will be issued. Acceptance also 
acknowledges that Swinerton Builders is directed to proceed with the above change in scope. 
 


 
If you have any questions or comments pertaining to this matter, please contact the undersigned. 


183/303







 
 


 


 
Sincerely, Quotation accepted by: 
Swinerton Builders Santa Cruz City Schools 
  
  
  
Steve Phares 
 


By:     ____________________________ 
Project Engineer  
Date: ____________________________ Date: ____________________________ 


 
 
 


Assistant Project Manager


Steve Phares
Digitally signed by Steve Phares
DN: C=US, E=sphares@swinerton.com, 
O=Swinerton Builders, CN=Steve Phares
Reason: I am the author of this document
Date: 2019.03.06 10:13:19-08'00'


184/303







 
 


 


 
 
 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
405 Old San Jose Road  
Santa Cruz, CA,  
 
Attn: Trevor Miller  
 
Subject: Swinerton Builders Job 18090063 - Soquel High School Modernization Project Phase I 
 PCI No. 0007 Change Order Request # 002 
  
Dear  Mr. Miller, 
       


We request a Change Order to our contract for the following: 
 


Materials and Labor for the addition of a drinking fountain to the Infrastructure Project.  Drinking fountain 
will be located between bldgs. 200 and 300. 
 


Phase Category Description Subcontractor Quote 


330200 71140 Site Utilities GRANITE ROCK COMPANY 34,031.77 
 


   Subtotal  34,031.77 
 


999999 79999 Fee (3.25%) 3.25% 1,106.00 


007420 71160 Liability Insurance (1%) 1% 340.00 


013000 71151 General Conditions (10.04%) 10.04% 3,417.00 
 


   Markup Subtotal 4,863.00 


   PCI Total 38,894.77 


 
 


    TOTAL AMOUNT OF THIS CHANGE ORDER REQUEST:  38,894.77. 
 
Please NOTE: 


» The incorporation of this revision in to the contractual scope of work may have an impact on our 
schedule, which is yet to be finalized. Once determined, the job schedule will be adjusted accordingly to 
show the effect of this revision on the final project completion date.  


» The terms (cost and schedule impact) of this change order request are subject to review and a requote if 
not accepted within  days of its issuance. 


» This request does not include additional cost or delay due to late approval. 
 
    X       We HAVE NOT proceeded with this revised work per your instructions. Please issue a change order. 
 
 


 


Upon acceptance of this change order request, a formal change order will be issued. Acceptance also 
acknowledges that Swinerton Builders is directed to proceed with the above change in scope. 
 


 
If you have any questions or comments pertaining to this matter, please contact the undersigned. 


185/303







 
 


 


 
Sincerely, Quotation accepted by: 
Swinerton Builders Santa Cruz City Schools 
  
  
  
Steve Phares 
 


By:     ____________________________ 
Project Engineer  
Date: ____________________________ Date: ____________________________ 


 
 
 


Assistant Project Manager


Steve Phares
Digitally signed by Steve Phares
DN: C=US, E=sphares@swinerton.com, 
O=Swinerton Builders, CN=Steve Phares
Reason: I am the author of this document
Date: 2019.03.06 10:13:37-08'00'


186/303







                            


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.12. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Western Design Proposal for Flooring in Harbor High School 
Library 


      
MEETING DATE:  March 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Western Design proposal for flooring in the Harbor High School library. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of the removal of existing carpet, furnish and installation of new carpet 
tiles and rubber base in the computer lab and testing room of the library.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$4,368.00, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.01% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


187/303







  S I GN THI S  
AGREE ME NT AFTER YO U H AVE RE AD & UNDER STAND IT .        T E R M S   &   C O N D I T I O N S  


BUYER & SELLER AGREE: A) WESTERN DESIGN will use only craftsmen to install your floor coverings, insuring the finest installation possible, 
accounting for the imperfection of the materials,& seams in various flooring will be noticeable, especially in low, flat Berber type carpets’ & vinyl 
without lineal patterns, & Buyer accepts visible seams as part of a top quality installation.   B) WESTERN DESIGN will warrant the installations for 
the life of your ownership of the floor covering described in this contract, provided the problem is directly caused to the installation.   C)You, the 
buyer, must make WESTERN DESIGN aware of any problems immediately so that WESTERN DESIGN may correct the problem.  If a situation is 
neglected, it will void all warrantees & guarantees.   1) Title and ownership of the goods and property sold is, and shall remain, vested in seller, 
notwithstanding delivery, possession or installation, until the entire price is  paid by cash in full.   2)  Seller shall not be responsible for delays 
or failures of scheduled installation, for any reasons, or problems with material deemed unacceptable.  In the event Buyer’s home is disrupted 
in any manner for any length of time , Buyer shall continue living in the Buyer’s home.   Outside housing costs during this period are the sole 
responsibility of Buyer.   3) Buyer is responsible for inspecting & approving all floor coverings for installation before the day of the  installation.   
Buyer will hold Seller harmless for any situation caused by the rejection of any floor coverings. 4) This Contract contains the complete 
agreement between the parties hereto.   5) Time is of the essence of this contract.   6) The prices contained in this contract are guaranteed for 
only 60 days.   7) Buyer agrees to pay any additional costs due to price increases of any kind.  8) After 60 days from the date of this contract, 
Buyer agrees to pay $ 30.00 per month to store materials contained in this contract.   9) The heirs, personal representative and successors or 
the parties shall be bound hereby.   10) If buyer breaches this contract prior to the start of installation, then buyer shall pay to the seller 
liquidated damages in lieu of compensation in the amount of 20% of the total contract, plus the costs of all materials rendered unusable, and 
plus other direct costs actually incurred by seller.   11) I understand that I am not required to stay at home, possibly missing work and income, 
to have the work contained in this contract performed for me.  I further understand that if I do stay home, I accept the inconvenience and loss 
of income fully, and will hold WESTERN DESIGN harmless.  I further understand that the length of time necessary to perform the work may 
be longer than I am told, and I accept this additional length of time needed to complete my job as a positive & necessary part of the quality 
work being performed.  I will hold WESTERN DESIGN harmless for this additional time in my home, delays of other work, or any 
inconvenience caused.   12)  The buyer shall be responsible for replacing and trimming doors and thresholds, and for leveling floors, 
unless this contract specifically provides otherwise.   13) In the event of any legal action or proceeding arising out of or related to this matter, 
the prevailing party shall be entitled to court costs, attorney's fees and other fees and costs.   14) Buyer agrees to pay for all collections fees 
and other costs  necessary to  collect  any money due.   15)  All terms are net, due on completion, unless noted otherwise in contract.   Buyer 
agrees to pay $ 25.00, or 5%, whichever is greater, service fee, per month on all past due accounts.  Interest of 1.5% per month is added to all 
past due accounts in addition to the Service Fee.   Buyer agrees to pay $ 35.00 for each returned check.   16) Buyer shall yield access to the 
job site during normal working hours for the purpose of measuring, installing, inspecting or repairing under this contract or under any 
warranties.   17) Buyer understands and accepts that although the installer(s) will be careful, the installation process probably will scratch 
and mark walls, base boards and other painted and sealed finishes and materials.  This is unavoidable and normal and the Buyer 
agrees to accept sole responsibility for repairs &/or  touch up to finishes affected during work performed under this contract.  
Mechanics Lien Law Information.  FOR YOUR INFORMATION & PROTECTION 
Under the California Mechanics' Lien Law any contractor, subcontractor, laborer, supplier or other person who helps to improve your property, but is not 
paid for his work or  supplies, has a right to enforce a claim against your property.  This means that after a court hearing, your property could be sold by a 
court officer and the proceeds of the sale used to satisfy the indebtedness.  This can happen even if you have paid your own contractor in full, if the 
subcontractor, laborers or suppliers remains unpaid.   To preserve their right to file a claim or lien against your property, certain claimants such as 
subcontractors or material suppliers as required to provide you with a document entitled "Preliminary Notice."  General contractors and laborers  for 
wages do not have to provide this notice.  A Preliminary Notice is not a lien against your property.  It's purpose is to notify you of persons who may have a 
right to file a lien against your property if they are not paid. 


TO INSURE EXTRA PROTECTION,  YOU MAY WISH TO TAKE ONE OR MORE OF THE FOLLOWING STEPS: 
 1.   Require that your contractor supply you with a payment and performance bond (not a license bond), which provides a guarantee that all 
work and proper payments will be completed.  This payment and performance bond as well as a copy of the construction contract may be filed with the 
county recorder for your further protection.     2.  Require that payments be made directly to subcontractors and material suppliers through a joint control 
company, approved by the Registrar of Contractors.   3.  Before making payment on any completed phase of the project, require your contractor to 
provide you with unconditional lien releases signed by each material supplier, subcontractor and laborer involved on that project phase.  Anyone signing 
this release loses the right to file a claim against your property.  TO PROTECT YOURSELF UNDER THIS OPTION YOU MUST BE CERTAIN THAT ALL 
MATERIAL SUPPLIERS, SUBCONTRACTORS AND LABORERS HAVE SIGNED. 
 Contractors are required by law to be licensed and regulated by the Contractor's State License Board.  Any questions concerning a contractor 
may be referred to the Registrar, Contractor's State License Board, P.O. Box 26000, Sacramento, California  95826. 
 


IF YOU, THE BUYER, CANCEL OR RESCHEDULE WITH LESS THAT 24 HOURS NOTICE, $ 125.OO WILL BE ADDED TO THIS CONTRACT.   
A)  If your job site is not ready, $ 55.00 per each man, per hour, will be added to this contract for the installer having to move tools, 
construction items, furniture, scrape floors, and in general to perform any work not specifically stated in the contract..      
B  If any conditions, areas, types of work to be performed, particular items, objects, trim pieces, finishes, etc. are not specifically stated 
in the contract, they are not included and will be a change order and there will be an additional charge.  
D)  We are not responsible for electronic equipment such as stereos, T.V.'s,  computers, alarm systems, etc.   Customer must  disconnect these items.   
E)  I hereby authorize WESTERN DESIGN to use my credit card for all balances, change orders, interest and other charges covered by this contract.  
F)  I hereby authorize WESTERN DESIGN to secure my real estate with a mechanics lien in the event that I fail to pay any part of this contract. 


I HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGE THAT I AM FAMILIAR WITH AND COMPLETELY UNDERSTAND THE ENTIRE CONTENTS OF THIS AGREEMENT AND I 
HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGE A RECEIPT OF A COPY OF THIS CONTRACT. 


WESTERN 
DESIGN 
 


Western Design & The Gallery of Tile & Stone  
are all Divisions of Joe Callero, Inc.  
6996 Soquel Avenue,  S C., Calif.  95062 


LIC. #769509 
All types of Flooring,  


Tile  & Stone,   
Drapes & Window Coverings    


Wood  Re-Finishing   


831-479-3557 
 479-7058 fax     


WESTERN   
DESIGN                                             Date                     Buyer                                                                        Date    


WESTERN   
DESIGN                                                        Date                        Buyer                                                                                     Date   


CONTRACT 


 Gallery 
Of Tile & Stone 


188/303







 


Santa Cruz City Schools 
 
 
Job:  Harbor High School—Carpet Tiles In Two Rooms in Library 


 
Carpet Install: 
 
Furnish and install instock Chain Reaction 24” x 24” Nylon 
carpet tiles in Computer Lab and Testing Room in Library.  
 
Pull up and recycle existing glued down carpet.  This bid is 
done anticipating reasonable pull up.  Difficult or double 
glued down pull up may result in additional charges. 
 
No furniture moving necessary.  Minimal prep. 
 
Furnish and install 4” Black rubber base throughout. 
 


WESTERN 
DESIGN 


Western Design Gallery of Tile & Stone, 
Flooring America & Carpet One Santa Cruz  
are all Divisions of Joe Callero, Inc.  
6996 Soquel Avenue,  S C., Calif.  95062 


LIC. #769509  
All types of Flooring,  


Tile  & Stone,   
Wood  Re-Finishing   


& Window Coverings    


831-479-3557 
 479-7058 fax   


Total    
  
 


O
c


TERMS  
OF  
SALE:   


$  4,368.00 Deposit due to schedule installation.  
Balance due at completion . 
 


Judy Young 


WESTERN   
DESIGN                                             Date                     Buyer                                                                        Date    


WESTERN   
DESIGN                                                        Date                          Buyer                                                                                     Date  


Endorsed 
Installers by  


 
W O O D  


NWFA 
3M  


 


Basic Coatings  
Altro 
Kahrs  
Bruce 
Bruce 


 
 
 


L A M I N A T E  


 Pergo 
 Floorcraft 
Armstrong 


Mannington 
 
 
 


V I N Y L 
Forbo ‘Master 


Mechanics’  
Protectall 
Lonseal 


Armstrong 
Mannington 


 
 
 


C A R P E T 
CFI    


 


 The Gallery  
Cabinets,  engineered  


Granite Counters,  
Tile & Stone 


CONTRACT 
March 1, 2019 


  NOTE:  Buyer will have the heating system operating to normal temperatures a minimum of 3 days prior to the installation of any floor 
covering.      If Buyer fails to heat the building,  Buyer accepts all floors ‘As Is’ with no warranties.     


Buyer understands the the arrival time is an estimate, and the window is up to 4 hours beyond the earliest starting time.   Buyer 
understand that in order to do quality work, the time needed to complete the installation could double.  Because of this, it is 


important that buyer understands that it is not necessary to stay home during the installation, and buyer understands that if buyer 
does stay home, or has others stay home, this will cause loss of wages and and time, and buyer accepts these losses willingly, 


and will not seek compensation.       Note: The seam tape required by the Carpet Manufactures to seam your carpet together will 
cause a slight hump at the seam area.  Although the seam will be crafted to the CFI standards, this usually causes the seam to 


be noticeable.  Seam will not be Invisible, and this is normal.                    We do not cut doors.  
Any conditions or work  that are not specifically stated in this contract are not a part of this contract & will be an additional charge.     


189/303







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
  
  


AGENDA ITEM:                    Proposed Composition of Trustee-Area Boundaries 
  
MEETING DATE:                   March 20, 2019 
  
FROM:                                  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
  
  
BACKGROUND: 
National Demographics Corporation President Douglas Johnson will present the proposed 
composition of Trustee-area boundaries. 
 
At its Wednesday, January 16, 2019 meeting, the Board adopted Resolution Number 14-18-19, 
declaring its intent to transition from at-large elections, where each trustee is elected by all 
voters within the District, to by-trustee area elections, where each trustee must reside within a 
designated trustee-area boundary, and is elected only by the voters in that trustee-area. 
  
On February 20, 2019, after two public hearings to gather community input on the trustee-area 
map creation process, the Board adopted Resolution # 19-18-19, selecting criteria to guide the 
District’s demographers in preparing draft trustee areas.  On March 13, 2019, the District timely 
published three proposed trustee area maps on the District’s website for consideration by the 
Board and the community.  On March 20, 2019, the proposed trustee area maps will be 
presented to the Board.  Following the presentation, the Board will hold the first of two 
statutorily required public hearings to receive community input on the proposed trustee-area 
maps, pursuant to Elections Code section 10010, subdivision (a)(2). 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
To Be Determined. 
 
  
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


 


 


 


 


 


190/303







3 5
4


2


6


7


1


Westlake


Soquel


Santa Cruz


Mission Hill


Harbor


Gault


DeLaveaga


Branciforte


Branciforte


Bay View


U
nion Pacific R


R


Soquel C
rk


B
ra


nc
ifo


rt
e 


C
rk


9


1


1


1


17


37
th


 A
ve


W
e st e rn


 D
r


Meder St


Laurel St


Soquel Ave


E
 C


liff D
r


N
 B


ra
nc


if
or


te
 A


ve


17
th


 A
ve


Capitola Rd


41st A
ve


N
 R


od
eo


 G
ul


ch
 R


d


Map A/Mapa A


National Demographics Corporation, March 7, 2019


Map layers
101
Water Area
Pipeline/Power Line
Railroad
River
Streets
CDP
Cities and Towns
School Sites
Elementary District


Type
Elementary (5)
High (3)
Middle (2)


©2016 CALIPER191/303







3
54


2


6


7
1


U
n


ion P
acific R


R


Mountain


Soquel


Happy Valley


Bonny Doon Union


Live Oak


Santa Cruz City


Pacific


Santa Cruz City Schools
2019 Districting
Draft Map 101


National Demographics Corporation, March 7, 2019


Map layers
101
Water Area
Pipeline/Power Line
Railroad
River
CDP
Cities and Towns
Elementary School


192/303







District 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 Total
Ideal Total Pop 16,950 16,387 17,092 17,412 16,474 16,734 16,346 117,395


Deviation from ideal 179 -384 321 641 -297 -37 -425 1,025
% Deviation 1.07% -2.29% 1.91% 3.82% -1.77% -0.22% -2.53% 6.11%


% Hisp 16% 15% 27% 19% 25% 20% 15% 20%
% NH White 65% 72% 60% 73% 67% 70% 77% 69%
% NH Black 2% 2% 3% 2% 2% 2% 1% 2%


% Asian-American 14% 9% 7% 4% 4% 6% 4% 7%
Total 16,198 14,741 11,962 13,730 12,530 12,063 13,484 94,707


% Hisp 20% 10% 17% 12% 17% 13% 14% 15%
% NH White 59% 81% 72% 82% 76% 81% 80% 75%
% NH Black 2% 2% 2% 1% 2% 1% 1% 2%


% Asian/Pac.Isl. 17% 5% 7% 3% 4% 3% 3% 6%
Total 10,508 11,733 9,891 11,735 10,155 10,946 11,648 76,615


% Latino est. 15% 12% 15% 11% 14% 12% 10% 13%
% Spanish-Surnamed 14% 11% 14% 10% 13% 11% 9% 11%
% Asian-Surnamed 5% 4% 4% 2% 2% 3% 2% 3%


% Filipino-Surnamed 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
% NH White est. 74% 81% 77% 85% 81% 83% 85% 81%


% NH Black 2% 2% 1% 1% 2% 1% 1% 1%
Total 8,417 9,608 7,908 9,839 8,360 9,064 9,602 62,797


% Latino est. 14% 12% 14% 10% 13% 11% 10% 12%
% Spanish-Surnamed 13% 10% 13% 9% 12% 10% 9% 11%
% Asian-Surnamed 5% 3% 3% 2% 2% 2% 2% 3%


% Filipino-Surnamed 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
% NH White est. 75% 82% 79% 85% 82% 84% 86% 82%


% NH Black 2% 2% 1% 1% 2% 1% 1% 1%
Total 4,026 5,188 3,854 5,407 4,367 5,431 5,557 33,830


% Latino est. 7% 8% 9% 7% 9% 7% 6% 7%
% Spanish-Surnamed 6% 7% 8% 6% 8% 6% 5% 7%
% Asian-Surnamed 3% 2% 3% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%


% Filipino-Surnamed 0% 1% 0% 0% 1% 1% 1% 1%
% NH White est. 89% 88% 81% 90% 86% 89% 90% 88%
% NH Black est. 1% 1% 5% 1% 2% 1% 1% 2%


ACS Pop. Est. Total 19,444 18,048 16,339 17,903 17,226 17,486 17,333 123,777
age0-19 40% 18% 17% 19% 22% 23% 22% 23%
age20-60 46% 63% 66% 62% 58% 54% 53% 57%
age60plus 14% 19% 17% 19% 20% 23% 25% 19%


immigrants 13% 12% 16% 13% 16% 16% 13% 14%
naturalized 41% 54% 34% 35% 40% 36% 52% 41%


english 67% 81% 75% 79% 73% 75% 82% 76%
spanish 15% 9% 17% 18% 22% 21% 13% 16%


asian-lang 12% 5% 4% 1% 2% 2% 1% 4%
other lang 6% 5% 4% 2% 2% 2% 4% 4%


Language Fluency Speaks Eng. "Less 
than Very Well" 3% 6% 9% 8% 10% 11% 5% 7%


hs-grad 43% 38% 46% 47% 51% 47% 51% 46%
bachelor 27% 32% 25% 26% 24% 26% 26% 26%


graduatedegree 25% 26% 20% 18% 14% 17% 17% 19%
Child in Household child-under18 22% 19% 17% 19% 25% 26% 26% 22%
Pct of Pop. Age 16+ employed 39% 60% 64% 64% 65% 63% 61% 59%


income 0-25k 18% 22% 30% 24% 18% 15% 15% 21%
income 25-50k 13% 17% 22% 19% 23% 13% 18% 18%
income 50-75k 15% 14% 17% 16% 17% 17% 13% 15%
income 75-200k 40% 35% 25% 35% 35% 41% 41% 36%


income 200k-plus 14% 12% 6% 6% 8% 14% 13% 10%
single family 84% 78% 51% 62% 72% 81% 79% 71%
multi-family 16% 22% 49% 38% 28% 19% 21% 29%


rented 35% 52% 66% 57% 50% 37% 38% 49%
owned 65% 48% 34% 43% 50% 63% 62% 51%


Total population data from the 2010 Decennial Census.


Surname-based Voter Registration and Turnout data from the California Statewide Database.
Latino voter registration and turnout data are Spanish-surname counts adjusted using Census Population Department undercount estimates. NH White and NH Black 
registration and turnout counts estimated by NDC. Citizen Voting Age Pop., Age, Immigration, and other demographics from the 2012-2016 American Community 
Survey and Special Tabulation 5-year data.


Housing Stats


Household Income


Education (among those 
age 25+)


Total Pop


Santa Cruz City Schools - Draft 101


Language spoken at home


23,479


Immigration


Citizen Voting Age Pop


Age


Voter Registration (Nov 
2016)


Voter Turnout     (Nov 
2016)


Voter Turnout     (Nov 
2014)


193/303







3 4


5


6


2


71


Westlake


Soquel


Santa Cruz


Mission Hill


Harbor


Gault


DeLaveaga


Branciforte


Branciforte


Bay View


U
nion Pacific R


R


Soquel C
rk


B
ra


nc
ifo


rt
e 


C
rk


9


1


1


1


17


37
th


 A
ve


W
e st e rn


 D
r


Meder St


Laurel St


Escalona Dr


E
 C


liff D
r


O
cean St


N
 B


ra
nc


if
or


te
 A


ve


17
th


 A
ve


Capitola Rd


41st A
ve


N
 R


od
eo


 G
ul


ch
 R


d


Map B/Mapa B


National Demographics Corporation, March 7, 2019


Map layers
102
Water Area
Pipeline/Power Line
Railroad
River
Streets
CDP
Cities and Towns
School Sites
Elementary District


Type
Elementary (5)
High (3)
Middle (2)


©2016 CALIPER194/303







3 4


5


62


7
1


U
n


ion P
acific R


R


Mountain


Soquel


Happy Valley


Bonny Doon Union


Live Oak


Santa Cruz City


Pacific


Santa Cruz City Schools
2019 Districting
Draft Map 102


National Demographics Corporation, March 7, 2019


Map layers
102
Water Area
Pipeline/Power Line
Railroad
River
CDP
Cities and Towns
Elementary School


195/303







District 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 Total
Ideal Total Pop 16,879 16,837 16,428 16,478 16,729 16,826 17,218 117,395


Deviation from ideal 108 66 -343 -293 -42 55 447 451
% Deviation 0.64% 0.39% -2.05% -1.75% -0.25% 0.33% 2.67% 2.69%


% Hisp 15% 27% 19% 21% 17% 23% 17% 20%
% NH White 66% 63% 67% 72% 73% 68% 75% 69%
% NH Black 2% 2% 2% 1% 2% 2% 1% 2%


% Asian-American 14% 6% 9% 3% 5% 5% 5% 7%
Total 16,365 13,381 12,919 12,829 12,875 12,282 14,058 94,707


% Hisp 19% 13% 15% 13% 12% 20% 12% 15%
% NH White 60% 76% 76% 83% 82% 72% 82% 75%
% NH Black 2% 3% 1% 1% 2% 2% 1% 2%


% Asian/Pac.Isl. 17% 5% 7% 2% 4% 4% 3% 6%
Total 10,499 10,505 10,724 10,668 11,417 10,928 11,874 76,615


% Latino est. 15% 15% 13% 11% 11% 13% 11% 13%
% Spanish-Surnamed 14% 13% 12% 10% 10% 12% 9% 11%
% Asian-Surnamed 6% 3% 4% 2% 2% 2% 2% 3%


% Filipino-Surnamed 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
% NH White est. 75% 78% 80% 85% 83% 82% 84% 81%


% NH Black 2% 3% 1% 1% 2% 2% 1% 1%
Total 8,392 8,376 8,817 8,909 9,446 9,154 9,703 62,797


% Latino est. 14% 14% 12% 11% 11% 13% 10% 12%
% Spanish-Surnamed 13% 12% 11% 9% 10% 11% 9% 11%
% Asian-Surnamed 5% 3% 3% 2% 2% 2% 2% 3%


% Filipino-Surnamed 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
% NH White est. 77% 79% 82% 86% 84% 82% 85% 82%


% NH Black 2% 3% 1% 1% 2% 2% 1% 1%
Total 4,027 4,345 4,461 4,767 5,593 4,991 5,647 33,830


% Latino est. 7% 10% 7% 7% 7% 8% 7% 7%
% Spanish-Surnamed 6% 9% 7% 6% 6% 8% 6% 7%
% Asian-Surnamed 3% 2% 3% 2% 2% 2% 1% 2%


% Filipino-Surnamed 0% 1% 1% 1% 1% 0% 1% 1%
% NH White est. 89% 85% 85% 90% 90% 87% 89% 88%
% NH Black est. 1% 2% 4% 2% 1% 1% 1% 2%


ACS Pop. Est. Total 19,556 17,254 16,799 17,562 16,986 17,882 17,739 123,777
age0-19 40% 17% 18% 19% 20% 24% 23% 23%
age20-60 47% 64% 64% 61% 59% 53% 54% 57%
age60plus 13% 19% 17% 19% 21% 23% 23% 19%


immigrants 13% 14% 14% 15% 13% 17% 13% 14%
naturalized 42% 40% 44% 35% 41% 38% 49% 41%


english 67% 78% 79% 75% 80% 74% 80% 76%
spanish 14% 15% 11% 21% 16% 22% 14% 16%


asian-lang 12% 3% 5% 1% 2% 2% 2% 4%
other lang 6% 4% 5% 2% 3% 2% 4% 4%


Language Fluency Speaks Eng. "Less 
than Very Well" 3% 8% 7% 10% 7% 11% 6% 7%


hs-grad 42% 43% 41% 47% 48% 48% 53% 46%
bachelor 28% 28% 29% 24% 27% 24% 25% 26%


graduatedegree 25% 22% 23% 18% 17% 16% 16% 19%
Child in Household child-under18 22% 15% 20% 20% 22% 26% 27% 22%
Pct of Pop. Age 16+ employed 40% 62% 62% 63% 63% 64% 64% 59%


income 0-25k 18% 29% 23% 24% 18% 17% 15% 21%
income 25-50k 13% 20% 19% 20% 16% 18% 19% 18%
income 50-75k 15% 15% 16% 17% 16% 15% 14% 15%
income 75-200k 39% 28% 32% 32% 40% 38% 42% 36%


income 200k-plus 14% 8% 10% 7% 10% 12% 11% 10%
single family 83% 62% 67% 65% 76% 79% 74% 71%
multi-family 17% 38% 33% 35% 24% 21% 26% 29%


rented 37% 64% 54% 57% 43% 40% 44% 49%
owned 63% 36% 46% 43% 57% 60% 56% 51%


Total population data from the 2010 Decennial Census.


Surname-based Voter Registration and Turnout data from the California Statewide Database.
Latino voter registration and turnout data are Spanish-surname counts adjusted using Census Population Department undercount estimates. NH White and NH Black 
registration and turnout counts estimated by NDC. Citizen Voting Age Pop., Age, Immigration, and other demographics from the 2012-2016 American Community 
Survey and Special Tabulation 5-year data.


Housing Stats


Household Income


Education (among those 
age 25+)


Total Pop


Santa Cruz City Schools - Draft 102


Language spoken at home


23,479


Immigration


Citizen Voting Age Pop


Age


Voter Registration (Nov 
2016)


Voter Turnout     (Nov 
2016)


Voter Turnout     (Nov 
2014)


196/303







3
5


6


2
4


7


1


Westlake


Soquel


Santa Cruz


Mission Hill


Harbor


Gault


DeLaveaga


Branciforte


Branciforte


Bay View


U
nion Pacific R


R


Soquel C
rk


B
ra


nc
ifo


rt
e 


C
rk


9


1


1


1


17


37
th


 A
ve


W
e st e rn


 D
r


Meder St


Soquel Ave


E
 C


liff D
r


N
 B


ra
nc


if
or


te
 A


ve


Capitola Rd


17
th


 A
ve


41st A
ve


N
 R


od
eo


 G
ul


ch
 R


d


Map C/Mapa C


National Demographics Corporation, March 7, 2019


Map layers
103
Water Area
Pipeline/Power Line
Railroad
River
Streets
CDP
Cities and Towns
School Sites
Elementary District


Type
Elementary (5)
High (3)
Middle (2)


©2016 CALIPER197/303







3
5


6
2 4


7


1


U
n


ion P
acific R


R


Mountain


Soquel


Happy Valley


Bonny Doon Union


Live Oak


Santa Cruz City


Pacific


Santa Cruz City Schools
2019 Districting
Draft Map 103


National Demographics Corporation, March 7, 2019


Map layers
103
Water Area
Pipeline/Power Line
Railroad
River
CDP
Cities and Towns
Elementary School


198/303







District 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 Total
Ideal Total Pop 16,620 16,741 16,477 16,188 17,073 17,274 17,022 117,395


Deviation from ideal -151 -30 -294 -583 302 503 251 885
% Deviation -0.90% -0.18% -1.75% -3.48% 1.80% 3.00% 1.50% 5.28%


% Hisp 15% 16% 26% 18% 25% 20% 18% 20%
% NH White 75% 62% 62% 74% 67% 70% 74% 69%
% NH Black 2% 2% 3% 2% 2% 2% 1% 2%


% Asian-American 6% 17% 7% 5% 4% 6% 4% 7%
Total 13,780 17,172 11,670 12,429 12,920 13,503 13,233 94,707


% Hisp 11% 19% 17% 11% 17% 14% 13% 15%
% NH White 81% 60% 72% 83% 77% 77% 81% 75%
% NH Black 2% 2% 2% 1% 2% 2% 1% 2%


% Asian/Pac.Isl. 4% 18% 7% 4% 3% 4% 3% 6%
Total 11,709 10,525 9,698 11,177 10,318 11,300 11,888 76,615


% Latino est. 10% 18% 15% 10% 14% 12% 11% 13%
% Spanish-Surnamed 9% 16% 14% 9% 12% 11% 10% 11%
% Asian-Surnamed 2% 7% 4% 2% 2% 2% 2% 3%


% Filipino-Surnamed 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
% NH White est. 83% 71% 78% 85% 82% 82% 85% 81%


% NH Black 2% 2% 1% 1% 2% 1% 1% 1%
Total 9,735 8,283 7,770 9,472 8,483 9,260 9,794 62,797


% Latino est. 10% 17% 14% 9% 13% 12% 10% 12%
% Spanish-Surnamed 9% 15% 13% 8% 12% 11% 9% 11%
% Asian-Surnamed 2% 6% 3% 2% 2% 2% 2% 3%


% Filipino-Surnamed 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
% NH White est. 84% 73% 80% 86% 83% 83% 86% 82%


% NH Black 2% 2% 1% 1% 2% 1% 1% 1%
Total 5,614 3,594 3,818 5,523 4,366 5,076 5,839 33,830


% Latino est. 7% 8% 9% 6% 8% 8% 6% 7%
% Spanish-Surnamed 7% 7% 8% 6% 7% 8% 6% 7%
% Asian-Surnamed 1% 3% 3% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%


% Filipino-Surnamed 1% 1% 0% 0% 1% 1% 1% 1%
% NH White est. 89% 87% 82% 90% 88% 87% 90% 88%
% NH Black est. 1% 1% 5% 1% 2% 2% 1% 2%


ACS Pop. Est. Total 16,978 20,528 15,714 16,406 18,231 17,330 18,591 123,777
age0-19 18% 39% 17% 19% 20% 23% 23% 23%
age20-60 58% 51% 65% 61% 59% 55% 52% 57%
age60plus 23% 10% 17% 19% 20% 22% 25% 19%


immigrants 10% 14% 16% 12% 16% 15% 15% 14%
naturalized 50% 45% 34% 40% 36% 47% 39% 41%


english 83% 67% 75% 80% 74% 77% 78% 76%
spanish 11% 13% 17% 15% 22% 19% 17% 16%


asian-lang 2% 13% 4% 2% 2% 2% 1% 4%
other lang 4% 7% 4% 3% 2% 2% 4% 4%


Language Fluency Speaks Eng. "Less 
than Very Well" 5% 3% 9% 6% 10% 9% 9% 7%


hs-grad 43% 36% 46% 45% 49% 53% 48% 46%
bachelor 30% 29% 25% 29% 23% 25% 24% 26%


graduatedegree 21% 32% 20% 19% 16% 14% 17% 19%
Child in Household child-under18 19% 21% 17% 20% 21% 26% 27% 22%
Pct of Pop. Age 16+ employed 59% 42% 63% 65% 62% 65% 61% 59%


income 0-25k 20% 22% 30% 20% 22% 17% 14% 21%
income 25-50k 17% 14% 22% 17% 20% 20% 16% 18%
income 50-75k 16% 12% 17% 15% 18% 15% 14% 15%
income 75-200k 36% 37% 25% 39% 32% 39% 41% 36%


income 200k-plus 11% 16% 6% 9% 7% 8% 15% 10%
single family 82% 76% 52% 68% 70% 70% 85% 71%
multi-family 18% 24% 48% 32% 30% 30% 15% 29%


rented 45% 47% 65% 52% 51% 48% 33% 49%
owned 55% 53% 35% 48% 49% 52% 67% 51%


Total population data from the 2010 Decennial Census.


Surname-based Voter Registration and Turnout data from the California Statewide Database.
Latino voter registration and turnout data are Spanish-surname counts adjusted using Census Population Department undercount estimates. NH White and NH Black 
registration and turnout counts estimated by NDC. Citizen Voting Age Pop., Age, Immigration, and other demographics from the 2012-2016 American Community 
Survey and Special Tabulation 5-year data.


Housing Stats


Household Income


Education (among those 
age 25+)


Total Pop


Santa Cruz City Schools - Draft 103


Language spoken at home


23,479


Immigration


Citizen Voting Age Pop


Age


Voter Registration (Nov 
2016)


Voter Turnout     (Nov 
2016)


Voter Turnout     (Nov 
2014)


199/303







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.4.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
  
  


AGENDA ITEM:                    Public Hearing Regarding Proposed Composition of Trustee-Area 
Boundaries 


  
MEETING DATE:                   March 20, 2019 
  
FROM:                                  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
  
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
Conduct the public hearing to consider the proposed composition of Trustee-area boundaries.  
  
BACKGROUND: 
At its Wednesday, January 16, 2019 meeting, the Board adopted Resolution Number 14-18-19, 
declaring its intent to transition from at-large elections, where each trustee is elected by all 
voters within the District, to by-trustee area elections, where each trustee must reside within a 
designated trustee-area boundary, and is elected only by the voters in that trustee-area. 
  
On February 20, 2019, after two public hearings to gather community input on the trustee-area 
map creation process, the Board adopted Resolution # 19-18-19, selecting criteria to guide the 
District’s demographers in preparing draft trustee areas.  On March 13, 2019, the District timely 
published three proposed trustee area maps on the District’s website for consideration by the 
Board and the community.  On March 20, 2019, the proposed trustee area maps will be 
presented to the Board.  Following the presentation, the Board will hold the first of two 
statutorily required public hearings to receive community input on the proposed trustee-area 
maps, pursuant to Elections Code section 10010, subdivision (a)(2). 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
 
  
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


200/303







 


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 


NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Santa Cruz City Schools (“District”) Board of Education (“Board”) 
will hold a public hearing on:  


Wednesday, March 20, 2019 


For the First Public Hearing Regarding Proposed Composition of Trustee-Area Boundaries. The public 
hearing will be held at the following location: 


400 Encinal St. Santa Cruz, Board Room at Santa Cruz County Office of Education 
SCCS Board of Trustees Meeting – Open Session Begins at 6:30pm 


At its Wednesday, January 16, 2019 meeting, the Board adopted Resolution Number 14-18-19, 
declaring its intent to transition from at-large elections, where each trustee is elected by all voters 
within the District, to by-trustee area elections, where each trustee must reside within a designated 
trustee-area boundary, and is elected only by the voters in that trustee-area. 
  
On February 20, 2019, after two public hearings to gather community input on the trustee-area map 
creation process, the Board adopted Resolution # 19-18-19, selecting criteria to guide the District’s 
demographers in preparing draft trustee areas.  On March 13, 2019, the District timely published 
three proposed trustee area maps on the District’s website for consideration by the Board and the 
community.  On March 20, 2019, the proposed trustee area maps will be presented to the 
Board.  Following the presentation, the Board will hold the first of two statutorily required public 
hearings to receive community input on the proposed trustee-area maps, pursuant to Elections Code 
section 10010, subdivision (a)(2). 
 
Should you have any questions regarding this notice, please direct them to Superintendent Kris Munro 
at the District office (kmunro@sccs.net or [831] 429-3410 ext. 220).       
 
 
 
Dated:  March 13, 2019   


 


201/303







 


NOTA DE AUDENCIA PUBLICA 
 


SE ENTREGA EL AVISO de que la Junta de Educación de las Escuelas de la Ciudad de Santa Cruz 
("Distrito") ("Junta") realizará una audiencia pública el: 


20 de marzo, 2019 


Para la primera audiencia pública sobre la composición propuesta de los límites del área de los 
fideicomisarios. La audiencia pública se llevará a cabo en el siguiente lugar: 


400 Encinal St. Santa Cruz, sala de juntas  
de la Oficina de Educación del Condado de Santa Cruz 


Reunión de la Junta de Síndicos de SCCS - Sesión abierta comienza a las 6:30 pm 
 


En su reunión del miércoles 16 de enero de 2019, la Junta adoptó la Resolución Número 14-18-19, 
declarando su intención de hacer la transición de las elecciones generales, donde cada fideicomisario 
es elegido por todos los votantes dentro del Distrito, para las elecciones del área del fideicomisario, 
donde cada fideicomisario debe residir dentro de un límite designado de área de fideicomisario, y es 
elegido solo por los votantes en esa área de fideicomiso. 
  
El 20 de febrero de 2019, después de dos audiencias públicas para recabar opiniones de la 
comunidad sobre el proceso de creación del mapa de área de fideicomisario, la Junta adoptó la 
Resolución # 19-18-19, seleccionando criterios para guiar a los demógrafos del Distrito en la 
preparación de proyectos de áreas de fideicomisarios. El 13 de marzo de 2019, el Distrito presentó 
oportunamente tres mapas de área de fideicomisarios propuestos en el sitio web del Distrito para su 
consideración por la Junta y la comunidad. El 20 de marzo de 2019, los mapas de área de 
fideicomisarios propuestos se presentarán a la Junta. Después de la presentación, la Junta llevará a 
cabo la primera de las dos audiencias públicas exigidas por ley para recibir comentarios de la 
comunidad sobre los mapas de área de fideicomisarios propuestos, de conformidad con la sección 
10010 del Código Electoral, subdivisión (a) (2). 
 
Si tiene alguna pregunta con respecto a este aviso, comuníquese con la Superintendente Kris Munro 
en la oficina del Distrito (kmunro@sccs.net o [831] 429-3410 ext. 220). 
 
 
 
 
Fecha: 13 de marzo, 2019   


 


202/303







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.4.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


  


  
AGENDA ITEM:                    Public Hearing Regarding State Board of Education Waiver 
  
MEETING DATE:                   March 20, 2019 


  
FROM:                                  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
  
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
Conduct the second public hearing to consider whether to submit a waiver to the State Board 
of Education allowing for implementation of by-trustee area elections without the need to hold 
an election on the matter pursuant to Education Code section 5020.  
  
BACKGROUND: 
On January 16, 2019, the Board adopted Resolution Number 14-18-19, declaring its intent to 
transition from at-large elections, where each trustee is elected by all voters within the District, 
to by-trustee area elections, where each trustee must reside within a designated trustee-area 
boundary, and is elected only by the voters in that trustee-area. A school district seeking to 
transition to a by-trustee area election system must submit an application to the local County 
Committee on School District Reorganization (“County Committee”) for approval. If the County 
Committee approves the school district’s application, California Education Code section 5020 
would require an election to approve the move to by-trustee area elections. To avoid the costs 
associated with an election and to ensure timely implementation, the Board is considering 
seeking a waiver from the State Board of Education of this election requirement, as well as 
certain other Education Code sections related to the election requirement. If the waiver is 
granted by the State Board of Education, no election to approve the change to by-trustee area 
elections will take place, and the County Committee’s decision on the District’s application will 
be final. This election requirement provided in Education Code section 5020 is separate and 
distinct from any election that may be required to amend the City Charter. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code sections 5019 and 33050, the Board invites community input on 
the proposed waiver request.  Any member of the public or representatives of the school 
district will be provided the opportunity to offer oral or written comments on the matter. The 
Board will have a series of public hearings regarding the formation of by-trustee areas prior to 
any final action.  
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
 


  
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 


Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


203/303







 


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 


NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Santa Cruz City Schools (“District”) Board of Education (“Board”) 
will hold a public hearing on:  


Wednesday, March 20, 2019 


to consider whether to submit a waiver to the State Board of Education allowing for implementation 
of by-trustee area elections without the need to hold an election on the matter pursuant to 
Education Code section 5020. The public hearing will be held at the following location: 


400 Encinal St. Santa Cruz, Board Room at Santa Cruz County Office of Education 
SCCS Board of Trustees Meeting – Open Session Begins at 6:30pm 


At its Wednesday, January 16, 2019 meeting, the Board adopted Resolution Number 14-18-19, 
declaring its intent to transition from at-large elections, where each trustee is elected by all voters 
within the District, to by-trustee area elections, where each trustee must reside within a designated 
trustee-area boundary, and is elected only by the voters in that trustee-area.  A school district seeking 
to transition to a by-trustee area election system must submit an application to the local County 
Committee on School District Reorganization (“County Committee”) for approval.   If the County 
Committee approves the school district’s application, California Education Code section 5020 would 
require an election to approve the move to by-trustee area elections.  To avoid the costs associated 
with an election and to ensure timely implementation, the Board is considering seeking a waiver from 
the State Board of Education of this election requirement, as well as certain other Education Code 
sections related to the election requirement. If the waiver is granted by the State Board of Education, 
no election to approve the change to by-trustee area elections will take place, and the County 
Committee’s decision on the District’s application will be final.  (Note that this election requirement 
provided in Education Code section 5020 is separate and distinct from any election that may be required 
to amend the City Charter.) 
 
Pursuant to Education Code sections 5019 and 33050, the Board invites community input on the 
proposed waiver request.  Any member of the public or representatives of the school district will be 
provided the opportunity to offer oral or written comments on the matter. The Board will have a series 
of public hearings regarding the formation of by-trustee areas prior to any final action.  
 
Should you have any questions regarding this notice, please direct them to Superintendent Kris Munro 
at the District office (kmunro@sccs.net or [831] 429-3410 ext. 220).       
 
 
 
Dated:  March 7, 2019   


 
204/303







 


AVISO DE AUDIENCIA PÚBLICA 
 


SE ENTREGA EL AVISO de que la Mesa Directiva ("Mesa Directiva") las Escuelas de la Ciudad de Santa 
Cruz ("Distrito") realizará una audiencia pública el: 


Miércoles 20 de marzo de 2019 


para considerar si presentar una exención a la Junta de Educación del Estado que permita la 
implementación de las elecciones del área del fideicomisario sin la necesidad de realizar una elección 
sobre el tema conforme a la sección 5020 del Código de Educación. La audiencia pública se llevará a 
cabo en la siguiente ubicación: 


400 Encinal St. Santa Cruz, Sala de juntas en la oficina de educación del condado  
Junta del Consejo de Administración de SCCS - Sesión abierta empieza a las 6:30pm 


En su reunión del miércoles 16 de enero de 2019, la Mesa Directiva adoptó la Resolución Número 14-
18-19, declarando su intención de hacer la transición de las elecciones generales, donde cada 
fideicomisario es elegido por todos los votantes dentro del Distrito, para las elecciones del área del 
fideicomisario, donde cada fideicomisario debe residir dentro de un límite designado de área de 
fideicomisario, y es elegido solo por los votantes en esa área de fideicomiso. Un distrito escolar que 
busca la transición a un sistema de elección del área del fideicomisario debe presentar una solicitud al 
Comité del Condado local sobre Reorganización del Distrito Escolar ("Comité del Condado") para su 
aprobación. Si el Comité del Condado aprueba la solicitud del distrito escolar, la sección 5020 del 
Código de Educación de California requeriría una elección para aprobar el cambio a las elecciones del 
área del fideicomisario. Para evitar los costos asociados con una elección y asegurar la implementación 
oportuna, la Mesa Directiva está considerando solicitar una exención de la Junta de Educación del 
Estado de este requisito de elección, así como algunas otras secciones del Código de Educación 
relacionadas con el requisito de elección. Si la Junta de Educación del Estado otorga la exención, no se 
realizará ninguna elección para aprobar el cambio a las elecciones del área del fideicomisario, y la 
decisión del Comité del Condado sobre la solicitud del Distrito será definitiva. (Tenga en cuenta que 
este requisito de elección provisto en la sección 5020 del Código de Educación es separado y distinto 
de cualquier elección que se pueda requerir para enmendar el Estatuto de la Ciudad). 
 
De conformidad con las secciones 5019 y 33050 del Código de Educación, la Mesa Directiva invita a 
que la comunidad formule parte de la solicitud de exención propuesta. Cualquier miembro del público 
o representantes del distrito escolar tendrá la oportunidad de ofrecer comentarios orales o escritos 
sobre el tema. La Mesa Directica tendrá una serie de audiencias públicas sobre la formación de áreas 
de fideicomisarios antes de cualquier acción final. 
Si tiene alguna pregunta con respecto a este aviso, comuníquese con la Superintendente Kris Munro 
en la oficina del Distrito (kmunro@sccs.net o [831] 429-3410 ext. 220).       
 
 
Fecha:  25 de febrero de 2019   205/303







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.4.2.  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


  


  
AGENDA ITEM:                    Resolution 24-18-19: Consideration and Potential Adoption for 


Establishing Criteria for Developing Trustee Area Boundaries 
  
MEETING DATE:                   March 20, 2019 


  
FROM:                                  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 


  
RECOMMENDATION: 
Adopt resolution 24-18-19 to authorize the Superintendent to seek a waiver from the State 
Board of Education.  
  
  
BACKGROUND: 
On January 16, 2019, the Board adopted Resolution Number 14-18-19, declaring its intent to 
transition from at-large elections, where each trustee is elected by all voters within the District, 
to by-trustee area elections, where each trustee must reside within a designated trustee-area 
boundary, and is elected only by the voters in that trustee-area.   


This resolution will authorize the State Board of Education to waive this voter approval 
requirement, which could reduce the cost and expedite the timeline for implementation of the 
by-trustee area elections. Typically, an election to approve the change in voting methods will 
result in a cost to the District. 


 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 


  
  
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
  
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


 


206/303







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Resolution # 24-18-19 


 


RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SUPERINTENDENT TO 


SEEK A WAIVER FROM THE STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION 


 


 WHEREAS, the Board of Education (“Board”) of Santa Cruz City Schools (“District”) is 


elected under an “at-large” election system where trustees are elected by voters of the entire 


District; and 


  


WHEREAS, at its Wednesday, January 16, 2019 meeting, the Board adopted Resolution 


Number 14-18-19, declaring its intent to transition from at-large elections to by-trustee area 


elections, where each trustee must reside within a designated trustee-area boundary, and is elected 


only by the voters in that trustee-area;  


 


WHEREAS, pursuant to Elections Code section 10010, subdivision (a)(1), the Board will 


hold a minimum of two public hearings prior to developing proposed by-trustee area boundary 


maps;  


 


WHEREAS, the Board will hold a minimum of two additional public hearings to seek 


public input on the proposed by-trustee area maps developed with assistance from a demographer 


(Elec. Code, § 10010, subd. (a)(2));  


 


WHEREAS, the Board will hold an additional public hearing before adopting a by-trustee 


area map and submitting it to the Santa Cruz County Committee on School District Organization 


(“County Committee”) for consideration;   


 


 WHEREAS, Education Code sections 5019 and 5030 authorize the County Committee, 


upon application of a school district’s governing board, to change the method of election in a 


school district under its jurisdiction;  


 


 WHEREAS, if the County Committee approves this request to change the method of 


electing board members, Education Code section 5020 requires the County Committee’s resolution 


of approval to be submitted to the electorate for its approval; 


 


 WHEREAS, an election to approve the change in voting methods will result in a cost to 


the District, and Education Code sections 33050-33053 authorize the State Board of Education to 


waive this voter approval requirement, which could reduce the cost and expedite the timeline for 


implementation of the by-trustee area elections; 


 


 WHEREAS, in light of the above, the Board wishes to request that the State Board of 


Education waive the election requirement set forth in the Education Code;  


 


 WHEREAS, on March 6, 2019, the Board held a public hearing on the proposed waiver 


application to solicit input from the public and District stakeholders;   


 


 WHEREAS, the District properly posted a timely notice of the aforementioned public 


hearing;   


 


207/303







 WHEREAS, the District complied with the notice and consulting requirements set forth in 


Education Code sections 33050 et seq. 


 


 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Education of Santa Cruz City 


Schools hereby resolves as follows: 


 


 1. The Board hereby authorizes the Superintendent and her designee(s) to seek a full 


waiver of Education Code section 5020, and partial waivers of Education Code sections 5019, 


5021, and 5030 as set forth in Exhibit A, or as otherwise required by the State Board of Education, 


to effectuate the District’s goal of moving to a by-trustee area election system. 


 


 2. The District Superintendent/designee are hereby authorized and directed to take any 


other actions necessary to effectuate the purposes of this resolution. 


  


PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Education of SANTA CRUZ CITY 


SCHOOLS, at a regular meeting of the Board of Education held March 20, 2019, by the 


following vote: 


 


AYES:  _____ 


NOES:  _____ 


ABSTAIN: _____ 


ABSENT: _____ 


 


 


I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was duly and regularly introduced, passed, 


and adopted by the members of the Board of Education of Santa Cruz City Schools, at a public 


meeting of said Board held on March 6, 2019. 


 


 


 


 


________________________                                    ________________________     


President, Board of Education    Clerk, Board of Education 


   


 


 


 


 


  


208/303







California Education Code Sections Proposed to be Waived 


Request to waive California Education Code Section 5020, and portions of sections 5019, 5021,  


and 5030, that require a districtwide election. Language proposed to be waived is bracketed and  


in italics below: 


§ 5019. Trustee areas and size of school district governing boards; powers of county 


committee; proposal and hearing 


(a) Except in a school district governed by a board of education provided for in the charter of a 


city or city and county, in any school district or community college district, the county 


committee on school district organization may establish trustee areas, rearrange the boundaries 


of trustee areas, abolish trustee areas, and increase to seven or decrease to five the number of 


members of the governing board, or adopt one of the alternative methods of electing governing 


board members specified in Section 5030. 


(b) The county committee on school district organization may establish or abolish a common 


governing board for a high school district and an elementary school district within the boundaries 


of the high school district. The resolution of the county committee on school district organization 


approving the establishment or abolition of a common governing board shall be presented to the 


electors of the school districts as specified in Section 5020. 


(c) (1) A proposal to make the changes described in subdivision (a) or (b) may be initiated by the 


county committee on school district organization or made to the county committee on school district 


organization either by a petition signed by 5 percent or 50, whichever is less, of the qualified 


registered voters residing in a district in which there are 2,500 or fewer qualified registered voters, by 


3 percent or 100, whichever is less, of the qualified registered voters residing in a district in which 


there are 2,501 to 10,000 qualified registered voters, by 1 percent or 250, whichever is less, of the 


qualified registered voters residing in a district in which there are 10,001 to 50,000 qualified 


registered voters, by 500 or more of the qualified registered voters residing in a district in which there 


are 50,001 to 100,000 qualified registered voters, by 750 or more of the qualified registered voters 


residing in a district in which there are 100,001 to 250,000 qualified registered voters, or by 1,000 or 


more of the qualified registered voters residing in a district in which there are 250,001 or more 


qualified registered voters or by resolution of the governing board of the district. For this purpose, the 


necessary signatures for a petition shall be obtained within a period of 180 days before the submission 


of the petition to the county committee on school district organization and the number of qualified 


registered voters in the district shall be determined pursuant to the most recent report submitted by 


the county elections official to the Secretary of State under Section 2187 of the Elections Code. 


(2) When a proposal is made pursuant to paragraph (1), the county committee on school district 


organization shall call and conduct at least one hearing in the district on the matter. At the 


conclusion of the hearing, the county committee on school district organization shall approve or 


disapprove the proposal. 


 


209/303







(d) If the county committee on school district organization approves pursuant to subdivision (a) [the 


rearrangement of] the boundaries of trustee areas for a particular district, then the [rearrangement 


of the] trustee areas shall be effectuated for the next district election occurring at least 120 days after 


[its] approval [, unless at least 5 percent of the registered voters of the district sign a petition 


requesting an election on the proposed rearrangement of trustee area boundaries. The petition for 


an election shall be submitted to the county elections official within 60 days of the proposal's 


adoption by the county committee on school district organization. If the qualified registered voters 


approve pursuant to subdivision (b) or (c) the rearrangement of the boundaries to the trustee areas 


for a particular district, the rearrangement of the trustee areas shall be effective for the next district 


election occurring at least 120 days after its approval by the voters]. 


[§ 5020. Presentation of proposal to electors 


(a) The resolution of the county committee approving a proposal to establish or abolish trustee 


areas, to adopt one of the alternative methods of electing governing board members specified in 


Section 5030, or to increase or decrease the number of members of the governing board shall 


constitute an order of election, and the proposal shall be presented to the electors of the district 


not later than the next succeeding election for members of the governing board. 


(b) If a petition requesting an election on a proposal to rearrange trustee area boundaries is filed, 


containing at least 5 percent of the signatures of the district's registered voters as determined by 


the elections official, the proposal shall be presented to the electors of the district, at the next 


succeeding election for the members of the governing board, at the next succeeding statewide 


primary or general election, or at the next succeeding regularly scheduled election at which the 


electors of the district are otherwise entitled to vote, provided that there is sufficient time to place 


the issue on the ballot 


(c) If a petition requesting an election on a proposal to establish or abolish trustee areas, to increase 


or decrease the number of members of the board, or to adopt one of the alternative methods of 


electing governing board members specified in Section 5030 is filed, containing at least 10 percent 


of the signatures of the district's registered voters as determined by the elections official, the 


proposal shall be presented to the electors of the district, at the next succeeding election for the 


members of the governing board, at the next succeeding statewide primary or general election, or 


at the next succeeding regularly scheduled election at which the electors of the district are otherwise 


entitled to vote, provided that there is sufficient time to place the issue on the ballot. Before the 


proposal is presented to the electors, the county committee on school district organization may call 


and conduct one or more public hearings on the proposal. 


 


(d) The resolution of the county committee approving a proposal to establish or abolish a common 


governing board for a high school and an elementary school district within the boundaries of the 


high school district shall constitute an order of election. The proposal shall be presented to the 


electors of the district at the next succeeding statewide primary or general election, or at the next 


succeeding regularly scheduled election at which the electors of the district are otherwise entitled to 


vote, provided that there is sufficient time to place the issue on the ballot.


 


210/303







 


(e) For each proposal there shall be a separate proposition on the ballot. The ballot shall contain 
the following words: 


"For the establishment (or abolition or rearrangement) of trustee areas in  ____  (insert name) 


School District --Yes" and "For the establishment (or abolition or rearrangement) of trustee areas 


in ____ (insert name) School District--No." 


"For increasing the number of members of the governing board of ______ (insert name) School 


District from five to seven--Yes" and "For increasing the number of members of the governing 


board of ____ (insert name) School District from five to seven--No." 


"For decreasing the number of members of the governing board of ______ (insert name) School 


District from seven to five--Yes" and "For decreasing the number of members of the governing 


board of ____ (insert name) School District from seven to five--No." 


"For the election of each member of the governing board of the __ (insert name) School District 


by the registered voters of the entire _ (insert name) School District--Yes" and "For the election 


of each member of the governing board of the __ (insert name) School District by the registered 


voters of the entire ___  (insert name) School District--No." 


"For the election of one member of the governing board of the __ (insert name) School District 


residing in each trustee area elected by the registered voters in that trustee area--Yes" and "For 


the election of one member of the governing board of the  ______  (insert name) School District  


residing in each trustee area elected by the registered voters in that trustee area--No." 


"For the election of one member, or more than one member for one or more trustee areas, of the 


governing board of the __ (insert name) School District residing in each trustee area elected by 


the registered voters of the entire ___  (insert name) School District--Yes" and "For the election 


of one member, or more than one member for one or more trustee areas, of the governing board 


of the _____ (insert name) School District residing in each trustee area elected by the registered 


voters of the entire ___ (insert name) School District--No." 


"For the establishment (or abolition) of a common governing board in the  ____  (insert name) 


School District and the ___ (insert name) School District--Yes" and "For the establishment (or 


abolition) of a common governing board in the ____ (insert name) School District and the ____   
(insert name) School District--No." 


211/303







 


 


If more than one proposal appears on the ballot, all must carry in order for any to become effective, 


except that a proposal to adopt one of the methods of election of board members specified in Section 


5030 which is approved by the voters shall become effective unless a proposal which is inconsistent 


with that proposal has been approved by a greater number of voters. An inconsistent proposal 


approved by a lesser number of voters than the number which have approved a proposal to adopt 


one of the methods of election of board members specified in Section 5030 shall not be effective.] 


 


§ 5021. Incumbents to serve out terms despite approval of change 


 


(a) If a proposal for the establishment of trustee areas formulated under Section[s] 5019 [and 5020] 


is approved [by a majority of the voters voting at the election], any affected incumbent board 


member shall serve out his or her term of office and succeeding board members shall be nominated 


and elected in accordance with Section 5030. In the event two or more trustee areas are established 


[at such election] which are not represented in the membership of the governing board of the school 


district, or community college district the county committee shall determine by lot the trustee area 


from which the nomination and election for the next vacancy on the governing board shall be made. 


(b) If a proposal for rearrangement of boundaries is approved by [a majority of the voters voting 


on the measure, or by] the county committee on school district organization [when no election is 


required], and if the boundary changes affect the board membership, any affected incumbent 


board member shall serve out his or her term of office and succeeding board members shall be 


nominated and elected in accordance with Section 5030. 


(c) If a proposal for abolishing trustee areas is approved [by a majority of the voters voting at the 


election], the incumbent board members shall serve out their terms of office and succeeding board 


members shall be nominated and elected at large from the district. 


§ 5030. Alternate method of election 


Except as provided in Sections 5027 and 5028, in any school district or community college district 


having trustee areas, the county committee on school district organization and the registered 


voters of a district, pursuant to Section[s] 5019 [and 5020, respectively], may at any time 


recommend one of the following alternate methods of electing governing board members: 


(a) That each member of the governing board be elected by the registered voters of the entire 


district. 


(b) That one or more members residing in each trustee area be elected by the registered voters 


of that particular trustee area. 


(c) That each governing board member be elected by the registered voters of the entire school 


district or community college district, but reside in the trustee area which he or she represents. 


The recommendation shall provide that any affected incumbent member shall serve out his or 


her term of office and that succeeding board members shall be nominated and elected in 


accordance with the method recommended by the county committee. 


Whenever trustee areas are established in a district, provision shall be made for one of the 


alternative methods of electing governing board members. 


212/303







 


[In counties with a population of less than 25,000,] the county committee on school district  


organization or the county board of education, if it has succeeded to the duties of the county 


committee, may at any time, by resolution, with respect to trustee areas established for any school 


district, other than a community college district, amend the provision required by this section 


without additional approval by the electors, to require one of the alternate methods for electing 


board members to be utilized. 


 


213/303







 


                   


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.1 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Local Control Accountability Plan: Multi-Tiered Systems of Support 
Academic Supports 


      
MEETING DATE:  March 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Multi-Tiered Systems of Support is an integrated, comprehensive framework that aligns 
academic, behavioral, and social-emotional learning in a fully integrated system of support for 
the benefit of ALL students. Multi-Tiered Systems of Support offers the potential to create 
needed systemic change through intentional design and redesign of services and supports in 
order to quickly identify and match services to student needs. An essential component of the 
district’s support systems, and a major part of the Local Control Accountability Plan, are each 
comprehensive school’s Response to Intervention Coordinator and the systems of support the 
Response to Intervention Coordinators oversee. 
 
Response to Intervention Purpose and Goals 
Response to Intervention is an essential component of Multi-Tiered Systems of Support. Santa 
Cruz City Schools has been using the Response to Intervention framework over the past six 
years as a means to ensure that ALL students are making academic progress. In the Response to 
Intervention framework there are 3 tiers, or levels, of support for students. Tier 1 is the 
universal tier and includes the academic support that all students receive in all classes. 
According the Response to Intervention framework, 80% of students should be successful (i.e., 
meet grade level expectations) in a strong Tier 1 program. Tier 2 is a flexible support provided 
to students that need more than the Tier 1 program to be successful. These students make up 
approximately 15% of students. Lastly, Tier 3 is the highest level of support given to students. 
Students in Tier 3 interventions in elementary receive additional time and are in the smallest 
groups. At secondary, this level of support is usually in the form of an additional class focused 
on providing intensive support in the area of need. The number of students in Tier 3 support 
should be only approximately 5% of the student population. 
 
In addition, as part of the Response to Intervention framework, the following types of 
assessments and data are used and collected by the Response to Intervention Coordinators to 
ensure that all students are making growth: 


1) Universal Assessments (Measure of Academic Progress Growth Reading & Mathematics) 


214/303







 


                   


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.1 


2) Progress Monitoring (Measure of Academic Progress Growth Reading & Mathematics, 
grades, teacher-created assessments) 


 
The district’s purpose and goal in using the Response to Intervention framework is to use a 
data-based systematic process to provide the necessary supports at the right time to the right 
students, in order to ensure ALL students are academically successful. Response to Intervention 
Coordinators work with teachers, administrators, and counselors to ensure that students who 
are not academically successful are provided with evidence-based, targeted interventions in 
their area(s) of need.  
 
Elementary Program Background 
The Elementary Response to Intervention coordinators and Walk to Read programs are in their 
seventh year. The Response to Intervention coordinators organize, oversee, and provide 
interventions for all elementary students who have been identified as reading below grade 
level. Using research-based tools such as Systematic Instruction in Phoneme awareness, 
Phonics and Sight words, Lexia, Doug Fischer’s Accessing Complex Text, Measure of Academic 
Progress, Children's Progress of Academic Achievement, and authentic literature, Response to 
Intervention coordinators and grade level teams provide 40 minutes of differentiated small 
group reading instruction to 1st through 5th graders, four times a week. The Walk to Read 
program targets all students with leveled literacy instruction.  
 
The Walk to Read program is a model of collaboration between general education and special 
education staff, with special education students learning side by side with other students at 
their instructional level. Special education students are in learning groups according to their 
present levels, not necessarily grouped by age or grade level with other special education 
students. 
 
Sites hold Student Learning Team meetings two to three times a year to assess student 
progress and to determine the best placement for each student. Meeting by grade level, the 
Student Learning Team meetings include all teachers (classroom and resource teachers), Walk 
to Read instructional technicians, Response to Intervention coordinator, and site administrator. 
Any changes in placement, groupings, or instructor are made at this meeting. Sites also discuss 
curriculum and make changes and recommendations for small group as well as classroom 
instruction. This model allows site teams the flexibility to vary their strategies and interventions 
as they respond to student needs determined by student performance data. 
 
Strengths of the Elementary Program  
Last year the district implemented a new district-wide assessment system, Measure of 
Academic Progress. As Measure of Academic Progress scores are highly correlated with the 
California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress, sites now have an ongoing 
measure of how students are proceeding towards mastery of Common Core State Standards. 
The Response to Intervention coordinators are at the heart of this initiative, ensuring that all 
students get assessed properly, that data are available to teachers and administration, and that 


215/303







 


                   


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.1 


each student’s growth is monitored. They organize the Student Learning Team data meetings, 
coordinate and provide interventions, and monitor student progress. The Response to 
Intervention Coordinators have been instrumental in retrieving data and getting staff and 
student buy in, further strengthening the Measure of Academic Progress assessment system 
implementation. 
 
Overall, Measure of Academic Progress is being well accepted by elementary teachers. They are 
finding the data provided by this assessment to be relevant and helpful, so much so, in fact, 
that it has replaced the Children's Progress of Academic Achievement at second grade.  
Elementary sites are also piloting Measure of Academic Progress in selected first grade 
classrooms for assessing mathematics.  


 
 
Elementary Program Needs for Improvement 
The number of children needing reading intervention currently exceeds the capacity and the 
design of the Response to Intervention model. Currently, 36% of elementary students in grades 
1 - 5 are being served in Walk to Read intervention groups. At the sites, the number of students 
in Walk to Read intervention groups ranges from 24% to 41%. The large number of students 
currently served in the Walk to Read Intervention strongly indicates the need for an aligned, 
effective Tier 1 core literacy program in reading and writing that effectively meets the needs of 
80 - 85% of students, including English learners. 
 


216/303







 


                   


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.1 


 
With the implementation of a K-5 literacy program, the Walk to Read team will be able to 
provide intervention to the 15 - 20% of students who need additional support beyond the 
classroom program. The Response to Intervention coordinators will be working closely with the 
classroom teachers to provide differentiated intervention within the overall program model. 
One obstacle that exists across the district is the need for more time for the classroom literacy 
program. The process of piloting Common Core aligned instructional materials in literacy have 
only highlighted the difficulty in providing adequate time in the current schedule. Programs 
common to all elementary sites such as Art, Music, Life lab, library and Walk to Read, all 
demand a complicated master schedule and, as excellent as these programs are, add to the 
fragmentation of the elementary academic program. Sites are currently considering making 
adjustments to their Walk to Read programs, depending on the site and grade level needs. One 
site is going to experiment with a different model for their fourth and fifth grade classrooms, 
having the intervention team “push in” to the classroom for universal access time.  
 
Elementary Evaluation Criteria: 
Student progress will be measured by growth on the Measure of Academic Progress and 
Children's Progress of Academic Achievement tests, the Developmental Reading Assessment, 
and the Multi-Level Academic Skills Inventory, Revised (an Oral Fluency test for grades 3 -5). 
Progress will be monitored for each individual in the Student Learning Team meetings two 
times a year.  
 
 
 


217/303







 


                   


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.1 


Secondary Background: 
Response to Intervention Coordinators are in their fourth year at each of the comprehensive 
middle schools and high schools. With the exception of Harbor, all secondary Response to 
Intervention Coordinators began their focus on mathematics as this was the content area of 
most need according to district and site California Assessment of Student Performance and 
Progress and grade data.  
 
Over the past four years, Response to Intervention Coordinators have been researching, 
creating, implementing, and then refining Tier 2 Math Interventions. For more specifics on the 
middle school and high school math interventions, please see the Addendum. Now that 
secondary sites are in year four with Response to Intervention Coordinators, all three 
comprehensive high schools and both middle schools have made significant strides in aligning 
their Tier 2 interventions based on research and evidence of student success. This year Harbor 
High also has a full time Response to Intervention Coordinator focused on supporting math. 
 
In addition to this Tier 2 intervention work, high school Response to Intervention Coordinators 
have been focusing on and supporting Tier 1 instruction by bringing math teachers together 
from each school to collaborate in order to determine priority standards for each math course. 
These priority standards have then been used to analyze each courses’ scope and sequence and 
are also being used to determine the focus of problem sets on the district semester finals for 
each course. Teachers will begin creating formative assessments for each of these priority 
standards in each course. This work will have a significant impact on student growth and 
success in their math class by increasing teacher and student clarity, unifying pacing and the 
curriculum of each course, and identifying connections between learning intentions, priority 
standards, and supporting standards.  
 
Strengths of the Secondary Program: 
The collective strengths of the secondary Tier 2 Math Interventions are that students in Math 
Interventions are improving their Tier 1 math class grade. Teachers and Response to 
Intervention Coordinators have also observed that students are taking a more active role in 
their learning and are advocating for themselves in their Tier 1 math class.  
 
In middle school, the students in Tier 2 Math Interventions who made the most growth on 
Measure of Academic Progress were in interventions where the teacher implemented the 
intervention program with fidelity. iReady, an online math and reading program, is part of the 
middle school math intervention, and students who regularly use this online math intervention 
program had the most growth on their Measure of Academic Progress scores. 
 
Secondary Program Needs for Improvement: 
Currently in high school, Tier 2 Math Plus sections are either offered before the typical school 
day begins or after it ends. Ideally the district would like to offer these sections during the 
school day, but because of scheduling and staff limitations, is not able to do so. 
 


218/303







 


                   


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.1 


Also, there are fifteen to twenty students in secondary Tier 2 intervention classes. This class size 
is challenging for one teacher to support at the level these students need. The district would 
like to have tutors to support these classes, but even if there is money available for this, it has 
been challenging to hire and maintain math tutors. 
 
In addition, there is a need to increase student buy in when taking Measure of Academic 
Progress and California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress tests. At both middle 
schools, the Response to Intervention Coordinators are doing demo goal setting lessons with 
Tier 1 math classes to demonstrate to teachers how to support students in setting goals and 
monitoring their growth. By actively engaging students in goal setting and self-monitoring their 
progress on Measure of Academic Progress, it will make these assessments more meaningful to 
students.  
 
There is more Tier 1 instructional work to do. Response to Intervention Coordinators are going 
to continue to support the implementation of the district determined Priority Standards, 
support the creation of common formative assessments aligned to these Priority Standards, 
and support teachers in using evidence based instructional strategies specific to the Common 
Core and College Preparatory Mathematics curriculum. 
 
Middle School Evaluation Criteria: 


1. Measure of Academic Progress Growth for Math and Reading with Intervention 


Students vs General Population. 


Below are graphs that show the average Measure of Academic Progress growth for 


Mission Hill Middle School’s Intervention Cohorts (Math Plus Course 1, Course 2, Course 


3, Read Plus, and Mindset Math Lab, and Reading Strategies, our Tier 3 Intervention 


Cohorts) as compared to the general student population from the same courses. 


219/303







 


                   


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.1 


 
When looking at the above graph, it is important to note that students in Course 1 Math Plus 


and Course 2 Math Plus used iReady (the current progress monitoring, adaptive student 


diagnostic and online instruction tool) during intervention. Students in Course 3 used Khan 


Academy - Mappers based off of their Measure of Academic Progress scores. iReady is making a 


bigger impact on student growth as measure by Measure of Academic Progress. 


 
When looking at the above graph, it is important to note that students in Read Plus used 


Learning Ally and structured Reading Comprehension Logs to support their reading while 


220/303







 


                   


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.1 


students in Reading Strategies utilized the Read 180 reading program to fidelity. In addition, the 


Read 180 teacher is a certified reading coach. Both using the Read 180 program to fidelity and 


the Read 180 teacher’s training are what are leading to this success in student growth. 


 


2. Semester Grades for Math and ELA with Plus/Intervention Students illustrating change 


in individual student grades pre and post intervention. 


Below are graphs that show the change in Math and English class grades before and 


during, or after intervention. In order to be considered for intervention graduation, 


students need to be earning a C, 70% or above, in their respective General Ed (Tier 1) 


class. 


  
● The data above reflects the students in Course 3 Math Plus during the Fall 2018 


Semester. Students earning D’s or F’s in their Math class may be eligible for Math Plus 


(see Spring 2018 chart).  


● The Math Plus programs are designed so students have time to work in small group 


rotations. One, with the teacher focusing on on-level concepts, another, working as a 


team on homework and finally, independently using a computer aided 


diagnostic/remedial math skill support program (iReady/Khan Academy).  


● This specific cohort didn’t meet their projected growth on Measure of Academic 


Progress, but has definitely shown improvement in their math class grades. On average, 


each math intervention cohort has shown course grade improvement from Spring to Fall 


semester 2018. 


 


 


221/303







 


                   


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.1 


Middle School Evaluation Criteria: 
1. Measure of Academic Progress Growth for Math and Reading with Intervention 


Students vs General Population. 


Below are graphs that show the average Measure of Academic Progress growth for 


Branciforte Middle School’s Intervention Cohorts (6th, 7th and 8th Grade Math Ready 


Intervention Cohorts) as compared to the general student population from the same 


courses. 


 


 
 


Math Ready is an adaptive, interactive online learning platform designed to assess students and 
provide individualized instruction based on each student’s unique needs.  This is accomplished 
through assessments that allow teachers to make informed instructional decisions, and also 
motivates students with access to their own personalized growth. This program assesses four 
domains in math for each student and provides adapted instruction based on each student’s 
need in each of the domains.   
 
Currently, the 6th grade Math Ready students are using this program as a weekly, 75 minute 
intervention during the Silent Sustained Reading time (so they do not miss core academic 
instruction).  Students in 7th and 8th grade Math Ready are also getting 75 minutes of 
instruction, weekly, with math instructors and peer tutors. These interventions are focused on 
re-engagement with their math course content and reinforcement of basic math skills. When 
looking at MAP growth goals in the above chart, it should be noted that 7th Grade Math Ready 
Intervention students scored higher than the general 7thgrade student population.  Additionally, 
Math Ready results are being further studied to parse out instructional strategies and 
approaches that are deployed with this 7thgrade cohort in order to strengthen practice in the 
6thand 8thgrades.   


48%


33.30%


49.00%
53.80% 52%


16.70%


0%


10%


20%


30%


40%


50%


60%


6th Grade
Overall (150)


6th Grade Math
Ready


Intervention
(15)


7th Grade
Overall (147)


7th Grade Math
Ready


Intervention
(13)


8th Grade
Overall (148)


8th Grade Math
Ready


Intervention
(12)P


er
ce


n
ta


ge
 o


f 
st


u
d


en
ts


 t
h


at
 m


et
 g


o
al


Percentage of B40MS Students who Met MAP 
Goal


222/303







 


                   


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.1 


 


 


2. Semester Grades for Math and ELA with Math Ready Students illustrating change in 


individual student grades pre and post intervention. 


Below are graphs that show the change in Math grades before and during, or after 


intervention.  The percentage of students who earned a “C” or better is within 10% of 


the general population (79.7% Math Ready vs. 88.9%).   


 


 
 


 
 


15%


30%


34%


14%


7%


B40MS MATH READY 
INTERVENTION STUDENT GRADES 


(N = 59)


A B C D F


43%


27%


19%


8%
3%


ALL STUDENTS MATH GRADES 
(N = 456)


A B C D F


223/303







 


                   


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.1 


Branciforte Middle School recognizes that these outcomes are not demonstrating needed levels 


of achievement.  They are currently studying this data and other data points as they work to 


systematize programs and interventions at their site.  Areas of focus include Universal Design 


for Learning, strategic staff assignments, creating individualized learning plans and designing a 


system for monitoring student progress.  These and other actions will be demonstrated in their 


School Plan for Student Achievement that will be presented to the Board this spring.   


 


High School Evaluation Criteria: 


● Completion of Integrated 1 and 2 for Tier 2 Math Plus students (C- or better) 


○ 2018-19: 62% of Math Intervention Students from all three comprehensive sites 


completed Integrated 1 and Integrated 2 with a C- or better in the First 


Semester. This percentage of intervention participants earning a grade of C- or 


better represents a 24% increase in C- or better grades from the time that they 


entered Math Plus. 


● Measure of Academic Progress Growth for Math Plus vs. general student population  


○ Below are graphs that show the average Fall percentiles for Math Plus students 


as compared to the general student population from the same course. This data 


suggests disparity of skills and knowledge between Math Plus students and the 


average student from the general population. Students from the lower 50th 


percentile are eligible for the intervention in order to facilitate closing the 


achievement gap. 


224/303







 


                   


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.1 


                


 
○ When looking at Measure of Academic Progress data and reports, a Soquel High 


Integrated 2 Math Plus class stands out as an exemplary intervention class. 


Eleven of nineteen, or 57.9% of students, met or exceeded their projected 


growth from their Fall to Winter Measure of Academic Progress test. In addition, 


the average projected growth for students in this class was 1.66 points. Students 


far exceeded this projected growth and grew an average of 3.08 points.  


 


Longitudinal Data 


● Below are graphs that illustrate the success of students after they participated in Integrated 1 


Math Plus at Soquel High. The first graph shows the Integrated 1 Math Plus students from the 


2017-18 school year and their math class fall semester grade this school year. The second graph 


shows the Integrated 1 Math Plus students from the 2016-17 school year and their math class 


fall semester grade this school year. Overall, students are getting passing grades. Previous to 


Math Plus, these students fit the profile of a student that would likely have had to repeat 


225/303







 


                   


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.1 


Integrated 1 and/or Integrated 2 and also would not likely have gone on to a third year of math. 


Now with Math Plus and early math intervention in high school, students are more successful 


and continuing on to a third year of math. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


226/303







 


                   


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.1 


Fiscal Impact: LCFF Supplemental (Restricted) 


 


 Full Time 
Equivalency 


Site(s) Cost 


Elementary Response to 
Intervention Coordinators 


4.0  1.0 Full Time Equivalency at each of 
the four elementary sites 


$475,791 
 


Elementary Walk to Read 
Instructional Technicians  


2 @ .3750 
FTE at four 
elementary 
sites 


 $121,556 
 


Secondary Response to 
Intervention Coordinators 


5.0  1.0 Full Time Equivalency at each of 
the five comprehensive secondary 
sites 


$547,986 
 


Secondary Reading 
Intervention Teachers 


0.8  0.2 Full Time Equivalency at each of 
the following sites: Branciforte 
Middle School, Mission Hill Middle 
School Harbor High, & Soquel High 


$78,197 


Academic Intervention 
Teachers (e.g., Math Plus, 
Mindset Math, etc.) 


2.2 0.4 Full Time Equivalency at each 
comprehensive secondary school 
 
0.2 Full Time Equivalency at 
Branciforte Small Schools 


$205,286 


 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
 
Addendum: Additional Middle and High School Intervention Program Information 
 


Middle School Tier 2 and Tier 3 


 Intervention Classes  


Tier 2 Intervention Classes: 
These intervention classes do not exclude students from any general education classes and are 
taught by content area teachers, Response to Intervention Coordinators, and/or counselors. 


● Small classes (sixteen students or less) that meet during SSR/Plus/Read  
● Meet three to four days per week for twenty-five to thirty minutes each class  


227/303







 


                   


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.1 


● Students work in small skill-based groups with teachers on specific areas of need and 
independently on individualized computer programs  


● Six to twelve week growth monitoring of students to determine exit from intervention 
or next steps  


● Serve 10-15% of students whose needs are not fully being met in Tier 1 
 
Branciforte Middle School   Mission Hill Middle School 
Math Plus     Math Plus 
Math Ready     Read Plus  
Mindset Math Lab    Academic Success – Group  
Read 180     Academic Support – Individual  
Executive Function Support Groups    
Writing Intervention 


 
Tier 3 Intervention Classes:   
These are intensive intervention classes that students take in place of an elective class. 
Teachers have specific training with Read 180 curriculum, English Language Development 
Standards, and Common Core Math Standards.  


● Small classes (fifteen students or less) that meet during full class periods for one or two 
semesters 


● Meet three to four days per week  
● Students work in whole class and small groups with teachers using specialized 


curriculum addressing students’ areas of need and development  
● Frequent and precise monitoring/feedback is given to students to track growth, assess 


needs, and close their achievement gap 
● Serves 5-10% of students 


 
 
Branciforte Middle School   Mission Hill Middle School 
Read 180      Read 180 
English Language Development   English Language Development 
Math Proficiency Development   Mindset Math Lab 
 


 


228/303







Multi-Tiered Systems of Support 


Academic Update


20 March 2019


229/303







Multi-Tiered Systems of Support District Vision


We will use data and evidence 


based practices to design and 


implement flexible, integrated, 


comprehensive systems 


responsive to the academic, 


behavioral, and social emotional 


needs of our diverse students.


230/303







RtI Coordinators are an Essential Part of 


Our Tier 1 & Tier 2 Academic Systems


Where am I 


going? How am I 


going?


Where to 


next?


231/303







Elementary RtI Coordinator Focus -
Where are we going?


Tier 1


● Monitoring student growth using MAP and Benchmark assessments and 


teacher recommendations to place students into Tier 2 and Tier 3 reading 


Interventions


● Developing teacher and student understanding of MAP by preparing data 


for Student Learning Team meetings and helping teachers interpret the data


● Working with teachers to support a productive Walk to Read program for 


all students


Tier 2


● Developing and refining Tier 2 programs for students who need additional 


support


● Developing and refining Tier 3 reading programs for students needing even 


more additional support 232/303







Elementary Growth Data - Highlights


● Bay View: 


○ 2nd grade Hispanic & White students: 99th percentile


○ 3rd Grade Hispanic students: 92nd percentile


● DeLaveaga: 


○ 4th grade Hispanic students: 99th percentile 


● Gault: 


○ 2nd grade Hispanic & White students: 99th percentile 


○ All grade levels MET or EXCEEDED their projected growth!


● Westlake: 


○ 3rd grade Hispanic & White students: 99th percentile


○ 4th grade Hispanic students: 99th percentile 
233/303







Student Growth Summary Report - Gault School


Number of Students Tested: 2nd Grade=39 3rd Grade=71 4th Grade=45  5th Grade=60


● RIT (Rausch Unit) Score = A continuous scale, K-12, to identify what a student is ready to learn, or 


the “Zone of Proximal Development.” The RIT scale extends equally across all grades, making it 


possible to compare a student's score at various points throughout his or her education.
234/303







235/303







236/303







Elementary Next Steps - Where to next?


● Help select and implement English Language Arts/English 


Language Development program for implementation district wide


● Refine existing Walk to Read program according to grade level and 


site needs in order to support implementation of Tier 1 English 


Language Arts/English Language Development program


● Continue to monitor student growth with Measure of Academic 


Progress, program assessments, district benchmark assessments
237/303







Tier 1


● Monitoring student growth using MAP, course grades and teacher/student 


recommendations to place students needing Tier 2 and Tier 3 Interventions


● Developing teacher and student understanding of MAP by pushing into 


Tier 1 classes to support student individual goal setting


● Working with teachers to support a productive READ period for all students


Tier 2


● Developing and refining Tier 2 programs to address individual student 


needs


● Developed a Reading Comprehension Log for Read Plus students


Tier 3


● Designed Tier 3 math course (Mindset Math Lab) focused on developing 


students growth mindset towards math


Middle School (MHMS) RtI Coordinator Focus


238/303







Mission Hill Middle School - Evaluation Criteria & Data


239/303







MHMS - Math Course Grade Shift Data
Current Course 3 Intervention Cohorts


Math Plus & Mindset Math Lab


Before Intervention During/After Intervention


1    12
(7.4%)


240/303







MHMS - Reading Intervention Programs


241/303







MHMS Next Steps - Where to next?


● Consider the relationship between students’ use of iReady and the 


correlation to MAP growth to determine next steps for Math Plus focus


● Continue to develop Tier 3 Intervention courses focusing on Growth 


Mindset


● Continue to develop our RtI student monitoring system, improving 


efficiency and effectiveness


● Continue to develop student and teacher understanding of MAP and 


utilize MAP data to inform instruction and groupings


● Continue to work to embed the value growth mindset into our school 


culture specifically with student goal setting242/303







● Tier 1: Priority Standards


● Tier 2: Math Plus


High School RtI Coordinator Focus -
Where are we going?


243/303







Tier 1: Priority Standards Task Force


● Identified standards to prioritize, to de-emphasize, to cut and to spend 


more time on


● Developed pacing guides


● Determined focus for common assessments


244/303







Math Plus - Grade Shift (42 students) 
245/303







Tier 2: 


Fall 2018- Winter 


2019 MAP 


Achievement and 


Growth for Math 


Intervention 


Students 


Summary Data:


Percentage of Students who Met or Exceeded their Projected RIT                                                               57.9%


Percentage of Projected Growth Met                                                                                           90.3%


Count of Students with Growth Projection Available and Valid Beginning and Ending Term Scores                         19


Count of Students who Met or Exceeded their Projected Growth                                                                 11


Median Conditional Growth Percentile                                                                                         59
246/303







High School Next Steps - Where to next?


Tier 1


● Define Common Finals based on Priority Standards


● Develop Formative Assessments based on Priority 


Standards


Tier 2


● Continue to expand existing intervention programs


247/303







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Local Control Accountability Plan: Multi-Tiered Systems of Support  
School Climate and Culture 


      
MEETING DATE:  March 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In addition to providing academic support, Santa Cruz City Schools equally supports the social, 
emotional and behavioral wellness of their students. Staff work to remove barriers which may 
impact a student’s ability to be mentally and physically present for learning. The following are 
the Local Control Accountability Plan funded programs which promote a safe and healthy 
school climate so that all students can access learning.   
 
The Social Emotional Health Survey was administered to 2,145 Santa Cruz City Schools students, 
Grades 3-11, in Fall of 2018. This survey, offered in partnership with Project CoVitality 
(University of California Santa Barbara) provides numerous social emotional health data points.  
 
Staff are also providing an update centered on district efforts in the implementation of 
Restorative Justice, a set of practices and principles that aim to build community and restore 
relationships. This is seen specifically at Branciforte Small Schools Campus, as it is in formal 
implementation. 
 


Local Control Accountability Plan School Climate Programs 
 
Elementary Counseling 
Targeted Students: Grades TK-5 
 
Program purpose and goals 
Elementary School Counselors provide services in three areas: academic counseling, 
introduction to college and career awareness, and social emotional support. These services are 
conducted through the framework of Multi-Tiered Systems of Support. The goal is to support 
the academic achievement of all students by providing lessons, information and monitoring 
progress, as well as offering direct individual support for the social emotional wellness of 
students.  
 
 
 


248/303







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.2. 


Strengths of the program 
Counselors provide Tier 1 curriculum to all students in the areas of academic and career goal 
setting. They provide classroom lessons as well as lead school wide initiatives. Some examples 
of this include interest inventories, career matches, coordination of career visits from the 
community, college awareness/promotion activities, and coordination with other support staff 
to provide social-emotional support in times of crisis.   
 
Providing Tier 2 supports is also a large component of the services provided by Santa Cruz City 
Schools Staff. The counselors are instrumental in the implementation of Positive Behavior 
Interventions and Supports, as well as general education behavior intervention plans. They 
have designed and created easy access to a host of social emotional and behavioral 
interventions which teachers can utilize in the classroom. Counselors provide individual 
counseling, group counseling, and skill development groups. Some examples of the groups they 
have developed include classroom skill development, friendship groups, anger management, 
support groups for students whose parents are incarcerated, support groups for children of 
divorced or separated parents, grief support groups, 5th grade girls group, 5th grade boys group, 
and others as needed. Counselors provide consultation for staff and parents on the 
developmental issues of children. Additionally, counselors work to connect families to 
community resources when there is a need that cannot be met at school. 
 
Program needs for improvement 
The counseling team is continuing collaborative efforts to create a counseling handbook of 
lessons and programs so that the schools are aligned in their practices.  
 
Process for developing program 
The program was originally developed based on a needs assessment of staff, administrators and 
parents. It continues to be designated as a high priority for all schools in order to meet the 
needs of students so they can flourish in the classroom. 
 
Evaluation Criteria 
The elementary counseling program has been evaluated by monitoring the number of office 
discipline referrals. The implementation of Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports has 
been crucial in efforts to support a positive climate and reduce incidents of inappropriate 
behavior. 
 
The data system associated with Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports is a School Wide 
Information System. School Wide Information System Data is used consistently by site Positive 
Behavior Interventions and Supports teams to analyze effectiveness of individual site Positive 
Behavior Interventions and Supports implementation. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
LCFF Supplemental (Restricted): $200,132 
LCFF Base (Unrestricted): $200,132 


249/303







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.2. 


Secondary Counseling 
Targeted Students: all students grades 7-12 
 
Program purpose and goals 
Secondary School Counselors provide services in three areas: academic counseling, college and 
career counseling, and social emotional support through the framework of Multi-Tiered 
Systems of Support. Counselors provide Tier 1 curriculum to all students through classroom 
lessons as well as school wide initiatives.  
 
Strengths of the program 
The counseling connection begins during the transition between 5th and 6th grade. The 
counselors have designed a series of lessons, school visits, and parent nights to support 
students transitioning to middle school. Some examples can be as simple and necessary as 
practice with opening a locker, learning how to read a schedule, following a map to find their 
way to classrooms on a school visit, and viewing the locker room. Students write letters to their 
6th grade core teachers describing who they are, their interests, and how they learn. 
Simultaneously, information is provided to parents on the developmental task and changes of 
incoming middle school students as their child moves from 5th to 6th grade. This information 
ranges from hygiene to the new academic demands of six classes.  
 
The secondary Tier 1 counseling programs continue with 8th grade boot camp in which students 
learn about credits and classes, 9th grade Four Year Planning workshops, 10th grade career 
inventories, and career units that include understanding Career and Technical Education 
pathways, college searches, college application support and financial aid workshops, and senior 
checklists as students ready themselves for the next stage of life. Continual monitoring of 
postsecondary options is conducted throughout the 11th and 12th grades. This includes intensive 
time measured by individual counseling, parent nights, and classroom visits. 
 
Counselors also provide an immediate response to the immediate needs of their students. They 
coordinate scheduling, course selection, credit checks, and work with teachers to provide for 
special circumstances that arise and the needs of students and their families.  
 
In the social emotional domain, counselors provide classroom lessons on bullying, harassment, 
and understanding feelings. In the Tier 2 supports counselors are responding on a daily basis to 
the needs of their students ranging from the short term challenges of adolescence to longer 
term mental health needs including depression, anxiety, and grief. 
 
Additionally, counselors provide required suicide awareness and prevention curriculum to all 
students in grades 7-12 per the legal requirements of AB 2246. 
 
 
 
 


250/303







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.2. 


Program needs for improvement 
As the mental health needs of students continue to increase, there is a need for more training 
for the school counselors in the areas of threat assessment, suicide assessment, and classroom 
accommodations to recommend for students with mental health barriers.  
 
Process for Developing Program 
The program was originally developed based on a needs assessment of staff, administrators and 
parents. It continues to be designated as a high priority for all schools in order to meet the 
needs of students so they can flourish in the classroom. 
 
Evaluation Criteria 
Counselors take seriously the charge they have to support students to graduation. Much of the 
criteria used is the same as the evaluation of the entire school program such as attendance, 
discipline, drop-out, and post-secondary access rates. Information included in ongoing analysis 
of the annual Social Emotional Health Survey is also used to gauge the efforts of the counseling 
team. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
LCFF Supplemental (Restricted): $149,672 
LCFF Base (Unrestricted): $32,838 
Parcel Tax (Restricted): $1,397,504 
Federally Funded (Restricted): $35,201 
 


Social Emotional Health Counselor (.2 Full Time Equivalency at each middle 
school) 
Targeted students: Grades 6-8 
 
Program purpose and goals 
An additional staffing resource of .2 Full Time Equivalency was added to both comprehensive 
middle schools to provide supplemental services to the existing support staff at each school. 
The transitional middle school years provide numerous challenges for students as they exit the 
comfort of a somewhat protected and highly structured elementary school environment. 
Added social pressures associated with adolescence make this transition even more difficult.  
 
Strengths of the program 
Additional staffing at each middle school has elevated the level of counseling support to better 
address the factors described in the program purpose and goals. Students now have additional 
adult mentoring and an additional avenue for connectedness.  
 
Program needs for improvement 
As this additional support equates to only one day per week, sites must prioritize accordingly.  
 
 


251/303







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.2. 


Process for developing program 
Continual monitoring of numerous data points associated with difficulty in the middle school 
transitional years led to the proposed additional staffing of a .2 Full Time Equivalency resource 
at each middle school. Data points that contributed to this additional staffing resource includes 
discipline, attendance metrics, as well as information provided in past school or student surveys 
and data from the Social Emotional Health Survey and the California Healthy Kids Survey. 
 
Evaluation Criteria: 
As with criteria for secondary counselors, much of the evaluation criteria used is the same as 
the evaluation of the entire school program, such as attendance, discipline and academic 
progress. To specifically address the middle school years, information garnered through metrics 
designed to measure social emotional health, such as the Social Emotional Health Survey and 
the California Healthy Kids Survey, will also be used. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  
LCFF Supplemental (Restricted): $50, 897 


 
Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports Coach/Behavior Analyst 
Targeted students: Grades TK-5 


 
Program purpose and goals 
The goal of the Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports Coach is to provide 
comprehensive, ongoing support to the elementary schools for the implementation of all 
aspects of Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports. The Positive Behavior Interventions 
and Supports Coach works closely with all comprehensive elementary school sites to implement 
with fidelity the core concepts, procedures, and components of Positive Behavior Interventions 
and Supports. These components include support in establishing schoolwide expectations in all 
areas of the school, communicating these expectations to students, and providing appropriate, 
positive reinforcement when expected school wide behaviors are demonstrated. The Positive 
Behavior Interventions and Supports Coach also leads school wide data collection via the School 
Wide Information System, and serves as the district’s main contact for School Wide Information 
System support.   
 
The Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports Coach also serves as a skilled Behavior 
Analyst and provides direct and intensive support to sites when students may be demonstrating 
tremendously difficult behavior. Support in this realm includes the development of appropriate 
behavior plans, subsequent to thorough assessment and data collection in the classroom. 
 
Strengths of the program 
Each elementary school principal and their Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports staff 
has direct access to an expert in Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports implementation 
and sustainability. This results in focused and timely implementation support for districtwide 
Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports efforts.   


252/303







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.2. 


Program needs for improvement 
Logistically, challenges remain to ensure each site has access to ongoing, weekly services. 
Providing a schedule for equitable access has been a challenge due to extreme cases of 
immediate need for behavior support. Various schedules are being explored, as well as 
additional supports via proposed additional staffing in the realm of Positive Behavior 
Interventions and Supports Techs. 
 
Process for developing program 
The Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports program was researched thoroughly by 
school and district staff, with the goal for each elementary school to fully implement the core 
concepts of Positive Behavior Interventions and Support. The development and implementation 
of Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports is ongoing, and each school (grades TK-5) has 
made tremendous efforts and are at various points in their Positive Behavior Interventions and 
Supports journey. At the Secondary level, both middle schools are also fully committed to the 
full implementation of Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports with systems of expected 
schoolwide behaviors, and systems of reward fully in place. 
 
Evaluation Criteria 
The current status of Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports Implementation is currently 
being assessed via Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports Tiered Fidelity Inventory at 
each Elementary school. The Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports Coach is working 
with site teams to evaluate the proper implementation of Positive Behavior Interventions and 
Supports according to established rubrics and guidelines sanctioned by Positive Behavior 
Interventions and Supports. Office Discipline Referrals and specific types and locations of 
problem behavior are also tracked via School Wide Information System, and is disaggregated at 
each site for ongoing Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports for students. 
 
Across all Elementary schools, (Aug. 1, 2018-March 1, 2019) the total number of Office 
Discipline Referrals for major incidents was eighty three. This is the first year that all 
elementary schools are fully implementing School Wide Information System data collection and 
will serve as baseline data. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  
LCFF Supplemental (Restricted): $107, 638 
 


Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports Techs 
Targeted students: Grades TK-5 
 
Program purpose and goals 
The goal of the Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports Techs is to provide in depth 
assistance to general education students who are not able to access the curriculum due to 
serious behavior concerns. Sites may offer one-to-one techs who are assisting in implementing 
a behavior support plan. The techs track behavior and provide incentives that the students have 


253/303







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.2. 


earned. The goals are to reduce the number of classroom disruptions, reduce the number of 
office discipline referrals, increase student time on learning, increase teacher time on teaching 
rather than disciplining, and increase the time of the principal in instructional leadership rather 
than on discipline support. An additional and related goal is also to decrease the need for 
Special Education services due to behavior. The techs are eventually faded as the teachers learn 
to implement the behavior support plan.  
 
Strengths of the program 
The Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports Tech is an instrumental member of the site 
Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports team that uses daily/weekly School Wide 
Information System Data to guide efforts in student support. 
 
Program needs for improvement 
Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports Tech support is intended to provide short term 
intensive support for students with extreme behavior challenges. As the program is developed, 
the time of the intensive support will need to be shortened. Ideally, the support would last 
eight to twelve weeks, as do most interventions.  
 
Process for developing program 
The program was developed by the elementary principals, the Director of Student Services and 
the Cabinet team in response to concerns expressed by the teachers, counselors and principals. 
Traditional Tier 1 and 2 behavior supports seemed inadequate, thus more focused support was 
implemented in the form of Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports Tech.  
 
Evaluation Criteria 
Similar to the evaluation criteria of the overall Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports 
program, the Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports Techs assist with the collection and 
analysis of discipline data. Across all Elementary schools, (Aug. 1, 2018-March 1, 2019) the total 
number of Office Discipline Referrals for major incidents was eighty three. This is the first year 
that all elementary schools are fully implementing School Wide Information System data 
collection and will serve as baseline data. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
LCFF Supplemental (Restricted): $65,000 
 


School Connectedness Activities Directors (.4 Full Time Equivalency at each High 
School) 
Targeted Students: Grades 9-12 
 
Program Purpose and Goals 
Beginning in the current school year 2018-2019, the three Santa Cruz City Schools 
comprehensive high schools, along with Costanoa Alternative High School, implemented a new 
activities program designed to promote school connectedness, especially for the unduplicated 


254/303







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.2. 


count students. The goal of increased connectedness is an identified strategic goal of Santa Cruz 
City Schools, and data to measure the overall increased participation in extra/co-curricular 
activities is currently being collected. 
 
Strengths of the program 
Additional staff to promote extra/co-curricular activities is in place for the benefit of focused 
efforts to bolster student involvement, confidence, and connectedness to the school. The 
Activities Director works closely with athletic departments, as well as staff from fine arts 
programs to continually promote the opportunities available to students. In some instances the 
Activities Director may coordinate with counselors and social workers to assist families in 
navigating the process of athletic clearance. The Activities Director may also coordinate with 
administration in the ongoing communication with each site’s Associated Student Body 
organizations. 
 
Program needs for improvement 
As the first year of this program concludes, there will be thorough analysis of program strengths 
and areas for focus in future years.  
 
Process for developing program 
The addition of Activities Directors is the direct result of focused effort proposals to support the 
Santa Cruz City Schools Strategic Area of “School Connectedness.” Various forums were 
conducted with numerous opportunities for discussion which yielded this additional staffing 
resource. 
 
Evaluation Criteria  


Data that reflects increased participation in school activities is the essential goal, especially for 
students that are typically underrepresented. 2018-2019 is a “Baseline Year” for the collection 
of this data. 
 
On average, 2018-2019 participation rates for students in sports in relation to total enrollment 
at the three comprehensive high schools is 21.6%. 
 
On average, 2018-2019 participation rates for students in clubs and/or organizations in relation 
to total enrollment at the three Santa Cruz City Schools comprehensive high schools is 25%. 
(Specific data regarding unduplicated status is currently being collected) 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
LCFF Supplemental (Restricted): $128,897 
 
 
 
 
 


255/303







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.2. 


Foster Youth Services Coordinating Program  
Targeted Students: all foster youth grades K-12 
Number of Students Served: 25 
 
Program purpose and goals 
Santa Cruz City Schools contracts with the Santa Cruz County Office of Education to provide 
services for the district’s foster youth. FosterEd is a program of the Santa Cruz County Office of 
Education’s Foster Youth Services Coordinating Program. The mission is to increase the 
educational outcomes of foster youth. Each foster youth is supported by an education team, 
Education Champion, and education plan, based on identified strengths and areas of need. 
 
Strengths of the program 
All Santa Cruz City Schools foster youth are assigned a Liaison to monitor school progress. The 
Liaison is especially important as students often transition between schools. The program has 
assisted school teams in setting goals with students and increasing participation of foster 
parents in school activities and educational conferences. Students in the FosterEd program 
show increases in attendance and have a high rate of completing their educational goals.  
 
Program needs for improvement 
The program continues to focus on strengthening the communication avenues among multiple 
team members, as well as increasing school stability for foster youth. 
 
Process for developing program 
The program was developed in partnership with the County Office of Education, the Santa Cruz 
County Family and Children Services, The Dependency Court of Santa Cruz, Court Appointed 
Special Advocates, and the National Center for Foster Youth Law. Current partners include 
these agencies, as well as Children’s Behavioral Health, Independent Living Program, Cabrillo 
Guardian Scholars, and the Transition Age Youth Advisory Board. 
 
Evaluation Criteria  


FosterEd Liaisons gather multiple data points to measure the effectiveness of support. 
Examples include grade point average (for high school and middle school students), attendance, 
educational and socioemotional goal progress, suspensions, and school enrollment history. First 
with RTI International, now Applied Survey Research, FosterEd has continually contracted out 
with external evaluators to track program outcomes. Past program evaluations are available 
upon request. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
LCFF Supplemental (Restricted): $10,000 (Contract with Santa Cruz County Office of Education) 
 
 
 
 


256/303







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.2. 


Homeless Youth/Students in Transition 
Targeted Students: Grades K-12 
Number of Students Served: 64 
 
Program purpose and goals 
To provide resources for students of families in transition in order to increase opportunities for 
academic success and social-emotional health. 
 
“Homeless” is defined as an individual who lacks a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime 
residence, including children and youth who are sharing housing due to economic hardship.   
Examples of factors which qualify homeless designation and subsequent support includes loss 
of housing due to economic hardship, living in motels, hotels, trailer parks, or camping due to 
lack of adequate housing. Various other factors may also contribute to identification, and are 
reviewed by district staff to appropriately allocate resources. 
 
Strengths of the program 
Resources such as bus passes, hygiene kits, and access to community resources are provided 
which are crucial to support homeless youth/students in transition. District Social Workers work 
in coordination with Student Services and school sites to provide support. 
 
Program needs for improvement 
Additional professional development regarding a consistent and common method of 
assessment for qualifying students as homeless/in transition is needed.   
 
Process for developing program 
All school districts follow the legal guidelines of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Education Act 
Legislation embedded within No Child Left Behind (2001). Sites work directly with Student 
Services to identify and serve students. 
 
Evaluation Criteria 
Identification of Homeless Youth/Students in Transition is confidential. Data concerning 
Homeless Youth is reported via California Department of Education Dashboard. Areas of social-
emotional concern at the Elementary Level are chronic absenteeism (50%), and suspension 
rates (5.1%). Areas of concern at the secondary level are chronic absenteeism (25%), 
suspension rates (13.7%), and college and career readiness (5%). 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
LCFF Supplemental (Restricted): $11,653 
 
 
 
 
 


257/303







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.2. 


Social Workers and Intern Program 


Targeted Students: Grades 7-12 
Number of students served:  Approximately 330 to date. 
 
Program purpose and goals 
The social worker and intern program is designed to provide Tier 3 social and emotional 
supports, as well as, case management to students and their families. Recent nationwide 
statistics indicate: 


 25% of all teens are impacted by an anxiety disorder. The Median age of onset is age 11.   


 8.3% of teens suffer major depression for more than one year.  


 11% of middle schoolers and 30% of high school students report being sad for more 
than two weeks at a time. 


 Approximately 5% of students are homeless. 


 Between 11-17% of students miss 10% or more of the school year. 
The goal is to reduce absenteeism, increase student achievement, and increase student mental 
wellness. 
 
Strengths of the program 
Social workers and interns are in place at each of the district’s six secondary sites. With this 
presence schools are able to serve many students who were not being served in the past. The 
student needs cover a wide range: anxiety, depression, grief, domestic violence, dating 
violence, unsafe housing, no housing, long term trauma, suicidal ideation, self-harm, substance 
abuse, and fear caused by immigration status. Santa Cruz City Schools social workers provide 
the required supervision for two interns. The intern training program consists of individual and 
group supervision weekly.  
 
There are two classified Mental Health Counselors who serve Costanoa High School, Santa Cruz 
High School, and Mission Hill Middle School, supervised by a Santa Cruz City Schools Social 
Worker with advanced supervisory credentials. 
 
Program needs for improvement 
Santa Cruz City Schools is finishing the fourth year with social workers and second year of intern 
supervision. The district is always striving to improve communication and teaming at the sites, 
as there is often a team of support providers for students at risk. A support model based on 
prevention rather than response is at the crux of the district’s ongoing efforts.   
 
Process for developing program 
The program was developed after assessing the needs for more mental health support for 
students as well as reviewing the data on chronic absenteeism. Principals and school counselors 
participated in the development of the program.  
 
 
 


258/303







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.2. 


Evaluation Criteria 
Approximately 330 students have been served to date in the 2018-2019 school year. This is a 
sharp increase from 226 students at this same time in the 2017-2018 school year. The Social 
Workers and Interns are seeing a clear increase in the need for social-emotional services.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
Secondary Social Workers: 
LCFF Supplemental (Restricted): $216,640 
Social Work Interns: 
LCFF Supplemental (Restricted): $17,500 
 


Restorative Justice 
Targeted Students: Potentially grades K-12 
 
Program purpose and goals 
All community members will feel a sense of connectedness and empowerment that will in turn 
promote a sense of safety and responsibility for self and others.   
 
Strengths of the program 
All certificated and classified staff at Branciforte Small Schools are in the midst of eighteen 
hours of professional development. Branciforte Small Schools’ work for 2018-2019 centers 
around understanding the fundamental principles of Restorative Justice, as well as the 
implementation of key practices. There is an emphasized focus on “community circles” which is 
embraced by students and staff. Staff from both Harbor High School and Soquel High School 
have also participated in the training. 
 
Program needs for improvement 
As with any new initiative, there is ongoing evaluation. Thus far, the Branciforte Small Schools 
Campus community has identified a need to continue with Year 2 of the SEEDS Service 
agreement to solidify implementation of Restorative Justice. 
 
Process for developing program 
Administration and staff at Branciforte Small Schools Campus have worked closely with district 
administration in identifying a research based model for community strengthening.  
Subsequently, after numerous forums for input, a service agreement for structured professional 
development and implementation is now in place. 
 
Evaluation Criteria 
This is year one of a service agreement/contract with SEEDS Community Resolution Center.  
Upon conclusion of current year’s training and implementation, a school wide assessment of 
effectiveness will be evaluated via school surveys, along with cumulative attendance and 
discipline rates. 
 


259/303







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.2. 


Fiscal Impact:  
MAA Funding (Restricted): $20,000 
 
This work identified is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding 
metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 


 
 


Prepared by Greg O’Meara, Director of Student Services 


260/303







Local Control Accountability Plan
Multi-Tiered Systems of Support


Santa Cruz City Schools


Board of Trustees Meeting


March 20, 2019
261/303







262/303







● Elementary/Secondary Counseling 


● Social Emotional Health Counselor (Middle Schools)


● Positive Behavior Interventions and Support Techs


● Positive Behavior Interventions and Support Coach/Behavior 


Analyst


LCAP/MTSS Supported Programs


263/303







LCAP/MTSS Supported Programs


● School Connectedness Activities Directors


● Foster Youth Services


● Homeless/Students in Transition


● Social Workers and Intern Program


● Restorative Justice (Currently part of MTSS, but not specifically 


supported in LCAP)


264/303







Positive Behavior Intervention Supports (PBIS) Coach 


● Provide positive coaching and training across elementary sites


● Attend monthly site program meetings 


● Train for and monitor data collection systems


● Train PBIS Techs on applied behavior strategies and PBIS concepts -


“grow their tool box”


● Conduct Functional Behavioral Analyses (FBAs), collect and analyze 


data, create behavior plans, coach teachers on individual and group 


classroom behavior strategies


265/303







266/303







Social Worker/Intern Program


2 Interns working towards Graduate Degrees in Mental Health


● HHS: (10 Hrs/Week Intern 1) 


● B40: (10 Hrs/Week Intern 1/10 Hrs/Week Intern 2) 


● SHS: (8 Hrs/Week Intern 2)


2 Mental Health Specialists: Completed Graduate Degree: Working on 


Licensure Hours (Paid Employees)


● 1 @ SCHS/MHMS (30 Hrs/Week) 


● 1 @ CHS (24 Hrs/Week) 


267/303







Social Workers Connection to Community


● Womens Health Center


● Planned Parenthood


● Youth Resource Board


● County Mental Health


● Encompass


268/303







Social Workers Connection to Community


● Shine-a Light Counseling


● Lotus Collaborative


● Family Services


● Child Protective Services


● Boys and Girls Club


269/303







Fall 2018


Social Emotional 


Health Survey


Administered to 2,145 


SCCS students in 


Grades 3-11


488 (3-5)


1,657 (6-11)


270/303







271/303







What is restorative justice?


● A set of principles
● A set of practices
● At the center,


○ Conflict is normal and human
○ Must have a community worth “restoring to”
○ All stakeholders are participants
○ Adults need to practice it first
○ Not something a school does to the students


272/303







How does it look at Branciforte Small Schools this year 


and beyond?


● Three-year implementation plan guided by a vision statement and 
monitored by leadership team


● 18 hours of Professional Development for all staff in 2018-19   
● Year one-deepening community AND trying out new conflict resolution 


methods
○ Circles, circles, circles
○ Restorative questions to resolve conflict/discipline, circle of support 


and accountability


273/303







Thank You!


274/303







                            


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.3. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Local Control Accountability Plan: Budget Recommendations 
      
MEETING DATE:  March 20, 2019 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the proposed Local Control Accountability Plan budget funding changes.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Each year Santa Cruz City Schools is charged with creating and implementing a Local Control 
Accountability Plan, which focuses on closing the achievement gap by targeting three specific 
groups of students: English Learners, Homeless / Foster Youth, and students from Low Income 
households. The district is currently in Year 2 of implementing a three year Local Control 
Accountability Plan that was approved by the Board of Trustees in June 2018. 
 
As part of the Local Control Accountability Plan process, each year Santa Cruz City Schools 
engages stakeholders (students, parents, teachers, staff and administrators) to review, make 
suggested revisions, and give input into the Santa Cruz City Schools Local Control Accountability 
Plan. As part of the 2018-19 Multi-Tiered System of Supports retreats (December 6, 2018, and 
February 5, 2019) teachers, counselors, coaches, Response to Intervention Coordinators, and 
administrators from each school site were engaged to give meaningful input into how to close 
the achievement gap at each grade span in relation to the district’s four strategic focus areas: 
Literacy, Mathematics, English Learner Progress, and School Connectedness. This year, staff 
looked at district data in relation to the four strategic focus areas to inform the 
recommendations. The District Advisory Committee, parent Local Control Accountability Plan 
survey, student Local Control Accountability Plan survey, student Local Control Accountability 
Plan focus groups, and staff Local Control Accountability Plan survey have also contributed to 
refining Santa Cruz City Schools’ Local Control Accountability Plan.  
 
As a result of data analysis and stakeholder engagement, staff examined each of the Tier 1 and 
Tier 2 recommendations for student supports and decided either to discontinue, continue with 
revisions, or continue unchanged at each grade span. A smaller Multi-Tiered System of Support 
task force, comprised of site and district office administrators, has been collaborating to 
identify funding for the Tier 1 and Tier 2 recommendations that were developed by the Multi-
Tiered System of Support retreat participants and informed by stakeholder input.     
 


275/303







                            


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.3. 


The additional programs or positions are funded through the reduction of Local Control 
Accountability Plan funded positions, that are either not in direct alignment with the district’s 
four strategic focus areas, are not producing the intended results, or simply had to be 
reconsidered given the current budget realities and more pressing needs.  
 
The supplemental funding for elementary in 2019-20 is projected to be $1,461,561, reflecting a 
decrease in funding of $95,669. The supplemental funding for secondary in 2019-20 is 
projected to be $2,736,359, reflecting a decrease in funding of $22,746. These amounts are 
driven by unduplicated pupil counts of English Learners, Low Income Students, and Foster 
Youth in each of Santa Cruz City Schools’ districts.  
 
Because staffing decisions are time sensitive and impact personnel, these budget 
recommendations are being brought to the Board prior to the full Local Control Accountability 
Plan update which will come in May.   
 
Elementary Proposed Local Control Accountability Plan Budget Changes 
 
Proposed Elementary Positions to Stop Funding:  


● 2.0 Full Time Equivalency Elementary Common Core Instructional Coaches 
 
Background 
This is the fourth year the district has funded elementary instructional coaches. Instructional 
coaching was desired because, when implemented well, it is a high impact research based 
educational practice. Instructional Coaching is also an important part of the Multi-Tiered 
System of Supports framework to provide hands on, ongoing professional learning in the 
classroom. 
 
In the 2018-19 school year, the district reframed the Instructional Coaches to be Common Core 
Coaches and re-allocated their Full Time Equivalency to serve the elementary schools more 
equitably: One instructional coach was assigned .7 to Gault, .2 to Westlake, and .1 to Monarch. 
The other instructional coach was assigned .5 to Bay View, and .5 to DeLaveaga.  
 
Program Purpose and Goals 
In researching effective instructional coaching models and working with districts that have 
implemented effective elementary instructional coaching models—those that yield strong 
student achievement scores, especially when looking at their subgroups—there are several 
consistent trends. One trend in these effective instructional coaching models is that the 
instructional coach was connected to a single site and thus a part of a school’s staff. This seems 
to be essential in order to be more systematic about supporting teachers (working with all 
teachers at a school throughout the year). In addition, when the coach was part of the school 
staff, the coach was seen as part of the team, and as a result there was high relational trust 
between the coach and teachers.  


276/303







                            


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.3. 


 
Another trend in effective elementary instructional coaching programs is that the focus of the 
coaching was on high impact, evidence based instruction that impacted all content areas. The 
purpose in making this change from the prior year was twofold. First, the intent was to have 
more Full Time Equivalency allotted to each site in order to give the coach time to become part 
of a site team and develop relationships with staff, as this coaching model depends on trust and 
openness between coach and coachee. Second, instead of having coaches be content area 
specialists (i.e., math coach or English Language Development Coach), the coaches supported 
teachers in instructional practices that cross the curriculum: collaborative conversations and 
integrated English Language Development. 
 
Strength of the Program 
Teachers who worked with district Common Core coaches gave very positive feedback. Coaches 
were able to demonstrate measurable impact on students and also participated on Santa Cruz 
Instructional Leadership teams, staff meetings, and professional learning. Ratings from teachers 
who took advantage of coaching were positive. At Gault, with the support of a .7 Full Time 
Equivalency Common Core Coach, all teachers were able to participate in a coaching cycle. 
 
Program Needs for Improvement and Rationale for Proposed Change 
Despite the reorganization of the elementary coaching model for 2018-19, the district is not 
currently able to devote the time and resources necessary for all teachers to participate in a 
coaching cycle and have a robust elementary coaching program. Because fewer resources 
require making reductions in the budget, the elementary coaching program is no longer 
affordable. 
 
Proposed Budget Additions Aligned to the Santa Cruz City Schools four Strategic Focus Areas: 


● 4 Social Work Interns - 1 each at Bay View, DeLaveaga, Gault, and Westlake 
 
Background 
In prior years, Santa Cruz City Schools was able to attract Social Work Interns to support 
elementary students. An internship is a requirement for the completion of their Masters of 
Social Work. While this is not a paid position, the district previously offered interns a small 
stipend of $500 for the ten months of service. Because of the size of the stipend relative to 
nearby districts, Santa Cruz City Schools was unable to attract any Social Work Interns in the 
2018-19 school year. This proposal is to increase the stipend to $500 per month like 
neighboring districts. 
 
Program Purpose and Goals  
A Social Work Intern can collaborate with the school counselor to provide social/emotional 
support for approximately ten hours of one on one services weekly to identified Tier 3 students. 
 
 


277/303







                            


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.3. 


Evaluation Criteria 
The program will be evaluated by administrators, counselors, and by a reduced number of 
behavioral referrals.  
 
Proposed Elementary Budget Change: 
Remove District Advisory Committee Meeting expenditures (Extra Work Agreements, food, 
transportation, babysitting, etc.) from LCFF and use Title I 
 
Rationale for Proposed Change 
There are currently District Advisory Committee Meeting expenditures as a line item in the LCFF 
budget. However, it is a federal mandate that the district hold 1% of the Title I budget aside for 
parent/community engagement. Staff propose using this Title I parent/community engagement 
money instead of LCFF Supplemental to support District English Learner Advisory Council and 
District Advisory Council meeting needs. The purpose of the District English Learner Advisory 
Council and District Advisory Council is to engage parents/community in giving feedback and 
input into the development of the district Local Control Accountability Plan.  
 
Secondary Proposed LCAP Budget Changes 
 
Proposed Secondary Position to Stop Funding: 


● 0.4 Full Time Equivalency Reading Intervention Sections (1 section at Harbor High and 1 
section at Soquel High) 


 
Background 
For the past six years, there has been one section of Reading Intervention at each of the five 
comprehensive secondary schools. This class was a Tier 3 intervention for students struggling in 
reading and scoring two or more grade levels below on assessments. Reading Intervention is a 
year-long course and often replaced a students’ elective.  
 
In researching effective Tier 3 Reading Interventions, Read 180 was the most effective evidence 
based reading intervention program on the market when the district first implemented Reading 
Interventions, and as such, Santa Cruz City Schools chose the Read 180 program as their 
elective program. As part of the Read 180 program, it was necessary to purchase a Read 180 
library as well as twelve Read 180 computer stations for each comprehensive school. Thus, 
there was a large initial upfront cost associated with implementing this program. 
 
Program Purpose and Goals 
The goal of this program was to support students reading two or more grade levels below to 
rapidly grow their reading skills and be brought up to grade level reading in one to two years of 
taking Read 180. 
 
 


278/303







                            


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.3. 


Strength of the Program 
The initial teachers chosen to implement Read 180 received training on how to effectively 
implement the program. Read 180 requires program fidelity to ensure the rapid growth needed 
in students reading abilities. While the middle schools have had varying degrees of success 
implementing Read 180 and seeing rapid reading growth in students, the high schools have not. 
High school teachers felt Read 180 was not engaging enough for high school students. Two 
years ago Santa Cruz High stopped offering Read 180 and Harbor stopped offering Read 180, 
and created their own reading intervention program. In addition, high schools reported having 
fewer students in need of a Tier 3 reading intervention, so these sections have had very few 
students.  
 
Program Needs for Improvement and Rationale for Proposed Change 
Because high school students were not seeing success with Read 180 or site developed reading 
intervention programs, and because there are fewer students needing Tier 3 reading 
intervention, it is proposed that the district stop offering reading intervention in its current 
form at the high school level. Continued efforts will be made to identify the specific needs of 
Tier 3 reading intervention students and find a program that is specifically suited to high school 
students and adolescent literacy. It will take time to dig into the most recent Measure of 
Academic Progress data, this spring’s California Assessment of Student Performance and 
Progress data, and grade data, and it will also take time to research programs and involve 
teachers in determining what to implement next. District staff recommends eliminating reading 
intervention at Harbor and Soquel High while staff work to identify interventions that will most 
positively impact student literacy at the high school level. 
 
Proposed Secondary Position to Stop Funding: 


● 0.8 Full Time Equivalency Secondary English Learner Instructional Resource Teacher 
 
Background 
For many years, the district has funded a 1.0 Full Time Equivalency district English Learner 
Instructional Resource Teacher to support district English Learners programs as well as to 
support teachers in refining their instructional practice as it relates to English Learners through 
instructional coaching cycles. When implemented well, Instructional Coaching is a high impact, 
research based educational practice and is an important part of the Multi-Tiered System of 
Supports framework to provide hands on, ongoing professional learning in the classroom. 
  
Program Purpose and Goals 
As explained in the elementary section above, effective instructional coaching models and 
districts that have implemented effective instructional coaching models that yield strong 
student and subgroup achievement scores have established instructional coaches that are 
connected to a single site, resulting in stronger trust and collaboration. This seems to be 
essential in order to be more systematic about supporting teachers (working with all teachers 
at a school throughout the year).  


279/303







                            


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.3. 


 
With this in mind, a plan was developed for the 2018-19 school year that focused the 
Secondary English Learner Instructional Resource Teacher at three of the six secondary sites as 
listed below:  
.2 Full Time Equivalency at the District Office  
.2 Full Time Equivalency at Costanoa High School 
.2 Full Time Equivalency at Mission Hill Middle School 
.4 Full Time Equivalency at Branciforte Middle School 
 
The purpose for making this change from the prior year was to have more Full Time Equivalency 
allotted to each site in order to give the coach time to become part of a site team and develop 
relationships with staff, as this coaching model depends on trust and openness between coach 
and coachee.  
 
Strength of the Program 
Teachers who worked with the English Learner Instructional Resource Teacher gave very 
positive feedback, and classroom walk-through data demonstrates a measurable positive 
impact on instruction and student outcomes.  
 
Program Needs for Improvement and Rationale for Proposed Change 
Despite the reorganization of the secondary English Learner Instructional Resource Teacher 
position for 2018-19, it is not currently possible to devote the time and resources necessary for 
all teachers to participate in a coaching cycle. As there is a need to make reductions in the 
budget, a full time English Learner Instructional Resource Teacher is no longer affordable. 
However, this position will be able to continue as a .2 Full Time Equivalency at Mission Hill 
Middle School where the biggest impact on instruction has been observed.  
 
Proposed Secondary Position to Reduce Funding: 


● 0.6 Full Time Equivalency Science Teacher on Special Assignment  
 


Background 
For the past four years, the district has funded a 1.0 Full Time Equivalency district Science 
Teacher on Special Assignment focused on supporting the district at each grade span move 
forward with implementing the Next Generation Science Standards, which were approved by 
the California Department of Education in 2013. 
 
Program Purpose and Goals 
The goal of this position was to support all elementary teachers and all secondary science 
teachers in implementing the Next Generation Science Standards. Thus, this position focused 
on providing teachers with professional development to gain an understanding of the Next 
Generation Science Standards, gain access to standards aligned curriculum, and have 


280/303







                            


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.3. 


professional development focused on the instructional shifts necessary in order to meet the 
demands of the standards.  
 
Strength of the Program 
The Science Teacher on Special Assignment has been tremendously successful and made huge 
strides towards implementing the Next Generation Science standards at all grade levels. 
Teachers who worked with the Science Teacher on Special Assignment gave very positive 
feedback, and classroom walk-through data demonstrates a measurable impact on instruction 
and student outcomes. By the end of the year, all elementary teachers will have been trained in 
at least one standards aligned science unit, middle school will have finished their standards 
aligned curriculum pilot and chosen a district middle school science curriculum, and high school 
will have made strides on making the Biology course more accessible. In addition, the Science 
Teacher on Special Assignment has developed a systematic way of supporting all school sites in 
implementing the Next Generation Science Standards by creating a “Science Leads” group that 
meets monthly and focuses on curriculum, the Next Generation Science standards, and the 
instructional shifts that need to occur to implement these standards. Science Leads have given 
very positive feedback regarding these monthly meetings and feel this has been an essential 
component of success in implementing the Next Generation Science Standards districtwide.  
 
Program Needs for Improvement and Rationale for Proposed Change 
While the district is not yet at full implementation of the Next Generation Science Standards, 
despite having has made tremendous growth in the implementation at all grade spans, there 
are also many other content area needs. Last year, the new History Social Science Framework 
was adopted by the California Department of Education, and all secondary History teachers 
received an introduction to the History Social Science Framework. This reduction allows the 
Science Teacher on Special Assignment to continue as a .4 assignment while providing 
resources to support a .6 History Social Science Teacher on Special Assignment. The History 
Social Science Teacher on Special Assignment will support teachers in gaining a deeper 
understanding of the new History Framework, as well as the necessary shifts in curriculum and 
instruction that will need to occur in order to meet the new framework requirements. 
 
Proposed Secondary Budget Addition: 


● .6 Full Time Equivalency Secondary History Social Science Teacher on Special Assignment 
 
Background 
This is a new position.  
 
Program Purpose and Goals 
The purpose of having a .6 Full Time Equivalency Secondary History Social Science Teacher on 
Special Assignment is to replicate what has been done with Science. As mentioned above, the 
History Framework was adopted by the California Department of Education last school year in 
2017, and there are major shifts that need to occur in the History Social Science curriculum and 


281/303







                            


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.3. 


instruction at each grade span. Secondary History Social Science teachers are actively asking for 
and seeking new curriculum and professional development as it relates to the 2017 History 
Framework. The goals of having a .6  Full Time Equivalency Secondary History Social Science 
Teacher is to have this teacher work on developing a plan for the implementation of the 2017 
History Framework in regards to adopting new history curriculum and focusing on the 
instructional shifts and strategies that teachers need to learn to meet the demands of the 
History framework. As part of this district implementation plan, the History Social Studies 
Teacher on Special Assignment will develop a History Leads structure like the Science Leads 
model, collaborating with the .4 Science Teacher on Special Assignment. The plan is to 
eventually make the History Social Studies position a 1.0 Full Time Equivalency position in the 
2020-21 school year, and potentially have this position for three years to implement the 2017 
History Social Science Framework.  
 
Evaluation Criteria 
Program will be evaluated by teacher survey data and classroom walk-through data. 
 
Proposed Secondary Budget Addition:  


● $11,000 towards funding 6 Social Work Interns - 1 each at Branciforte Middle School, 
Mission Hill Middle School, Costanoa High, Harbor High, Santa Cruz High, and Soquel 
High 


 
Background 
As mentioned above in the elementary section, an internship is a requirement for the 
completion of their Masters of Social Work. While this is not a paid position, the district 
previously offered the interns a small stipend of $500 for the ten months of service. The 
proposal is to now offer a stipend of $500 a month like neighboring districts. 
 
Program Purpose and Goals  
A social work intern can collaborate with the school counselor to provide social/emotional 
support for approximately ten hours of one-on-one services weekly to the identified Tier 3 
students. 
 
Evaluation Criteria 
The program will be evaluated by the attendance rates of students receiving supports as well as 
counselor and administrative anecdotal feedback. 
 
Proposed Secondary Budget Change: 


● Remove District Advisory Committee Meeting (Extra Work Agreements, food, 
transportation, babysitting, etc.) from LCFF and use Title 3 


Rationale for Proposed Change 
There are currently District Advisory Committee Meeting expenditures as a line item in the LCFF 
budget. However, it is a federal mandate that the district hold 1% of the Title I budget aside for 


282/303







                            


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.3. 


parent/community engagement. Staff propose using this Title I parent/community engagement 
money instead of LCFF Supplemental to support District English Learner Advisory Council and 
District Advisory meeting needs, as the purpose of District English Learner Advisory Council and 
District Advisory Committee is to engage parents/community in giving feedback and input into 
the development of the district Local Control Accountability Plan.  
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 


Proposed Budget Reductions: Elementary LCFF Supplemental 
(Restricted) 


Title 1 
(Restricted) 


2.0 Full Time Equivalency Elementary 
Common Core Coaches 


$177,365  
(.85 Full Time Equivalency) 


$32,948  
(.15 Full Time 
Equivalency) 


District Advisory Committee Meetings $1,492  


Total Proposed Reductions: Elementary $178,857 $32,948  


Proposed Budget Additions: Elementary LCFF Supplemental 
(Restricted) 


Title 1 
(Restricted) 


4 Social Work Interns Stipends $20,000  


Total Proposed Additions: Elementary $20,000  


Elementary Budget Change Summary LCFF Supplemental 
(Restricted) 


Title 1 
(Restricted) 


Anticipated Decrease from 18-19 to 19-20 
Allocation: Elementary 


$95,669 *  There is a 10% reduction 


to 2019-20 Title I.   


Total Recommended Reductions $178,857 $32,948 


Recommended Additions $20,000  


Remainder Distributed to Sites for Site 
Plan Goals, Salary Increases, Health & 
Welfare Costs 


$178,857 minus $95,669 
minus $20,000 = $63,188 


* There will be 


corresponding reductions 
to site allocations. 


Proposed Budget Reductions: Secondary LCFF Supplemental 
(Restricted) 


Title 1 
(Restricted) 


0.8 Full Time Equivalency Secondary English 
Learner Instructional Resource Teacher 


 $95,248 


0.6 Full Time Equivalency Science Teacher 
on Special Assignment 


$74,556  


283/303







                            


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.3. 


0.4 Full Time Equivalency Reading 
Intervention  


$41,151  


District Advisory Committee Meeting (Extra 
Work Agreements, food, transportation, 
babysitting, etc.) 


$2,275  


Total Reductions: Secondary $117,982 $95,248 


Proposed Budget Additions: Secondary LCFF Supplemental 
(Restricted) 


Title 1 
(Restricted) 


0.6 Full Time Equivalency History Social 
Science Teacher on Special Assignment 


$74,556  


Social Work Intern Stipends (Partial 
Funding)  


$11,000  


Total Additions: Secondary $85,556  


Elementary Budget Change Summary 
 


LCFF Supplemental 
(Restricted) 


Title 1 
(Restricted) 


Anticipated Decrease from 18-19 to 19-20 
Allocation: Secondary 


$22,746 *  There is a 10% reduction 


to 2019-20 Title I.   


Total Recommended Reductions $117,982 $95,248 


Recommended Additions $85,556  


Remainder Distributed to Sites for Site 
Plan Goals, Salary Increases, Health & 
Welfare Costs 


$117,982 minus $22,746 
minus $85,556 = $9,680 


*There will be 
corresponding reductions 
to site allocations. 


 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
  


284/303







Local Control Accountability 


Plan: Budget


Recommendations
2019-2020 Recommendations


285/303







Local Control Accountability Plan 


● In 2nd year of a 3 year plan (2019 – 2020 will be 3rd year) 


● Target subgroups include English Learners, Homeless / Foster Youth 


and students from Low Income households


● Stakeholder Input: 


○ District Advisory Committee (teachers and parents)


○ Multi-Tiered Systems of Support Retreats (teachers, counselors, 


coaches, Response to Intervention Coordinators and administrators) 


○ Student Forums at each site 


○ Parent, Teacher and Student Surveys 
286/303







LCFF Supplemental Funding Changes: 2018 - 2019 


to 2019 - 2020 


Elementary 18 – 19 LCFF 


Supplemental 


Funding


19 – 20 Projected 


LCFF Supplemental 


Funding


Difference


$1,557,230 $1,461,561 -$95,669


Secondary 18 – 19 LCFF 


Supplemental 


Funding


19 – 20 Projected 


LCFF Supplemental 


Funding


Difference 


$2,759,105 $2,736,359 -$22,746
287/303







Proposed Budget 
Reductions: Elementary


LCFF Supplemental
(Restricted)


Title 1
(Restricted)


2.0 Full Time Equivalency 
Elementary Common Core 
Coaches


$177,365 
(.85 Full Time Equivalency)


$32,948 
(.15 Full Time Equivalency)


District Advisory Committee 
Meetings


$1,492


Total Proposed Reductions: 
Elementary


$178,857 $32,948 


Proposed Budget Additions: 
Elementary


LCFF Supplemental
(Restricted)


Title 1
(Restricted)


4 Social Work Interns 
Stipends


$20,000


Total Proposed Additions: 
Elementary


$20,000 288/303







Elementary Budget Change 
Summary


LCFF Supplemental
(Restricted)


Title 1
(Restricted)


Anticipated Decrease from 
18-19 to 19-20 Allocation: 
Elementary


$95,669 *  There is a 10% reduction to 
2019-20 Title I.  


Total Recommended 
Reductions


$178,857 $32,948


Recommended Additions $20,000


Remainder Distributed to 
Sites for Site Plan Goals, 
Salary Increases, Health & 
Welfare Costs


$178,857 minus $95,669 
minus $20,000 = $63,188


* There will be corresponding 
reductions to site allocations.


289/303







Proposed Budget Reductions: 
Secondary


LCFF Supplemental
(Restricted)


Title 1
(Restricted)


0.8 Full Time Equivalency 
Secondary English Learner 
Instructional Resource Teacher


$95,248


0.6 Full Time Equivalency Science 
Teacher on Special Assignment


$74,556


0.4 Full Time Equivalency Reading 
Intervention 


$41,151


District Advisory Committee 
Meeting (Extra Work 
Agreements, food, 
transportation, babysitting, etc.)


$2,275


Total Reductions: Secondary $117,982 $95,248


290/303







Proposed Budget Additions: 
Secondary


LCFF Supplemental
(Restricted)


Title 1
(Restricted)


0.6 Full Time Equivalency 
History Social Science 
Teacher on Special 
Assignment


$74,556


Social Work Intern Stipends 
(Partial Funding) 


$11,000


Total Additions: Secondary


$85,556
291/303







Elementary Budget Change 
Summary


LCFF Supplemental
(Restricted)


Title 1
(Restricted)


Anticipated Decrease from 
18-19 to 19-20 Allocation: 
Secondary


$22,746 *  There is a 10% reduction 
to 2019-20 Title I.  


Total Recommended 
Reductions


$117,982 $95,248


Recommended Additions $85,556


Remainder Distributed to 
Sites for Site Plan Goals, 
Salary Increases, Health & 
Welfare Costs


$117,982 minus $22,746 
minus $85,556 = $9,680


*There will be corresponding 
reductions to site 
allocations.292/303







Questions?


293/303







                                          AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.4.1 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 26-18-19 Layoff/Reduction of Hours/Months in the Classified 
Service 


 
MEETING DATE: March 20, 2019 
 
FROM: Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent Human Resources 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Resolution 26-18-19 to layoff/reduce hours/months in classified services as submitted 
in order to meet 2019-20 budget reductions, necessitated by lack of funding or program 
changes. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Santa Cruz City Schools will follow the procedures outlined in the Santa Cruz City Schools 
Council of Classified Employees contract and the current Personnel Commission Rules and 
Regulations concerning layoffs and reduction of hours. The timeline and process identified in 
those documents will be properly followed. With the passing of this Resolution, layoff and 
reduction of hours and/or months notices will be sent, employees’ bumping rights will be 
exercised and negotiating the effects of these decisions will take place. 
 
Due to declining numbers of migrant students and thus declining revenue, the Paraeducator-
Home Based Preschool position is being eliminated. Based on parent input, remaining migrant 
funds will support academic and transportation needs for our migrant students. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Reduces $59,787.00   Migrant Funding (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
 


294/303







                                          AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.4.1 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 


RESOLUTION #26-18-19 
REDUCTION OF LAYOFF/REDUCTION OF HOURS/MONTHS IN CLASSIFIED SERVICE 


 
WHEREAS, Education Code sections 45101, 45114, 45117, 45298 and 45308 authorize the 
District to layoff classified employees for lack of work and/or lack of funds upon sixty (60) days 
prior notice; and 
 
WHEREAS, due to lack of work and/or lack of funds, the Board of Education of Santa Cruz City 
Schools hereby determine that it is necessary and in the best interests of the District to reduce 
or eliminate the services as specified below for the 2019-2020 school year. 
 


 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the classified positions set forth above shall be 
discontinued to the extent herein above set forth effective June 30, 2019. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Superintendent or designee be authorized and directed to 
give notices of layoff and reduction in service to all affected employees of this District pursuant 
to district rules and regulations and applicable provisions of the Education Code not later than 
sixty (60) days prior to the effective date of such reductions and layoffs as set forth above. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Superintendent or designee be authorized and directed to 
take any other actions necessary to effectuate the intent of this resolution. 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Board of the Santa Cruz City Schools District this 20th 
day of March, 2019. 
 
AYES:_________      NOES:_________    ABSTENTIONS:_________ ABSENT:_________ 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Deborah Tracy-Proulx 
Santa Cruz City Schools Board of Education 


LAYOFF OF POSITIONS:  


        
Qty Site/Department Classification 


 
Mos Hrs FTE 


 
Funding 
Source 


Cost Savings 


1 
Curriculum, Instruction, & 
Assessment 


Paraeducator-Home Based 
Preschool 


  9 24 0.6   Migrant $59,787.00  


295/303







8.5.4.1 - Classified Layoff Process


Separator Page


296/303







Classified Layoffs Process


March 20, 2019


297/303







Process


 Send and share site budgets with administrators


 Meet to determine ongoing and new needs for sites and 


departments


 Revise budgets to balance needs and resources available


 Principals work with school organizations, ie: PTAs, 


Boosters, etc. to determine if they will be able to fund 


positions using donation dollars for the upcoming school 


year


298/303







Timeline


 60 Days notice to employees for layoffs


 If 60 days hits before summer break, employees are 


eligible for unemployment


 If layoff does not meet the 60 days requirement before 


summer break, employee may return the following 


school year for a limited time period (to complete the 


60 days)


 Meet and confer with union at least 5 days prior to 


board meeting


299/303







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.4.2.  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
  
  


AGENDA ITEM:                    Resolution 25-18-19: Support for the State Board of Education 
English Learner Roadmap 


  
MEETING DATE:                   March 20, 2019 


  
FROM:                                  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 


  
RECOMMENDATION: 
Adopt Resolution 25-18-19 in support of the State Board of Education English Learner 
Roadmap. 
 


BACKGROUND: 
The California State Board of Education adopted an English Learner Roadmap in July 2017, 
calling for school districts to ensure that English Learner students attain high levels of English 
proficiency, mastery of grade level standards, and have opportunities to develop proficiency in 
multiple languages starting in Early Childhood Education. 
 
Resolution 25-18-19 provides the support of the Board of Education to direct its Superintendent 
to develop and strengthen language acquisition program options for the District’s students, TK-
12th grade, including dual immersion, bilingual and foreign language acquisition programs. It 
encourages work with the District English Learner Advisory Committee in the development and 
improvement of the District’s language acquisition programs and educate all parents regarding 
the District’s language acquisition programs. The Superintendent will evaluate current 
programs and services for the District’s English Learner students, in order to determine what 
changes may be needed in order to ensure alignment with the State Board’s English Learner 
Roadmap. The resolution implements the changes needed to ensure alignment between the 
District’s programs and services for English Learner students, TK-12th grade, with the State 
Board’s English Learner Roadmap to be included in the District’s Local Control Accountability 
Plan. It will create differentiated, separate growth goals for English Learner students starting 
with TK within all of the Local Control Accountability Plan priority areas, as appropriate, in order 
to ensure that the District’s programs and services for English Learner students are effectively 
ensuring that English Learner students are attaining high levels of English proficiency, mastery 
of grade level standards and proficiency in their primary language. Finally, the resolution 
implements and expands recognition at TK, elementary and middle school for attainment of 
proficiency in English and another language leading to the awarding of the State Seal of 
Biliteracy. 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 


300/303







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.4.2.  


  
  
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-


secondary college and career opportunities. 


Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 


groups within the SCCS student community. 


 


 


301/303







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.5.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


Resolution 25-18-19  


In Support of the State Board of Education English Learner Roadmap 
 


Whereas, Proposition 58: EdGE (Education for a Global Economy) passed by an over 


70% majority on November 8, 2016, reflecting California’s strong support for preparing all 


students for college and careers in a multilingual 21st century economy; 


Whereas, the California State Board of Education adopted an English Learner Roadmap 


in July 2017 calling for school districts to ensure that English Learner (EL) students attain high 


levels of English proficiency, mastery of grade level standards and have opportunities to 


develop proficiency in multiple languages starting in Early Childhood Education; 


Whereas, close to 11% of District students, TK-12th grade, are currently learning 


academic English as a second language, and have the opportunity to learn both in English and 


their native language to significantly increase their chances of high achievement in school, 


leading to higher education and global careers as multilingual speakers; 


Whereas, another 15% of the District’s students, TK-12th grade, already have strong 


proficiency in English but also speak another language, and by participating in language 


programs these students can be better prepared to compete in the global workforce as 


multilingual speakers; 


Whereas, the District is committed to providing opportunities for monolingual English-


speaking students starting in TK to be instructed to achieve proficiency in a second language so 


that they will be better prepared to compete in the global workforce as multilingual speakers; 


Whereas, the District is committed to aligning all of its programs and services for EL 


students with the State Board’s EL Roadmap and is committed to providing all parents various 


language acquisition program options starting in TK; 


Now Therefore Be It Resolved, the Governing Board of the Santa Cruz City Schools District 


hereby directs its Superintendent to: 


1. Develop and strengthen language acquisition program options for the District’s 


students, TK-12th grade, including dual immersion, bilingual and foreign language 


acquisition programs; and 


2. Work with the DELAC in the development and improvement of the District’s language 


acquisition programs and educate all parents regarding the District’s language 


acquisition programs; and 


3. Evaluate current programs and services for the District’s EL students, in order to 


determine what changes may be needed in order to ensure alignment with the State 


Board’s EL Roadmap; and 


302/303







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.5.1. 


4. Implement changes needed to ensure alignment between the District’s programs and 


services for EL students, TK-12th grade, with the State Board’s EL Roadmap to be 


included in the District’s LCAP; and 


5. Create differentiated, separate growth goals for EL students starting with ECE within all 


of the LCAP priority areas, as appropriate, in order to ensure that the District’s programs 


and services for EL students are effectively ensuring that the District’s EL students are 


attaining high levels of English proficiency, mastery of grade level standards and 


proficiency in their primary language. 


6. Implement and expand recognition at TK, elementary and middle school for attainment 


of proficiency in English and another language leading to the awarding of the State Seal 


of Biliteracy. 


 


PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Education of SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS, at a 


regular meeting of the Board of Education held March 20, 2019, by the following vote: 


 


Ayes  


Noes  


Abstain  


 


I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was duly and regularly introduced, 


passed, and adopted by the members of the Board of Education of Santa Cruz City Schools, at a 


public meeting of said Board held on March 20, 2019. 


 


 


 


 


________________________                            ________________________     


President, Board of Education     Clerk, Board of Education 


303/303





		Agenda 03.20.19 FINAL

		Minutes March 6, 2019 


		Personnel Actions - Certificated 


		Personnel Actions - Classified 


		Purchase Orders, Bids &amp; Quotes 


		8.1.3 POs over $2500 list

		Warrant Register 


		8.1.4 Vendor Warrants list

		Budget Transfers 


		8.1.5 Budget Transfer Report Feb 2018

		Physical Education Waiver 


		8.1.6. PE Waiver Supporting Docs

		Educational Services_Alternative Family Education_ Overnight Field Trip – Oregon Shakespeare Festival

		8.2.1. 2019 Shakespeare Ashland Trip Itinerary

		8.2.1. OSF Behavior Agreement Contract 

		Educational Services_Harbor High School_ Overnight Field Trip – World Strides Heritage Festival

		8.2.2. Harbor High Band Itinerary 2019

		Business Services_ Revised Facility Fee Schedule

		8.2.3 SCCS Facility Use Fee Schedule

		Business Services_ Consultant Services Agreement – J. Parra

		8.2.4 CSA Ruben Parra Cert Driver instructor

		Business Services_ Pacific Collegiate School Memorandum of Understanding

		8.2.5 FUA SCCS &amp; PCS 2019 draft

		8.2.5 PCS MOU Exhibit A

		Business Services_ Consultant Services Agreement – Jerene Lacey

		8.2.6 CSA Jerene Lacey Finance Office Assistance

		AV NOW_ Proposal_ Connect Sound System at Harbor High School Athletic Field

		8.3.1. AVNOW Contract Harbor High Athletic Field (FE)

		Belli Architecture_ Amendment Agreement_ Harbor High School Modernization Phase 2

		8.3.2. Belli Architecture Contract Amendment Harbor High Modernization Phase 2(PE)

		Butano Geotechnical Engineering_ Change Order #1_ Additional Geotech Exploration at Harbor High School Swimming Pool

		8.3.3. Butano Change Order 1 Harbor High Swimming Pool(PE)

		CRW Industries, Inc._ Change Order #1_ Waterproofing at Branciforte Small Schools Modernization Ph1

		8.3.4. CRW Industries Change Order 1 Branciforte Small Schools Waterproofing Modernization Ph1(PE)

		CRW Industries, Inc._ Change Order #4_ Hand Dryer Electrical Patchback at Branciforte Small Schools Playground Relocation

		8.3.5. CRW Industries Change Order 4 Relocate Playground Branciforte Small Schools (PE)

		Enviroplex_ Change Order #1_ Additions at Natural Bridges Gym Modernization Ph2 w_ Restroom

		8.3.6. Enviroplex CO1 Natural Bridges Modernization Gym Mod Ph2

		M3 Environmental_ Proposal_ Hazardous Material Testing at Soquel High School Modernization

		8.3.7. M3 Environmental Contract &amp; Proposal Hazardous MAterials Inspection Mission Hill Middle School Gym Roof

		Paine Construction_ Proposal_ Interior Painting at Mission Hill Middle School Locker Room

		8.3.8. Paine Construction Contract Minor Repairs and Interior Paint Mission Hill Middle School Locker Room

		PARC Specialty Contractors_ Proposal and Contract_ Ceiling Removal at Soquel High School Modernization

		8.3.9. PARC Specialty Contractors Contract Ceiling Removal Building 100 &amp; 200  Soquel High School Modernization(PE)

		Sierra School Equipment Company_ Proposal_ Combination Locks at Mission Hill Middle School Student Lockers

		8.3.10. Sierra School Equipment Proposal Combo Locks Mission Hill Middle School Student Locker

		Swinerton_ Change Order #1_ 4&quot; Water Pipe and Drinking Fountain at Soquel High School Site Infrastructure &amp; Snack Shack

		8.3.11. Swinerton CO1 Soquel High School Site Infrastructure and Snack Shack

		Western Design_ Proposal_ Replacing Carpet in Library at Harbor High School Multi Project Overhead

		8.3.12. Western Design Quote HH Library Carpet

		New Business_ Proposed Map Drafts 


		8.5.1.1. Draft Map 101

		8.5.1.1. Draft Map 102

		8.5.1.1. Draft Map 103

		PUBLIC HEARING_ Proposed Map Drafts 


		SCCS Notice of Public Hearing #4 Draft Maps 03.20.19 English

		SCCS Notice of Public Hearing #4 Draft Maps 03.20.19 Spanish

		PUBLIC HEARING_ State Board of Education Waiver

		SCCS 2nd Notice of Public Hearing #3 03.20.19 English

		SCCS 2nd Notice of Public Hearing #3 03.20.19 Spanish

		New Business_ Resolution 24-18-19 Apply for State Board of Education Waiver

		Resolution 24-18-19 SBE Waiver

		Staff Report_ Local Control Accountability Plan_ Multi-Tiered Systems of Support - Academic

		8.5.2.1. MTSS Academic LCAP Update Board Presentation 3.20.19

		Staff Report_ Local Control Accountability Plan_ Multi-Tiered Systems of Support - School Climate &amp; Culture

		8.5.2.2. LCAP_MTSS Student Support  3.20.19

		New Business_ Local Control Accountability Plan_ Budget Recommendations

		8.5.2.3. LCAP_ Budget &amp; Staffing 3-20-19

		New Business_ Resolution 26-18-19 Classified Employees Layoffs

		8.5.4.1 - Classified Layoff Process

		New Business_ Resolution 25-18-19_ Support for State English Learner Roadmap

		8.5.5.1. Resolution 25-18-19 Support for State EL Roadmap




